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Foreword

This is sue of the In for ma tion Book let in cludes: Na tional Ac count ing and Au dit ing Stan -
dard ROS 31, Train ing pro gram for ac quir ing pro fes sional and spe cial ized pro fes sional qual -
i fi ca tions in ac count ing and au dit ing, with de tailed elab o ra tion of the con tent of each exam,
the Rulebook on tak ing pro fes sional ex am i na tions for ac quir ing ac coun tancy qual i fi ca tions,
the Rulebook on con tin u ing ed u ca tion and train ing of pro fes sional ac coun tants, and the ex -
cerpt from the Stat ute of the As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors of Ser bia, which de -
fines the goals and the man ner of achiev ing these goals, and reg u lates the rights and ob li ga -
tions of professional accountants - members.

This In for ma tion book let is aimed at the in ter ested can di dates who want to ac quire a
pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion, to par tic i pate in their fur ther de vel op ment and the de vel op ment
of global ac count ing pro fes sion, in ac cor dance with the In ter na tional Stan dards of Ed u ca -
tion IES 1-8 and ROS 31. By ac quir ing the pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion and ob tain ing pro fes -
sional doc u ments of the As so ci a tion, in ac cor dance with this na tional ac count ing stan dard
ROS 31 you be come a pro fes sional ac coun tant, a reg is tered mem ber of the As so ci a tion and
the In ter na tional Fed er a tion of Ac coun tants (IFAC).

This In for ma tion book let con tains sys tema tised pro grams used for the ed u ca tion and
train ing of pro fes sional ac coun tants for com plex ac tiv i ties re lated to fi nan cial re port ing, in -
ter nal and ex ter nal au dit ing, val u a tion of as sets and cap i tal, tax con sult ing and fo ren sic pro -
ce dures, en abling them to ob tain the spe cial ized qual i fi ca tions in cer tain ar eas for jobs and
ser vices that are en trusted to pro fes sional ac coun tants qual i fied in ac cor dance with para -
graphs 31.43 and 31.44.

The pro cess of im ple men ta tion of global fi nan cial re port ing stan dard iza tion in stru -
ments de mands the nec es sary har mo ni za tion of na tional pro fes sional reg u la tions and ac -
count ing pro fes sion with the stan dards of the In ter na tional Fed er a tion of Ac coun tants
(IFAC). Con se quently, Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors, as an in ter na tion -
ally rec og nized pro fes sional as so ci a tion, reg is tered with the com pe tent body for per form -
ing tasks and ac tiv i ties such as en cour ag ing, co or di nat ing and di rect ing the ac tiv i ties of
ac coun tants and fi nan cial staff and their or ga ni za tions in im prov ing the ac count ing and
fi nan cial sys tem, pro fes sional ed u ca tion and ac qui si tion of pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions and
spe cial ized pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions, and as a mem ber of the in ter na tional reg u la tory
bod ies, cre ated this Ac count ing and Ed u ca tion Stan dard, which is har mo nized with the
stan dards of the In ter na tional Fed er a tion of Ac coun tants (IFAC) and the IESBA Code of
Eth ics for Pro fes sional Ac coun tants.
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The most im por tant in no va tions in this stan dard are:
  The pos si bil ity of ac quir ing sev eral in ter na tion ally re cog nised pro fes sional qual i fi ca -

tions and spe cial ised pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions in spe cific ar eas;
  New ed u ca tional train ing pro grams have been in tro duced in line with IFAC’s ed u ca -

tional and eth i cal stan dards, in clud ing new forms of con tin u ous ed u ca tion;
  The pro gram pro vides and ex am ines the pro fes sional ex per tise of ac coun tants and

their high-qual ity spe cial iza tions in the func tion of pub lic in ter est;
  Spe cial ized train ing and ac qui si tion of qual i fi ca tions (cer tif i cates and li censes) in spe -

cific fields of pro fes sional com pe tence have been pro vided.
Since the im ple men ta tion of the in ter na tional pro fes sional reg u la tions was ac cepted by

the Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors, it was nec es sary to har mo nize the na -
tional reg u la tions with the IFAC stan dards. The As so ci a tion has ful filled this ob li ga tion and
har mo nized and adopted the na tional pro fes sional ac count ing reg u la tions, in com pli ance
with global re quire ments, trans lated and pub lished in ter na tional ac count ing and pro fes -
sional reg u la tions and the nec es sary lit er a ture for the ac qui si tion of dif fer ent lev els of pro -
fes sional qual i fi ca tions and their spe ciali sa tion.

These ac tiv i ties of the As so ci a tion have se cured an im por tant ba sis that is nec es sary for
our ac count ing pro fes sion to take its right ful place and rep u ta tion in the so ci ety. By adopt ing 
this (re vised) stan dard and new pro fes sional ed u ca tion and train ing pro grams, the con di -
tions have been cre ated for pro fes sional ac coun tants, hold ers of the doc u ments pro vided by
the As so ci a tion, to be come, in a pro fes sional sense, equal with pro fes sional ac coun tants of
de vel oped coun tries, and doc u ments pro vided by the As so ci a tion are rec og nized on all con ti -
nents, where our mem bers are al ready work ing and pro vid ing pro fes sional ser vices.
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IFAC - In ter na tional Fed er a tion of Ac coun tants 
and the Or ga ni za tion of the Ac count ing 
Pro fes sion at Global and Na tional Level

MEM BER SHIP OB LI GA TIONS OF MEM BER BOD IES IN
IM PLE MEN TA TION OF IN TER NA TIONAL PRO FES SIONAL

AC COUNT ING REGULATIONS

In March 2004, In ter na tional Fed er a tion of Ac coun tants has pub lished the State -
ment of Mem ber ship Ob li ga tions of pro fes sional as so ci a tions, its mem bers. In keep ing
with the IFAC Char ter, all pro fes sional ac coun tants who are mem bers of na tional mem ber
bod ies are re quired to meet the re quire ments re gard ing the fol low ing mem ber ship ob li -
ga tions:

1. QUAL ITY AS SUR ANCE

In or der to pro tect the pub lic in ter est, it is nec es sary that all pro fes sional ser vices pro -
vided by pro fes sional ac coun tants be sub ject to a qual ity as sur ance pro gram. Qual ity as -
sur ance is planned at three lev els: at the level of ac tiv ity, at the com pany level and at the
level of the mem ber body. The IFAC Com mit tee, through the State ments on Mem ber ship
Ob li ga tions, de ter mines that mem ber bod ies through their pro gram of qual ity as sur ance
of work and ser vices of pro fes sional ac coun tants, de sign and re al ize the qual ity as sur ance
ob li ga tions of their mem bers - pro fes sional ac coun tants, which is based on the ful fil ment
of the re quire ments con tained in the IESBA Code of Eth ics for Pro fes sional Accountants
and the International Quality Control Standard (ISQC).

In case of qual ity as sur ance re lated de fi cien cies and fail ures, the mem bers of IFAC
should rec om mend to its mem bers to cor rect their ac tiv i ties in an ap pro pri ate man ner. If
the mem bers do not meet the pro fes sional stan dards, rights and reg u la tions of the as so ci -
a tions af ter these rec om men da tions, the mem ber body should take ap pro pri ate dis ci plin -
ary mea sures. 1

2. IN TER NA TIONAL EDUCATION STANDARDS 
FOR PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS

In ac cor dance with the mis sion of IFAC, mem ber bod ies have the right and ob li ga tion
to work on the im ple men ta tion of all in ter na tional stan dards of ed u ca tion of pro fes sional
ac coun tants and that bring the na tional stan dards and pro grams of ed u ca tion and train ing 
of pro fes sional ac coun tants and spe cial ized2 pro fes sional ac coun tants into com pli ance
with the pro vi sions of In ter na tional Standards on Education IES 1-8.
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1)  Rulebook on dis ci plin ary mea sures was pub lished in Voice of Ac coun tants (Glas rаиunovoрa) no. 27. page
166. It was adopted by the Ex ec u tive Board at the ses sion held on 28.1.2016.

2)  The na tional ac count ing and ed u ca tion stan dard reg u lates the ac qui si tion of pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions
and spe cial ized pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions.



3. IN TER NA TIONAL STAN DARDS ON AU DIT ING AND AS SUR ANCE

Mem ber bod ies have an ob li ga tion to trans late and pub lish the In ter na tional Stan -
dards of Au dit ing in a timely man ner. Also, mem bers should work on con sis tent ap pli ca -
tion and com pli ance with In ter na tional Stan dards of Au dit ing. Within this mem ber ship
ob li ga tion, ad e quate train ing and con tin u ing de vel op ment of pro fes sional ac coun tants in
the field of auditing is also required.

4. CODE OF ETHICS FOR PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS

Mem ber bod ies must work on the adop tion and ap pli ca tion of the IESBA Code of Eth ics
for Pro fes sional Ac coun tants. Within these ac tiv i ties, IFAC mem bers are ob li gated to reg u -
larly up date and pub lish trans la tions of the Code of Eth ics for Pro fes sional Ac coun tants
and make it avail able to all their members.

The IFAC Code of Eth ics for Pro fes sional Ac coun tants sets out min i mum stan dards of
con duct and fun da men tal work prin ci ples to be ap plied by pro fes sional ac coun tants. No
mem ber bod ies or its mem bers who are pro fes sional ac coun tants are per mit ted to ap ply
less strin gent stan dards than those de fined by the IESBA Code of Eth ics for Professional
Accountants.

Mem ber bod ies should es tab lish the in ves ti ga tion sys tem and pro ce dures for cases of
vi o la tion of the Code of Eth ics and take ap pro pri ate dis ci plin ary ac tions3 in such cases.

5. IN TER NA TIONAL PUB LIC SEC TOR AC COUNT ING STAN DARDS

Mem ber bod ies have the right and ob li ga tion to promptly trans late and pub lish In ter -
na tional Pub lic Sec tor Ac count ing Stan dards and work on their im ple men ta tion. Mem ber
bod ies should also work on the im ple men ta tion and com pli ance with In ter na tional Stan -
dards on Au dit ing. Within this mem ber ship ob li ga tion, mem ber bod ies are re quired to
pro vide ad e quate ed u ca tion, ac qui si tion of pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions and spe cial ized
train ing and con tin u ing de vel op ment to its mem bers, pro fes sional ac coun tants who work
or pro vide ser vices in the pub lic sec tor4.

6. IN VES TI GA TION AND DIS CI PLINE

Mem ber bod ies must im ple ment the sys tem and pro ce dures for in ves ti ga tion and ap -
pli ca tion of dis ci plin ary pro ce dures in cases of vi o la tion of pro fes sional and eth i cal stan -
dards by in di vid ual mem bers - pro fes sional ac coun tants. It is par tic u larly im por tant that
these pro ce dures en vis age the pos si bil ity of los ing the right to pro vide pro fes sional ser -
vices, and in spe cial cases ex clu sion from mem ber ship. The ex is tence of such a sys tem pro -
tects cli ents and other stake holders, and the pro fes sion pub licly dem on strates that the
pub lic in ter est5 is protected by professional bodies that are members of the IFAC.

7. IN TER NA TIONAL FI NAN CIAL RE PORT ING STAN DARDS

Mem ber bod ies should sup port the work of the In ter na tional Ac count ing Stan dards
Board (IASB) by trans lat ing and pub lish ing uni fied edi tions - In ter na tional Fi nan cial Re -
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3) Code of Eth ics for Pro fes sional Ac coun tants, mem bers of the Ser bian As so ci a tion of AA, was pub lished in
Voice of Ac coun tants no. 27 in July, 2016

4) Para graphs 31.43 and 31.44 of this stan dard in tro duced a spe cial iza tion pro gram for pro fes sional ac coun -
tants in the pub lic sec tor

5) Dis ci plin ary mea sures, in clud ing ex clu sion from mem ber ship, are pro scribed in Art. 18 of the Rulebook
(Voice of Ac coun tants No. 27, page 168)



port ing Stan dards. Mem ber bod ies should also work on the im ple men ta tion and com pli -
ance with In ter na tional Fi nan cial Re port ing Stan dards. This mem ber ship ob li ga tion in -
cludes the re quire ment for ad e quate train ing, ac quir ing of pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions and
spe cial ized qual i fi ca tions, and con tin u ing de vel op ment6 of pro fes sional ac coun tants in
the field of fi nan cial re port ing in ac cor dance with the rules of the In ter na tional Fed er a tion
of Ac coun tants in the func tion of im ple ment ing the In ter na tional Fi nan cial Re port ing
Stan dards. It is the re spon si bil ity of mem ber bod ies to or ga nize ef fec tive su per vi sion over
the ap pli ca tion of IFRSs, by re view ing the fi nan cial state ments, pre pared by pro fes sional
ac coun tants, to the ex tent that these ac tiv i ties are included in the framework of the
professional quality assurance program established by Article 1 - Quality Assurance.

In ad di tion to the gen eral ap pli ca tion of the State ments on Mem ber ship Ob li ga tions,
the ful fil ment of the re quire ments de fined by the mem ber ship ob li ga tions is taken into
con sid er ation when as sess ing the com pli ance of mem ber bod ies with in ter na tional pro -
fes sional reg u la tions and prac tice. Ful fill ing these mem ber ship ob li ga tions is a re quire -
ment for the in ter na tional rec og ni tion of the qual i fi ca tions of the pro fes sional ac coun -
tants who are mem bers of na tional pro fes sional as so ci a tions7. Any incompliance by mem -
ber bod ies must be jus ti fied in or der to pro vide a sat is fac tory ex pla na tion why it de vi ated
from the ful fil ment of ob li ga tions, which could lead to suspension or even expulsion from
membership of IFAC.

7

6) The Rulebook on Con tin u ing Ed u ca tion has been pub lished in the Voice of Ac coun tants and is an in te gral
part of the mem ber body’s reg is try of pro fes sional ac coun tants.

7) The As so ci a tion suc cess fully ful fills its mem ber ship ob li ga tions as an IFAC mem ber, which is con firmed by
the rec og ni tion of the pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions pro vided by the As so ci a tion through out the world.



Pur su ant to Ar ti cle 26 Para graph 1 item. 5) of the Stat ute of Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac -
coun tants and Au di tors (No. 26, dated Jan u ary 29, 2010, cer ti fied and reg is tered in the
Reg is try of the As so ci a tion un der no. 0 000064 305370 with amend ments – the re vised
text No. 107, dated June 23, 2017, cer ti fied and reg is tered in the Reg is try of the As so ci a -
tion un der no. 000264205814), and in ac cor dance with the reg is tered ac tiv ity of the As so -
ci a tion, the As sem bly of the As so ci a tion, at the meet ing held on Feb ru ary 11, 2022 unan i -
mously adopted the re vised text of the amend ments to the Na tional Ac count ing Ed u ca tion
Stan dard ROS 31 - Pro fes sional Ed u ca tion of Ac coun tants, the re vised text1 is as follows:

ROS 31
National Accounting Education Standard – ROS 31

PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION 
AND TRAINING OF ACCOUNTANTS

A. INTRODUCTION

31.00 The Na tional Ac count ing Ed u ca tion Stan dard ROS 31 Pro fes sional Ed u ca tion And
Train ing Of Ac coun tants (here in af ter The Stan dard) is a pro fes sional reg u la tion act that,
with the goal of pro vid ing com pe tent pro fes sional services stipulates:

 the con di tions for ac cess to the mem ber ship and the pro gram of ac qui si tion of pro -
fes sional ti tles with re gards to the level of ed u ca tion and ex pe ri ence of can di dates
and as sess ment of their pro fes sional and expert competence

 the pro gram for ac quir ing pro fes sional and ex pert knowl edge and re spon si bil i ties
and es tab lish ing the ob li ga tion and the ways of the re al iza tion of con tin u ing pro fes -
sional ed u ca tion and development

 the pro gram of ad di tional train ing for ser vices in pub lic prac tice, the ac qui si tion of
spe cial ized pro fes sional de grees in ac count ing in ac cor dance with the prin ci ples of
pro fes sional com pe tence and due care 

 the pro gram of the ac qui si tion and main te nance of pro fes sional knowl edge, skills
and pro fes sional val ues, eth ics and attitudes 

 ded i cated su per vi sion and mon i tor ing of work of pro fes sional ac coun tants in keep -
ing with  pro fes sional, eth i cal, and technical 

 keep ing re cords of mem ber ship cards and pro fes sional doc u ments and main tain ing 
the reg is try of mem ber ship.
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1) The Na tional ac count ing stan dard 31 (Jugoslovenski Raиunovodstveni Stan dard 31 – JRS 31) was first
adopted by the As sem bly of the Yu go slav As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors, on De cem ber 24, 1993,
and the De ci sion was pub lished in the Of fi cial Ga zette of FRY No 88/93. 
The de ci sion on es tab lish ing the re vised ac count ing stan dard JRS 31was pub lished in the “Of fi cial 
Ga zette of Re pub lic of Ser bia”, No 85/2003, on Au gust 28, 2003. The As sem bly of Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac -
coun tants and Au di tors adopted the amend ments to the stan dard on 11.03.2005. when the name of this
stan dard has also been changed to ROS 31, and the con sol i dated text was pub lished in “Voice of Ac coun -
tants” no. 6. The As sem bly of Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors of Ser bia adopted amend -
ments to the stan dard on Feb ru ary 12, 2008, and the con sol i dated text was pub lished in “Voice of
Ac coun tants” no. 14. This re vised text in cor po rated the amend ments  of July 7, 2014 (“Voice of Ac coun -
tants” no. 30), as well as the the amend ments  of Feb ru ary 11, 2022.



NORMATIVE BASIS
(legal and professional regulations)

31.01 Stan dard was adopted by the As sem bly of the As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di -
tors on the ba sis of pub lic au thor ity un der Ar ti cle 4, with re gard to Ar ti cle 11 of the Law on
Ac count ing (“Of fi cial Ga zette of FRY”, no. 18/93). The stan dard is also based on Ar ti cle 66
of the Law on Ac count ing (“Of fi cial Ga zette of FRY”, no. 46/96), Ar ti cle 25 of the Law on the 
Amend ments to the Law Ac count ing (“Of fi cial Ga zette of FRY”, no. 74/99) and the De ci -
sion on Grant ing Con sent to the Pro vi sions of the Stat ute of Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun -
tants and Au di tors (No. 106 of Feb ru ary 2, 2000) per tain ing to dis charge of pub lic au thor i -
ties (“Of fi cial Ga zette of the FRY”, No. 15/00). Art. 2, Para graph 3, Art. 3, Para graph 1, lines
3 to 6, Art. 21 and 32 of Law on Ac count ing and Au dit ing (“Of fi cial Ga zette of FRY”, no.
71/02) and Art. 2, 16 and 73 of Law on Ac count ing and Au dit ing (“RS Of fi cial Ga zette”, no.
46/06), Act on Bud get Ac count ing (“Of fi cial Ga zette of RS”, No. 125/03 and 12/06) and the 
Statute of the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC).
31.02 Stan dard is adopted in ac cor dance with the ac tiv i ties of Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac -
coun tants and Au di tors reg is tered with the com pe tent reg is tra tion body, no. V.Fi -4865 as
fol lows:

  Re search and ex per i men tal de vel op ment in so cial sci ences – de vel op ment and pro mo -
tion of pro fes sional and eth i cal stan dards;

 ac quir ing pro fes sional ti tles of  ac coun tant, certified ac coun tant and cer ti fied pub lic
ac coun tant-cer ti fied au di tor and ac quir ing the spe cial ized pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions
stated in ar ti cle 31.43;

  The or ga ni za tion of con tin u ing ed u ca tion, con fer ences, sem i nars, sym po sia, in ter -
na tional con ven tions and other forms of pro fes sional train ing.

 De vel op ment and pub lishing of pro fes sional and ex pert pub li ca tions in ac cor dance
with the pro gram for the ac qui si tion of pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions and train ing of spe -
cial ists in spe cific ar eas of ex per tise.

31.03 The stan dard is based on the Frame work for In ter na tional Ed u ca tion State ments
and In tro duc tion to In ter na tional Ed u ca tion Stan dards. It com plies with the In ter na tional
Ed u ca tion Stan dards for Pro fes sional Ac coun tants (IES 1-8) and the rel e vant IFAC guide -
lines and state ments. Ed u ca tion pro gram is har mo nized with the pro gram of the As so ci a -
tion of Char tered Cer ti fied Ac coun tants (ACCA), The Char tered In sti tute of Pub lic Fi nance
and Ac coun tancy (CIPFA), In sti tute of In ter nal Au di tors (IIA), Char tered In sti tute of Man -
age ment Ac coun tants (CIMA) и As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Fraud Ex am in ers (ACFE).
31.04 Stan dard rec og nizes the fun da men tal prin ci ples of pro fes sional com pe tence and
due care as de fined in IFAC Code of Eth ics for Pro fes sional Ac coun tants, para graphs 130.1
to 130.6.

A. THE STAN DARD

31.10 This stan dard reg u lates the pro fes sional and ex pert train ing of ac coun tants for ac -
quir ing pro fes sional ti tles, knowl edge, skills, val ues, eth ics and at ti tudes for in de pend ent
book keep ing, prep a ra tion and draft ing of fi nan cial state ments for com pa nies, banks,
other fi nan cial in sti tu tions, non-profit or ga ni za tions, bud get us ers, en tre pre neurs and
other le gal en ti ties (here in af ter re ferred to as en ti ties). Pro fes sional and ex pert knowl -
edge is re lated to the top ics that are the sub ject of ac count ing, fi nance, in ter nal and ex ter -
nal au dit ing and con trol, and sim i lar fields of knowl edge, or ga ni za tional and busi ness
knowl edge, and skills in in for ma tion tech nol ogy. Pro fes sional skills as so ci ated with in tel -
lec tual, pro fes sional and func tional, per sonal, in ter per sonal and com mu ni ca tion, or ga ni -
za tional and busi ness man age ment skills that are needed in or der to ad e quately and ef fi -
ciently ap ply their pro fes sional and ex pert knowl edge. Pro fes sional val ues, eth ics and at -
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ti tudes mark the pro fes sional re la tion ship with the com pe ti tion, eth i cal con duct, be hav -
iour, train ing and learn ing, as well as pub lic in ter est.
 31.11 The Stan dard ap plies also to the pro fes sional train ing of per sons in pub lic prac tice,
who pro vide the ac count ing and au dit ing ser vices, per form the ac tiv i ties of book keep ing
and pre par ing fi nan cial and other state ments, within an en tity or in other man ner pro -
vided by law, for le gal en ti ties and other busi ness en ti ties, which have con ferred to that le -
gal en tity or to the con trac tor the keep ing of their busi ness re cords and the pre par ing of fi -
nan cial state ments. 
31.12 The Stan dard is also de signed to reg u late the pro fes sional train ing of per sons for
per form ing in de pend ent au dit, fo ren sic ac count ing and con trol of fi nan cial state ments, fi -
nan cial ex per tise, tax con sult ing, val u a tion of as sets and cap i tal, and other con sult ing ser -
vices. 
31.13 The Stan dard also ap plies to the pro fes sional train ing of per sons who per form le gal
and pro fes sional con trol and su per vi sion of ma jor fi nan cial op er a tions of le gal and other
en ti ties, who keep busi ness re cords in ac cor dance with the pro fes sional reg u la tions, Law
and other reg u la tions and by laws adopted on the ba sis of reg u la tions. 
31.14 This Stan dard reg u lates the ad di tional pro fes sional train ing for pro fes sional con -
trol and supervisions over the work of pro fes sional ac coun tants in pub lic prac tice 
31.15 This Stan dard also ap plies to the pro fes sional and ex pert de vel op ment of spe cial -
ized ac coun tants for those pro fes sional ac coun tants who pos sess ex cep tional com pe tence 
in the ar eas re lated to their work, which is reg u lated by the le gal, pro fes sional and in ter nal
reg u la tions of the en ti ties. 

B.  PRO FES SIONAL QUAL I FI CA TIONS

31.16 The re quired pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion for in de pend ent book keep ing and pre par -
ing of fi nan cial state ments should com ply with the re quire ments of the scope and com -
plex ity of ac tiv i ties in ac count ing for en ti ties in the real and pub lic sec tor. The pro fes sional 
qual i fi ca tion lev els of per sons, for in de pend ent book keep ing and pre par ing of fi nan cial
state ments, or for per form ing au dit, con trol and su per vi sion, con sult ing, prop erty and
cap i tal eval u a tion, fo ren sics and money laun der ing pre ven tion, eco nomic and fi nan cial
ex per tise, and other pro fes sional ac tiv i ties, are de fined in ac cor dance with those re quire -
ments, and the cor re spond ing lev els of pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions are: 

1.  Ac coun tant – Acc 
2.  Cer ti fied Ac coun tant – CA 
3.  Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tant – Cer ti fied Au di tor – CPA 

The as so ci a tion can or ga nize the ac qui si tion of other pro fes sional ti tles and spe cial iza -
tions.
31.17 An en tity, de pend ing on the level, scope and com plex ity of ac tiv i ties in its ac count -
ing, on the com plex ity of ac count ing or ga ni za tion and other cri te ria, de cides to which level 
of pro fes sional com pe tence it could del e gate book keep ing and pre par ing of fi nan cial
state ments, as well as per form ing in ter nal and ex ter nal au dit, con trol and su per vi sion,
prop erty and cap i tal eval u a tion, fo ren sic ma te rial and fi nan cial op er a tions, fraud in ves ti -
ga tion, money laun der ing pre ven tion and other op er a tions and ser vices re quired by ex -
ter nal and in ter nal reg u la tions. 
31.18 The Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors (here in af ter: SAAA), in ac cor -
dance with reg u la tions keeps and maintainsthe Reg is ter of pro fes sional ac coun tants and
is sued li censes, su per vises and con trols the work of pro fes sional ac coun tants in ac cor -
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dance with the In ter na tional Stan dards on Qual ity Con trol and the IFAC Code of Eth ics for
Pro fes sional Ac coun tants, and takes ac tion ac cord ingly. 

1.  Ac coun tant – Acc

31.19 An ac coun tant is a pro fes sional who has a re quired min i mum of knowl edge, skill,
val ues, eth ics and at ti tude for in de pend ent book keep ing and pre par ing of fi nan cial state -
ments of le gal en ti ties, as well as to pro vide other ac count ing and con sult ing ser vices to
the en ti ties with smaller scope and com plex ity of ac tiv i ties. A per son ac quires the pro fes -
sional qual i fi ca tion of an “ac coun tant”, if he/she meets the fol low ing cri te ria: 
1) he/she has finished (at least) High School 
2) he/she has at least three years of practical experience in accountancy; 
3) he/she has completed the professional examination for acquiring this professional

qualification, in the following subjects: 
1.1. Re cord ing Fi nan cial Trans ac tions 
1.2. In for ma tion for Man age ment Con trol 
1.3. Pre par ing Fi nan cial State ments 
1.4. Cost Ac count ing
1.5 Per form ing the Au dit Pro ce dures 
1.6 Tax Sys tem 
1.7 Hu man Re source and Sys tems Man age ment 
1.8 Draft ing Fi nan cial State ments 
1.9 Plan ning, Con trol and Per for mance Man age ment 
In or der to qual ify for tak ing the exam 1.8. Draft ing Fi nan cial State ments, the can di date 

must first pass the ex ams 1.1. Re cord ing Fi nan cial Trans ac tions and 1.3. Prep a ra tion of Fi -
nan cial Statements.

In or der to qual ify for tak ing the exam 1.9. Plan ning, Con trol and Per for mance Man age -
ment, the can di date must first pass the ex ams 1.2. In for ma tion Man age ment and Con trol
1.4. Cost Accounting.

The can di date for the ti tle ac coun tant, who has less prac ti cal ex pe ri ence in ac count ing
than pre scribed, can take the ex ams for the ac qui si tion of pro fes sional ti tle, but he/she
will ac quire the doc u men ta tion re lated to the pro fes sional ti tle only af ter hav ing gained
three years of practical experience.
31.20 Pro fes sional knowl edge, skill, val ues, eth ics and at ti tude re quired for in de pend ent
book keep ing and for pre par ing and cre at ing fi nan cial state ments com prises of: 
1.  The knowledge about: 

 le gal, pro fes sional and in ter nal reg u la tion; 
 role of ac count ing and au dit ing; 
 ac count ing man age ment; 
 ac count ing in for ma tion sys tem 
 ac count ing prin ci ples and In ter na tional Fi nan cial Re port ing Stan -dards (IAS – In ter -

na tional Ac count ing Stan dards/IFRS - In ter na tional Fi nan cial Re port ing Stan dards,
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IFRS for SME - In ter na tio nal Fi nan cial Re port ing Stan dards form Small and Me dium
En ti ties) and In ter na tional Pub lic Sec tor Ac count ing Stan dards;

 tax sys tem and the ap pli ca tion of tax reg u la tions and other pub lic rev e nue reg u la -
tions; 

 fi nanc ing the op er at ing ac tiv i ties; 
 fi nan cial re port ing on dif fer ent forms of or ga ni za tion.

2. Skills to perform independent bookkeeping, preparation and creation of financial
reports, which include: 
 Rec og niz ing and mea sur ing po si tions in fi nan cial state ments in ac cor dance with

rel e vant reg u la tions
 Cre at ing and ra tio nally or ga niz ing the flow of ac count ing pa pers of the op er at ing

unit, in ac cor dance with ad e quate ac count ing reg u la tions; 
 Or ga niz ing the keep ing the gen eral led ger, the day book and sub sid iary led gers, in

ac cor dance with ad e quate ac count ing reg u la tion for pub lic and real sec tor; 
 Cre at ing an an a lyt i cal ac count ing sys tem of an op er at ing unit; 
 Or ga ni za tion and re al iza tion of ac count ing pro ce dures; 
 Pre par ing fi nan cial state ments for the pur poses of in ter nal us ers; 
 Pre par ing fi nan cial and other state ments, in ac cor dance with ad e quate reg u la tion

for ex ter nal and in ter nal us ers 
3. Professional values, ethics and attitudes of professional behaviour appropriate for the

given title in keeping with the IFAC Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.
31.21 The min i mum level of com pe tences to ac quire the pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion of an
“ac coun tant” is de ter mined by ex am i na tion. 

2. Certified Ac coun tant – CA.

31.22 The Cer ti fied Ac coun tant is a pro fes sional who pos sesses the ad e quate level 
of knowl edge, skill, val ues, eth ics and at ti tudes for in de pend ent book keep ing and pre par -
ing and cre at ing of fi nan cial state ments, in ter nal au dit and con trol re ports, prop erty and
cap i tal eval u a tion, and eco nomic and fi nan cial ex per tise, per form ing the ac tiv i ties of in -
ter nal ex ter nal au dit and pro vid ing ac count ing, tax ad vi sory and other con sult ing ac tiv i -
ties. An ap pli cant ac quires the pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion of a “cer ti fied ac coun tant” if
he/she: 
1. has either: 

(a) uni ver sity de gree and at least three years of prac ti cal ex pe ri ence in ac count ing; or 
(b) uni ver sity (un der grad u ate de gree) three-year de gree and at least four years of

prac ti cal ex pe ri ence in ac count ing; or 
(c) higher ed u ca tion two-year de gree and at least five years of prac ti cal ex pe ri ence in

ac count ing; or 
(d)pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion of an “in de pend ent ac coun tant” and at least five-year

prac ti cal ex pe ri ence in this field; or 
(e) a pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion of “ac coun tant” and at least three-year prac ti cal ex pe ri -

ence in this field; 
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2. has passed the following exams: 
2.1. Pre par ing Fi nan cial State ments 
2.2. Fi nan cial in for ma tion for Man age ment 
2.3. Hu man Re source Man age ment
2.4. In for ma tion Sys tems 
2.5. Cor po rate and Busi ness Law 
2.6. Tax Sys tem 
2.7. Fi nan cial Man age ment and Con trol 
2.8. Fi nan cial Re port ing 
2.9. Au dit and In ter nal Con trol 
In or der to qual ify for tak ing the exam 2.7 Fi nan cial Man age ment and Con trol, the can -

di date must first pass the ex ams 2.2 Fi nan cial in for ma tion for man age ment.
In or der to qual ify for tak ing the exam 2.8. Fi nan cial re port ing, the can di date must first

pass the ex ams 2.1 Prep a ra tion of Fi nan cial reports.
The can di date for the ti tle “cer ti fied ac coun tant” who has less prac ti cal ex pe ri ence in

ac count ing than pre scribed can take the ex ams for the ac qui si tion of pro fes sional ti tle, but
he/she will ac quire the pro fes sional ti tle only af ter hav ing ful filled the re quire ment re -
gard ing the length of practical experience.
31.23 In ad di tion to the knowl edge, skill, val ues, eth ics and at ti tudes spec i fied in para graph
31.20, “Cer ti fied Ac coun tant” should pos sess the fol low ing pro fes sional knowl edge and skills: 
1. The knowledge about: 

 Gen eral The ory of Eco nom ics
 In ter na tional fi nan cial re port ing 
 Com par a tive eco nomic and ac count ing sys tems; 
 Na tional ac count ing stan dards; 
 The prin ci ples of or ga niz ing the ac coun tancy of var i ous op er at ing units; 
 Or ga ni za tion of ac coun tancy and ac count ing pol i cies;
 De ci sion-mak ing; 
 In ter na tional Stan dards on Au dit ing (ISAs) 
 Au dit re port cre ation and prep a ra tion elab o ra tion pro ce dures; 
 Cor po rate fi nance; 
 The ory and pol icy of cap i tal struc ture; 
 Value of shares and other se cu ri ties; 
 Port fo lio the ory and cap i tal ap praisal method; 
 Com par a tive tax sys tems; 
 Law on con tracts and torts and Com mer cial Law; 
 Fi nan cial mar kets; 

2. Skills needed to perform independently the following activities: 
 Cre ation of sep a rate and con sol i dated fi nan cial state ments; 
 Ad just ing fi nan cial state ments to the pres ent reg u la tions and to the IAS/IFRS, IFRS

for SME in con di tions of hy per-in fla tion, 
 Ana lys ing fi nan cial state ments, in ac cor dance with IAS/IFRS, IFRS for SME; 
 Con duct ing in ter nal and ex ter nal au dit, re view and su per vi sion 
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 Pre par ing planned fi nan cial state ments; 
 Prep a ra tion of cap i tal in vest ment pro pos als, 
 Pro vid ing pub lic prac tice ser vices;
 Or ga niz ing in ter nal con trols and au dit.

3. Professional values, ethics and attitudes of professional behaviour appropriate for the
given title, in keeping with the IFAC Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

31.24 The ad e quate level of com pe tences to be come a “cer ti fied ac coun tant” is de ter -
mined by ex am i na tion. 

3. Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tant – Cer ti fied Au di tor - CPA

31.25 Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tant is a per son who pos sesses the high est level of knowl -
edge, skill, val ues, eth ics and at ti tudes for in de pend ent book keep ing and pre par ing of fi -
nan cial state ments of com plex busi ness sys tems, or ga ni za tion of con trol and su per vi sion
in real and pub lic sec tor, and  pro vid ing other ac count ing, fi nan cial, au dit ing and other
con sult ing ser vices in pub lic prac tice and team work co or di na tion. The “Cer ti fied Ac coun -
tant” ac quires the pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion of a “Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tant” by ful fill ing
the fol low ing re quire ments: 
1. He/she has graduated from a Faculty of Economics
2. He/she had the professional qualification of a “Certified Accountant” and at least

three-year practical experience in the field; 
3. He/she has passed the following exams: 

3.1. Au dit and As sur ance Ser vices 
3.2. Per for mance man age ment 
3.3. Stra te gic Busi ness Plan ning and De vel op ment 
3.4. Ad vanced Cor po rate Re port ing 
3.5. Stra te gic Fi nan cial Man age ment 

31.26 In ad di tion to the knowl edge, skill, val ues, eth ics and at ti tudes, spec i fied in para -
graph 31.23, a “cer ti fied pub lic ac coun tant” should have the fol low ing knowl edge and
skills: 
1. Knowledge about: 

 Or ga niz ing the pro cesses of ac count ing, au dit, con trol and su per vi sion; 
 Qual ity con trol, in clud ing ac cess to the com plete au dit ing and con trol pro cesses; 
 Su per vi sion of the work per formed by the au dit ing team; 
 Co or di na tion of team ac tiv i ties in mak ing stra te gic de ci sions; 
 Re la tions be tween fi nan cial and non-fi nan cial in di ca tors of busi ness per for mance; 
 Man age ment as sess ment tech niques re gard ing the de ter mi na tion of costs, prices,

pro duc tion vol ume and mar ket ing strat egy; 
 Bud get ing tech niques for the needs of man age ment with the pur pose of con trol ling

the op er a tions; 
 Prin ci pal con cepts and ideas of stra te gic man age ment in the ory and in prac tice; 
 Im pact of ac count ing stan dards on the con tent of fi nan cial in for ma tion; 
 Im pact of busi ness de ci sions on fi nan cial state ments; 
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 Risk man age ment tech niques. 
 The func tion ing of se cu ri ties mar ket;
 Ac tu ar ial tech niques and re ports;
 The or ga ni za tion and func tion ing of the in ter nal con trol and au dit;
 The or ga ni za tion and de liv ery of ser vices in pub lic prac tice;
 Fi nan cial re port ing and au dit ing.

2. Skills that a professional needs to be able to provide independent accounting services
in public practice are as follows: 
 Book keep ing and prep a ra tion of fi nan cial state ments in all forms of busi ness;
 The per for mance and co or di na tion of in ter nal and ex ter nal con trols and su per vi sion;
 The per for mance and co or di na tion of ex ter nal au dit and prep a ra tion of au dit

reports;
 The or ga ni za tion of team work, ex ter nal and in ter nal au dit, con trol and sur veil lance;
 The prep a ra tion and anal y sis of in for ma tion for man age ment;
 The eval u a tion of stra te gic busi ness per for mance with rec om men da tions of ap pro -

pri ate mea sures aimed at im prove ment;
 The adop tion of an ad e quate strat egy based on the es ti mate of ob jec tives and po si -

tion of an en ter prise and their im pact on or ga ni za tion struc tures and activities;
 Prep a ra tion of fi nan cial state ments for com plex busi ness sys tems and sit u a tions;
 Anal y sis of fi nan cial state ments and is su ing pro nounce ments for dif fer ent user groups;
 The prep a ra tion and anal y sis of in for ma tion re quired for fi nan cial de ci sion-mak ing;
 Anal y sis of the im por tance of dif fer ent sources of in for ma tion re quired for fi nan cial

de ci sion-mak ing;
 Anal y sis and eval u a tion of fi nan cial in for ma tion re lat ing to past and fu ture busi ness

conditions
 Pro vid ing other ser vices in pub lic prac tice.

3. Professional values, ethics and attitudes of professional behaviour appropriate for the
given title, in keeping with the IFAC Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

31.27 The ad e quate level of com pe tences to be come a “cer ti fied pub lic ac coun tant” is de -
ter mined by ex am i na tion. 

C. EX EMP TIONS AND REC OG NI TION OF CER TAIN EX AMS

31.28 Can di dates for the ac qui si tion of ap pro pri ate pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions, on their
own re quest, on the ba sis of the de ci sion reached by the Com mit tee (with a writ ten con fir -
ma tion re gard ing passed ex ams and cur ric ula, i.e. pre sent ing the di ploma and syl labi of
the ap pro pri ate school or uni ver sity), can be ex empt from tak ing cer tain ex am i na tions,
which they had passed dur ing the pro cess of their reg u lar (ba sic) stud ies. 

Can di dates for the ac qui si tion of ap pro pri ate pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions, on their own
re quest, with a writ ten con fir ma tion re gard ing passed ex ams and cur ric ula, i.e. pre sent ing 
the di ploma and syl labi of the ap pro pri ate school or uni ver sity, can be ex empt from tak ing
cer tain ex am i na tions, which they had passed dur ing the pro cess of their post-grad u ate
mas ter’s and doc toral stud ies with dis tinct el e ments of prac ti cal ap pli ca tion of ac count -
ing, as re quired by IES stan dards of reg u lar ac count ing ed u ca tion, and a com pe tent com -
mit tee makes the de ci sion about this ex emp tion, tak ing into consideration the conditions
related to practical experience.
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31.29 Pro fes sional ac coun tant – mem ber of the SAAA, hav ing ac quired the qual i fi ca tion of 
an “Ac coun tant” un der the Ac count ing Ed u ca tion Stan dard ROS 31, is ex empt from tak ing
the ex ams – pa pers 2.1., 2.2. and 2.3. to ac quire the pro fes sional ti tle “Cer ti fied Ac coun -
tant”. 
31.30 Pro fes sional ac coun tant – mem ber of the SAAA, qual i fied as “In de pend ent Ac coun tant”, 
un der the Ac count ing Ed u ca tion Stan dard ROS 31, is ex empt from tak ing the ex ams – pa pers
2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4. and 2.5. to ac quire the pro fes sional ti tle “Cer ti fied Ac coun tant”.
31.31 Per sons who want to join the reg is tered mem ber ship of the SAAA, but had not ac -
quired the pro fes sional ti tle un der ROS 31, could sub mit a re quest to be ex empt from tak -
ing cer tain ex ams for the ac qui si tion of ap pro pri ate pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion un der this
stan dard, wholly or partly, de pend ing on the cur ric ula and sub jects they had passed in
other pro fes sional or ga ni za tions, the de ci sion on which is made by the com pe tent com -
mit tee, on the ba sis of the re quest and sub mit ted doc u men ta tion or on the ba sis of bi lat -
eral agree ments with the As so ci a tion.

D. IDEN TI FI CA TION OF COM PE TENCES 
FOR AC QUIR ING PRO FES SIONAL QUAL I FI CA TIONS

31.32 Pro fes sional knowl edge, skills, val ues, eth ics and at ti tudes re quired for in de pend ent
book keep ing, pre par ing of fi nan cial re ports, fo ren sic re ports and eval u a tion of prop erty and
cap i tal, for in ter nal and ex ter nal au dit ing, for con trol ling fi nan cial state ments, and pro vid ing
ser vices in pub lic prac tice in re spect of all of the pro fes sional and spe cial ized pro fes sional
qual i fi ca tions stated in ar ti cle 31.43 pro vided by this stan dard, are proved by can di dates at
the ex am i na tion they take be fore the ex am i na tion com mis sion, in com pli ance with this stan -
dard and other by laws of the SAAA. In the course of the ac qui si tion of pro fes sional ti tle, ap pli -
cant is re quired to be come thor oughly ac quainted with and to abide by pro fes sional reg u la -
tions and IFAC Code of Eth ics for Pro fes sional Ac coun tants.

The can di dates who pass the ex ams re quired by the pro gram will ac quire the ap pro -
pri ate pro fes sional ti tle and sta tus of a pro fes sional ac coun tant reg is tered with the As so -
ci a tion, or a spe cial ist in the spe cific field of ex per tise, i.e. all rights and ob li ga tions of a pro -
fes sional ac coun tant es tab lished by this Stan dard and the Statute of the Association.

E. PRO FES SIONAL DOC U MENTS AND THEIR UTI LI ZA TION

1. Mem ber ship card

31.33 Pro fes sional mem ber ship card is a pro fes sional doc u ment pre sented to the can di -
date, new reg is tered mem ber of the As so ci a tion, at the sign ing of the As sev er a tion, af ter
pass ing the ex ams re quired by the pro gram for the ac qui si tion of a pro fes sional ti tle. Apart 
from the name of the mem ber, as well as per sonal iden ti fi ca tion num ber, the pro fes sional
mem ber ship card con tains the in for ma tion on the ac quired pro fes sional ti tle, data of li -
censes is sued on pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions, re al ized CPD, re stric tions, im posed dis ci plin -
ary mea sures and the like. Pro fes sional ac coun tant be comes a full mem ber of the As so ci a -
tion by reg is tra tion in the Di rec tory of (Li censed) Pro fes sional Ac coun tants, which is up -
dated an nu ally.

A more de tailed de scrip tion, form and con tent of pro fes sional mem ber ship card, as
well as the man ner in which the Reg is try of Pro fes sional Ac coun tants is main tained, are
de ter mined by the com pe tent au thor ity in ac cor dance with the Stat ute of the As so ci a tion.
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2. Cer tif i cate

31.34 To the can di date who passed the ex am i na tion and ac quired the pro fes sional qual i -
fi ca tion of an “Ac coun tant”, the SAAA is sues a pro fes sional doc u ment – a cer tif i cate that
gives ev i dence of pro fes sional com pe tences for pro vid ing ac count ing ser vices in prac tice,
ac quired at the date of ex am i na tion (Ar ti cle 31.21.). 
31.34 To the pro fes sional ac coun tant who passed the ex am i na tions pro vided by the Ed u -
ca tion Pro gram and ac quired the pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion of a “Cer ti fied Ac coun tant”,
the SAAA is sues a pro fes sional doc u ment – cer tif i cate that gives ev i dence of pro fes sional
com pe tences for pro vid ing ac count ing ser vices in prac tice, ac quired at the date of ex am i -
na tion (Ar ti cle 31.24.). 
31.35 To the cer ti fied ac coun tant who passed the ex am i na tions pro vided by the Ed u ca -
tion Pro gram and ac quired the pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion of a “Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun -
tant”, the SAAA is sues a pro fes sional doc u ment - cer tif i cate that gives ev i dence of pro fes -
sional com pe tences for pro vid ing ac count ing ser vices in prac tice, ac quired at the date of
ex am i na tion (Ar ti cle 31.27). 

3. As sev er a tion

31.37 Hav ing com plied with this stan dard and the ac quired the cer tain level of pro fes -
sional qual i fi ca tion, the pro fes sional ac coun tant by sign ing the As sev er a tion when ac cept -
ing the cer tif i cate. Mem ber of a pro fes sional ac tiv ity con tin ues to ex er cise in the As so ci a -
tion, in ac cor dance with the law, the Stat ute of the As so ci a tion, the IFAC Code of Eth ics for
Pro fes sional Ac coun tants and para graph 31.41 of this stan dard.

The word ing of the as sev er a tion of the pro fes sional ac coun tant is as fol lows: “I de clare
that I ac cept the rights and ob li ga tions of a pro fes sional ac coun tant and a reg is tered mem -
ber of the As so ci a tion and that I will use pro fes sional doc u ments in ac cor dance with the
IFAC Code of Eth ics for Pro fes sional Ac coun tants, the Stat ute of the As so ci a tion, reg u la -
tions and pro fes sional stan dards and thereby pro tect the rep u ta tion of the ac count ing
pro fes sion. As a pro fes sional ac coun tant, I ac cept that if, while con duct ing my work, I fail
to re spect the pro vi sions of this sol emn dec la ra tion, my cer tif i cate and mem ber ship card
be revoked, a license on the professional qualifications taken away.

4. Pro fes sional li cense

31.38 In ac cor dance with IFAC Code of Eth ics for Pro fes sional Ac coun tants, and the IFAC In -
ter na tional Ed u ca tion Stan dard for pro fes sional ac coun tants IES 7, and in com pli ance with
the given As sev er a tion, a pro fes sional ac coun tant, the mem ber of the As so ci a tion and In ter na -
tional Fed er a tion of Ac coun tants, has the ob li ga tion of con tin u ing pro fes sional and ex pert de -
vel op ment, un der the SAAA’s Ed u ca tion Pro gram (para graph 31.41), and by vir tue of that, in
ac cor dance with the Stat ute of the SAAA, he/she is is sued an nual li cense for pro fes sional prac -
tice. Along with his sig na ture on the fi nan cial or other state ment, the pro fes sional ac coun tant
also states the num ber of his pro fes sional li cense, i.e. the num ber of the li cense on spe cial iza -
tion in spe cific fields of ex per tise, as stated in ar ti cle 31.43.

The pro fes sional doc u ments of the As so ci a tion are valid with the an nual li cense that
proves pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions.

5. Rec og ni tion and nostrification

31.39 The SAAA, in com pli ance with its by laws, global mem ber ship ob li ga tions and bi lat -
eral agree ments, per forms the rec og ni tion and nostrification of pro fes sional qual i fi ca -
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tions of the per sons who pos sess ad e quate pro fes sional knowl edge and want to join the
mem ber ship of the SAAA, and who have ac quired cer tain pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions
abroad, i.e. with other pro fes sional as so ci a tions. 

F. EX PLA NA TIONS

31.40 The fol low ing terms are used in this Stan dard with the mean ings spec i fied2: 
Pro fes sional ac coun tant is a per son who pos sesses the knowl edge, skills, val ues and

at ti tudes, i.e. who holds the ap pro pri ate pro fes sional ti tle and is a mem ber of the pro fes -
sional or ga ni za tion Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors and the In ter na -
tional Fed er a tion of Ac coun tants (IFAC). Ev ery mem ber of Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun -
tants and Au di tors is a mem ber of the In ter na tional Fed er a tion of Ac coun tants (IFAC), and 
the holder of a pro fes sional li cense on pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions in ac cor dance with the
IFAC Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

The holder of a valid li cense on pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions is a pro fes sional ac coun -
tant who meets the “other re quire ments”, and which the en ti ties de fine by their in ter nal
reg u la tions, in clud ing the level of the pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions re quired of the per son
re spon si ble for the book keep ing and pre par ing fi nan cial and other state ments, de pend ing 
on the size and com plex ity of the del e gated tasks.

Pro fes sional com pe tence of per sons for keep ing busi ness re cords in de pend ently
and for pre par ing fi nan cial state ments im pli cates the ad e quate ed u ca tion de gree, the
pro fes sional ex am i na tion suc cess fully com pleted, prac ti cal pro fes sional ex pe ri ence in
book keep ing and pre par ing fi nan cial state ments and au dit re ports, and ac com plished
con tin u ing ed u ca tion in com pli ance with this stan dard and IFAC Code of Eth ics for Pro fes -
sional Ac coun tants, which is proved by valid li cense on pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions. 

Professional ac coun tant in pub lic prac tice within the com pany and en tre pre neur
who pro vides the ser vices of book keep ing and pre par ing fi nan cial state ments, is a re spon -
si ble per son em ployed by the ser vice pro vider, the holder of an ap pro pri ate pro fes sional
ti tle and holder of a valid li cense on pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions in ac cor dance with this
stan dard and IFAC the Code of Eth ics for pro fes sional ac coun tants, by which “other re -
quire ments” are met, which the en ti ties that ser vice us ers and ser vice pro vid ers de fine in
their in ter nal pro ce dures, in clud ing the de ter mi na tion of the ap pro pri ate level of pro fes -
sional qual i fi ca tions re quired for the per son re spon si ble for the book keep ing and prep a -
ra tion of fi nan cial state ments of the user en tity, de pend ing on the vol ume and com plex ity
of the del e gated tasks.

Pro fes sional ac count ing ser vices are ser vices which re quire knowl edge and skills in
ac count ing, au dit ing, fi nance and re lated dis ci plines, in busi ness and or ga ni za tion dis ci -
plines, as well as in for ma tion sys tems and tech nol o gies. Ser vices must be car ried out in ac -
cor dance with de vel oped pro fes sional val ues, eth ics and at ti tudes, and in com pli ance with 
pro fes sional, eth i cal and tech ni cal stan dards. These in clude ac count ing, in ter nal and ex -
ter nal au dit ing and tax ad vi sory ser vices, as well as the fo ren sic ac count ing, prop erty and
cap i tal eval u a tion, and var i ous specialized consulting services in general and financial
management.

In de pend ent book keep ing, prep a ra tion and cre ation of fi nan cial state ments re -
quires that the pro fes sional ac coun tant, as in de pend ent pro fes sion ally qual i fied per son,
pos sesses pro fes sional knowl edge, skills, pro fes sional val ues, eth ics and at ti tudes so that
that he/she can im par tially, in de pend ently and ob jec tively keep ac cu rate re cords, pre -
pare and cre ate fi nan cial state ments and re ports on in ter nal and ex ter nal au dits and con -
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trol on the ba sis of gen er ally ac cepted ac count ing and ethical standards and legal
provisions (GAAP).

Fi nan cial state ments are doc u ments of var i ous eco nomic and other en ti ties, the con -
tents of which are re quired by pro fes sional and in ter nal reg u la tions and in com pli ance
with le gal pro vi sions, and the qual ity of which is the re spon si bil ity of the man age ment and 
the pro fes sional ac coun tant who pre pared and com piled them in ac cor dance with
applicable regulations.

G. CON TIN U ING PRO FES SIONAL ED U CA TION

31.41 In or der to con tin u ously im prove knowl edge, skills, pro fes sional val ues, eth ics and
at ti tudes, spec i fied in para graph 31.20, 31.23, 31.26 and 31.43, a pro fes sional ac coun tant
reg is tered with the SAAA has the right and ob li ga tion to the con tin u ing pro fes sional de vel -
op ment, in ac cor dance with the IFAC Code of Eth ics for Pro fes sional Ac coun tants, Ar ti cles
130.1-130.6, the Stat ute of the SAAA, IFAC In ter na tional Ed u ca tion Stan dard for pro fes -
sional ac coun tants (IES 7) – Con tin u ing Pro fes sional Ed u ca tion. “. The ob li ga tion of con -
tin u ing ed u ca tion is achieved by fol low ing the pro fes sional lit er a ture and at tend ing a va ri -
ety of sem i nars and other forms of ed u ca tion, on the ba sis of what re quired num ber of
points per year or per three years is achieved, in com pli ance with the spe cial act – Reg u la -
tion on Con tin u ing Ed u ca tion of Reg is tered Mem bers of the As so ci a tion, as re corded in the 
Di rec tory of pro fes sional li censed ac coun tants, which is pub lished an nu ally in the “Voice
of ac coun tants” (“Glas raиunovoрa“) and reg u larly up dated, i.e. ev i denced by the an nual li -
cense on pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions which is given to the mem ber, and by which the va lid -
ity of the doc u ments pro vided by the As so ci a tion is ver i fied and the ful fill ment of the CPD
re quire ments proved.
31.42 A pro fes sional ac coun tant who does not re al ize con tin u ous ed u ca tion as stated in
ar ti cle 31.41. of this Stan dard, in the re quired num ber of points over a three-year pe riod is
no lon ger con sid ered qual i fied pro fes sional per son in ac cor dance with para graphs 100.4
and 130.1 to 130.6 of IFAC Code of Eth ics for Pro fes sional Ac coun tants. The mem ber has
the ob li ga tion to take a spe cial ex am i na tion pro gram spec i fied and im ple mented by the
Cen tral Ex am i na tion Com mis sion, if that mem ber wants to re store the sta tus of reg is tered
mem ber of the As so ci a tion.

If a pro fes sional ac coun tant does not pass the exam de fined by the first para graph of
this Ar ti cle, he/she shall be re moved from the Reg is ter of li censed pro fes sional ac coun -
tants and he/she will lose, in terms of the As sev er a tion, the rights of pro fes sional
accountant.

H. PRO FES SIONAL SPE CIAL IZED DE VEL OP MENT (SPE CIAL IZA TIONS)

31.43 To pro fes sional ac coun tants, with the rel e vant ex am i na tion, the As so ci a tion shall
is sue cer tif i cates, li censes, or con fir ma tions ver i fy ing that they have a dis tinct com pe tence 
in ar eas re lated to their work for the fol low ing spe cial ized pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions:

 Cer ti fied public sec tor ac coun tant
 Man age ment ac coun tant
 Fo ren sic ac coun tant
 In ter nal au di tor
 Cer ti fied eval u a tor
 Tax ad vi sor

31.44 The cer tif i cates, li censes or con fir ma tions shall be is sued un der the fol low ing con -
di tions:
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 the re quire ments spec i fied in the pro gram for spe cific spe cial ized pro fes sional
qual i fi ca tions have been ful filled

 the re quire ments spec i fied in para graph 31.40 have been ful filled;
 at least three years of prac tice in the rel e vant spe cial ized pro fes sional field of work,

if it has not been de ter mined oth er wise by this stan dard; 
The qual i fi ca tion of “cer ti fied pub lic sec tor ac coun tant” may be ac quired by a “cer ti fied 

ac coun tant” who meets the re quire ments of para graph 31.41 of this stan dard and passes
two ex ams, ac cord ing to the pro gram for this spe cial ized qualification, namely:

  Pub lic fi nances;
  Fi nan cial re port ing in the pub lic sec tor.
Ex cep tion ally, the ob li ga tion to pass the exam re ferred to in para graph 2 of this ar ti cle

shall not be ap plied to the pro fes sional ac coun tant who meets the re quire ments of para -
graph 2 of ar ti cle 31.51. of this standard.
31.45 The con di tion for ob tain ing the doc u ments on spe cial ized pro fes sional qual i fi ca -
tion is mas ter ing of the spe cial ized pro gram rel e vant to the spe cial ized pro fes sional qual i -
fi ca tion, ed u ca tion and in no va tion of knowl edge. The As so ci a tion is sues spe cial doc u -
ments to the mem bers who have suc cess fully fin ished spe cial ized sem i nars and con fer -
ences, which are or ga nized sep a rately or within the frame work of con tin u ing ed u ca tion.

I. TRAN SITIONAL PRO VI SIONS

31.46 The mem bers of the SAAA – qual i fied as “ac coun tants”, who ac quired their pro fes -
sional ti tle un der JRS 31 prior to the ef fec tive date of this re vised stan dard (ROS 31), shall
re main qual i fied as “ac coun tants”, if they have met the CPD re quire ments as stated in the
ar ti cle 31.41 of this Stan dard. 
31.47 The mem bers of the SAAA – qual i fied as “in de pend ent Ac coun tants”, who ac quired
their pro fes sional ti tle un der JRS 31 prior to the ef fec tive date of this re vised stan dard
(ROS 31), shall re main qual i fied as “in de pend ent ac coun tants”, if they have met the CPD
re quire ments as stated in the ar ti cle 31.41 of this Stan dard. 
31.48 The mem bers of the SAAA – pro fes sion ally qual i fied as “cer ti fied ac coun tants”, who
ac quired their pro fes sional ti tle un der JRS 31, or the pro fes sional ti tle “au di tor” un der the
pro gram of Fed eral Gov ern ment, prior to the ef fec tive date of this re vised stan dard (ROS
31), re main qual i fied as “cer ti fied ac coun tants”, if they have met the CPD re quire ments as
stated in the ar ti cle 31.41 of this Stan dard. 
31.49 The mem bers of the SAAA – qual i fied as “cer ti fied au di tors”, who per form their au -
dit ac tiv i ties pro fes sion ally, and who ac quired the pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion of “cer ti fied
au di tor” un der JRS 31, prior to the ef fec tive date of this re vised stan dard (ROS 31), on per -
sonal de mand ac quire the pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion of “cer ti fied pub lic ac coun tant”. 
31.50 Mem bers of the SAAA whose pro fes sional ti tle had been rec og nized by the As so ci a -
tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors of Yu go sla via, in ac cor dance with Ar ti cle 72 of Law on
Ac count ing (“Of fi cial Ga zette of FRY”, no. 46/96) or if they ac quired their qual i fi ca tions
with the As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors of Yu go sla via, re tain the rec og nized, i.e.
ac quired pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions, in ac cor dance with this stan dard and other by laws of 
the SAAA, if they have met the con tin u ing ed u ca tion re quire ments in ac cor dance with ar ti -
cle 31.41 of this stan dard.
31.51 Hold ers of pro fes sional ti tles in para graphs 31.46, 31.47, 31.48, 31.49 and 31.50, as
well as hold ers of pro fes sional-tech ni cal ti tles ob tained with other pro fes sional or ga ni za -
tions, who join the mem ber ship of the SAAA, and who have met the ob li ga tions from para -
graphs 31.37, 31.38 and 31.41, shall re tain oc cu pa tional rights and ob li ga tions, in re gards
to which the SAAA is sues an ap pro pri ate li cense on pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions. 
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The mem ber of the As so ci a tion who holds the pro fes sional ti tle of “Cer ti fied Ac coun -
tant” or “Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tant”, and who has at least five years of ex pe ri ence in the
pub lic sec tor in ac count ing, fi nance, plan ning, anal y sis, in ter nal and ex ter nal con trol and
au dit ing and other com pat i ble fields, on a per sonal re quest, shall be granted the spe cial -
ized pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion of “Cer ti fied pub lic sec tor ac coun tant” if he has meet the
CPD re quire ments stated in ar ti cle 31.41 of this stan dard. The pro vi sions of this stan dard
re lat ing to the ac qui si tion and rec og ni tion of the spe cial ized pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion
“Cer ti fied Pub lic Sec tor Ac coun tant” shall con se quently ap ply to the ac qui si tion and
recognition of the professional specialized qualification of “Public Sector Accountant”.

A mem ber of the As so ci a tion who is the holder of a pro fes sional ti tle “Cer ti fied Ac coun -
tant” or “Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tant” who has at least five years of prac tice while hold ing
this qual i fi ca tion, and who pos sesses out stand ing com pe tence in a par tic u lar field, on a
per sonal re quest, shall be granted the ap pro pri ate spe cial ized pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion
re ferred to in ar ti cle 31.43 of this Stan dard, if the mem ber has met the re quire ments
stated in article 31.44, paragraph 1 of this standard.

J. IM PLE MEN TA TION OF THE STAN DARD

31.52 This Stan dard in cludes: the Train ing Pro grams for Ac quir ing Pro fes sional Ac coun -
tancy Qual i fi ca tions and Spe cial ized Pro fes sional Ac coun tancy Qual i fi ca tions stated in ar -
ti cle 31.52 of this stan dard.
31.53 The by laws, spec i fied in para graph 31.51, a Rulebook on tak ing ex am i na tions for
ac quir ing ac coun tancy qual i fi ca tions, as well as spe cial ized pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions,
and a Rulebook on Con tin u ing Pro fes sional Ed u ca tion. 
31.53 The Pro gram of Con tin u ing Pro fes sional Ed u ca tion and Spe cial ized Pro fes sional
Ed u ca tion, as well as the im ple men ta tion guide lines, are adopted by the Ex ec u tive Com -
mit tee of theSAAA. 
31.54 The Yu go slav Ac count ing Stan dard 31 (JRS 31) had been adopted by the As sem bly
of the Yu go slav As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors, on De cem ber 24, 1993, and the
De ci sion was pub lished in the “FRY Of fi cial Ga zette” No 88/93. 

By the de ci sion of the As sem bly of Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors, of
June 25. 2003, this na tional ac count ing ed u ca tion stan dard was re vised and the de ci sion
was pub lished in the “RS Of fi cial Gazette”, no. 85/03. 

By the de ci sion of the As sem bly of Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors, of
March 11. 2005, the name of this stan dard was changed into ROS 31.

The amend ments of Feb ru ary 12. 2008, were to com ply with the IFAC In ter na tional
Ed u ca tion Stan dards IES 1-8, the ba sic prin ci ples of IFAC Code of Eth ics for Pro fes sional
Ac coun tants set by para graphs 130.1-130.6.

The amend ments to the Na tional Ac count ing Ed u ca tion Stan dard ROS 31, of July 07,
2014 and Feb ru ary 11, 2022, came into force on the day fol low ing the date of pub li ca tion
and are in cor po rated in this re vised text which will ap ply from the day fol low ing its pub -
lish ing in the pub li ca tion “Voice of accountants.”3

Pres i dent

Mi lan Protrka,
Cer ti fied Ac coun tant
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EDUCATION PROGRAMS FOR
ACQUIRING PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS

TRAINING PROGRAM FOR ACQUIRING 
THE PROFESSIONAL TITLE OF AN “ACCOUNTANT”

1.1. RECORDING FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS 

PURPOSE 

To develop knowledge and understanding of operational aspects of maintaining the
accounting systems and procedures related to invoicing, collecting and payment,
recording of income and expenditures, preparation of the general ledger accounts, and
preparation of the opening trial balance. 

OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this exam, candidates should be able to: 
• Differentiate the types of business transactions and do cu men ta tion; understand

basic principles of business law and data pro tec tion; 
• Prepare basic accounts of the general ledger within double entry bookkeeping

system; 
• Record income and credit payments; 
• Explain and calculate disputable and doubtful receivables; 
• Record purchases, expenses, and payments to suppliers; 
• Calculate banking transactions; 
• Keep general records on cash and balance in cash; 
• Prepare reports for reconciliation with banks; 
• Record the salary payment transactions; 
• Prepare and adjust the control accounts; 
• Prepare the opening trial balance and identify and correct the errors by using data

as to of journal entries. 



CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Business Transactions and Documentation 

a. Types of Busi ness Trans ac tions 
I Sales 
II Purchase 
III Collection 
IV Payments 
V Cash accounts 
VI Wages and salaries 

b. Types of Work ing Pa pers 
I Inquiries 
II Sales and buying orders 
III Delivery notes 
IV Invoices 
V Credit note 
VI Debit note 
VII Statements 
VIII Remittance reports 
IX Receipts 
X Internal order of cheques 
XI Cash orders 
XII Payment lists 

c. Ba sic Prin ci ples of Reg u la tions and Busi ness Pol icy 
I Obligation law 
II Regulation of sales of goods 
III Policies of documents protection 
IV Data protection 

2. Double Entry Bookkeeping 

a. Dou ble En try Book keep ing Trans ac tions 
I Nature and role of primary notes 
II Types of accounts in the general ledger 
III Double entry bookkeeping in respective accounts of the general ledger 
IV Balancing of the general ledger accounts 

b. Clas si fi ca tion of Ex penses 
I Capital 
II Current 

c. Clos ing the Ac counts 
3. Banking Transactions and Cash Accounts 

a. Sources of Funds and Doc u men ta tion 
I Types of receipts/payments: cash, cheques, automated payments, credit

cards, debit cards, automated bank credits 
II Accompanying information: invoice, letter of credit, remittances, statement 
III Unusual circumstances: misfiled cheques, cheques with expired validity, over -

drawing the credit and debit cards limits, variations, and insufficient support
documentation. 
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b. Pay ments on Bank 
I Bank’s documents: deposit orders, documents regarding credit and debit

cards 
II Methods of money handling and safeguarding, including safety aspect 

c. Re cords on Pay ments and Money In flows 
I Cash book – manually kept 
II The manual general ledger and book of accounts payable 
III Computerized records 

d. Ap proval and Pay ment 
I Documentation: cheques’ orders 
II Approval 

e. Keep ing the Cash Re cords 
I Documentation: cash orders 
II Approval 
III Money safety 
IV Inquiries: unauthorized payment orders, insufficient supporting docu men ta -

tion, requests over permissible 
V Cash receipts and disbursements journal – manually kept 
VI Methods of advance and post payment 
VII Reconciliation between cash receipts and disbursements journal and cash 

4. Sales and Sales Accounting 

a. Sales and Claims 
I Source documents 
II Invoices and credit notes 
III General principles of turnover tax 
IV Types of discount 
V Methods of data coding 
VI Daily sales book (book of outgoing invoices) 
VII Daily claims book 
VIII Approval 

b. Sales Ac count ing 
I The general ledger – manually kept 
II Book of accounts receivable – manually kept 
III Computerized books 
IV Statements 
V Analysis of the age of accounts receivable 
VI Communication with customers (oral and written) 
VII Credit limitations 
VIII Disputable and doubtful receivables 

5. Purchases and Purchase Accounting 

a. Pur chase and Claims 
I Ordering systems: via Internet, oral and written 
II Source documents 
III Suppliers’ invoices and debit notes 
IV Types of discount 
V Methods of data coding 
VI Daily purchase book (book of incoming invoices 
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VII Daily claims book 
b. Pur chase Ac count ing 

I The general ledger – manually kept 
II Book of account payable – manually kept (suppliers’ ledger) 
III Computerized books 
IV Statements 
V Analysis of the age of accounts payable 
VI Communication with suppliers: (oral and written), incorrect calculations,

incomplete deliveries, double invoicing, incorrectly calculated discounts 
6. Salary Payment 

a. Re cords on Sal ary Pay ment Trans ac tions 
I Documentation: payrolls 
II Approval 
III Methods of payment: cash, checks, automated 
IV Inquiries 
V Safety and control 
VI Cash book 
VII The general ledger 

7. The Control Accounts and the Opening Trial Balance 

a. Rec on cil i a tion with Bank 
I General banking functions and functioning of bank clearing 
II Forms and functions of banking documents 
III tatements regarding reconciliation with bank 

b. Con trol Ac counts 
I Different types of errors 
II Correction of errors (including daily books) 
III Adjustment of control accounts within the general ledger: book of accounts

receivable (buyers), books of account payable (suppliers). 
c. The Trial Bal ance 

I Opening trial balance 
II Discovering the errors 
III Temporary accounts 

1.2. INFORMATION FOR MANAGEMENT CONTROL 

PURPOSE 

Developing the capability to use computer systems in a safe and efficient manner and
understanding the need of confidentiality and security of data and information. Acquiring
knowledge and understanding about how organizations provide basic information for
management decision-making, planning and control. 
OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this exam, candidates should be able to: 
• Perform simple visual examinations of hardware’s safety and follow relevant

procedures for retrieving and turning off the systems 
• Understand the purpose of passwords 
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• Access, change, save, and print documents and other files and exit the relevant
program 

• Use relevant titles of computer files and folders 
• Comply with saving procedures and procedures for keeping the back-up copies of

computer files 
• Recognize different types of risk including “viruses” and “hackers” 
• Understand relevant regulations related to data protection, printing permissions,

health, and protection of notes’ safety 
• Ask for help when facing with difficulties that may arise from the use of computers 
• Recognize management need for information 
• Identify different elements of cost and prices 
• Determine different sources of income and expenses 
• Identify and correctly separate income and expenses 
• Correctly resolve problems/mistakes 
• Compare costs and expenses 
• Use relevant software applications for accessing, analyzing, pre senting and dis se m i -

na t ing the information (accounting package, spreadsheets, text processors and
elec tronic mail) 

• Properly use confidential information 
• Present information in accordance with suggested procedures. 

CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Safe and Effective Usage of Computer Systems 

a. Vi sual Ex am i na tion of Safety 
I Hardware components 
II Connections and cables 

b. Types of Sys tems 
I Stand-alone personal computer (PC) 
II Network of connected PCs 
III Mainframe with terminals 

2. Safety, Confidentiality, and Legal Issues 

a. Con fi den ti al ity 
I System access control 
II Protection of individual files (documents or spreadsheets) 

b. Safety 
I Backup files 
II Archiving 
III Safeguarding 
IV Theft and fraud 

c. Le gal reg u la tions 
I Data protection legislation 
II VDU regulations 
III Health and safety regulations related to work with computers 
IV Safekeeping of documents and notes 
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3. Management Information 

a. In tro duc tion to Man age ment In for ma tion 
I Relationship between financial and management accounting 
II Purpose of management information: decision-making, planning and control 

b. Man age ment Re port ing 
I Methods of obtaining, analyzing, presenting and transmitting the information

(including letters, notes, reports, and elec tronic messages) 
II Work with confidential information 
III Application of software in connection with articles b.I and II 
IV Understanding of the organization’s accounting system and administrative

procedures 
4. Income and Expenses 

a. El e ments of Price/Cost 
I Material 
II Labour (including gross wages and salaries) 
III Costs 

b. Re spon si bil ity Cen tres 
I Cost centres 
II Profit centres 
III Investment centres 

c. Rel e vant Doc u ments/Sources of In for ma tion 
I Orders and suppliers’ invoices 
II Sales orders and sales invoices 
III Rule book of the firm 
IV Wages and salaries 
V Reports to management and workbooks 

d. Or ga ni za tion Struc ture 
I Coding system 
II Classification of costs 

5. Comparisons 

a. Com par a tive Sources of In for ma tion 
I Historical data 
II Current period data 
III Forecasts 
IV The general ledgers 

b. Vari ances 
I Unfavourable/favourable 
II Reports on exceptions 
III Controllable/non-controllable 
IV Reports 

6. Decision-making 

a. Cal cu la tion of Mar ginal Costs 
I Contributions 
II Breakeven point 
III Margin-of-safety 
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b. Man age ment In for ma tion 
I Relevant sources of information 
II Usage for the purposes of decision-making 
III Role in organization 

1.3. PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PURPOSE 

To gain knowledge and understanding of accounting techniques and preparation of
the closing balances of entities. 
OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this exam, candidate should be able to: 
• Understand, describe and apply relevant accounting concepts, policies, and stan -

dards 
• Keep records on capital acquiring and renunciation 
• Perform reconciliations in preparation of the financial statements 
• Identify, calculate and record respective corrections 
• Prepare and finish the extended trial balance 
• Prepare the closing balances of independent entrepreneurs 
• Prepare the closing balances of partnerships. 

CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Basics of Bookkeeping 
a. Na ture and Con fi den ti al ity of Busi ness Trans ac tions 
b. Dou ble En try Book keep ing 
c. Cap i tal and Cur rent Ex penses 
d. As sets, Li a bil i ties, Rev e nue and Ex penses
e. The Open ing Trial Bal ance 
f. Form of the Sim ple Clos ing Bal ances 

I Profit and Loss Account  
II Balance Sheet 

g. Pol i cies, Reg u la tions and Time Sched ules of the Or ga ni za tion in Prep a ra tion of the
Clos ing Bal ances 

2. Accounting Standards, Principles and Policies 

a. Ac count ing Stan dards (IAS and IFRS) 
b. Ac count ing Prin ci ples 

I Going concern 
II Accrual basis 
III Consistency 
IV Prudence 

c. Ac count ing Pol i cies 
I Relevance 
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II Reliability 
III Comparability 
IV Understandability 

3. Fixed Assets and Amortization 

a. Fixed As sets and De pre ci a tion 
I Acquiring 
II Property register 
III Accounting treatment 
IV Disposal 
V Spare parts replacement 
VI Authorisation 
VII Keeping records on capital 

b. De pre ci a tion 
I Straight-line method 
II The reduced balance 

4. The Control Accounts, Reconciliation and Errors 

a. Rec on cil i a tion 
I Reconciliation of the accounts payable in the general ledger 
II Reconciliation of the accounts receivable in the general ledger 
III Reconciliation with the bank 

b. De tec tion of Er rors 
I Incorrect double entry bookkeeping 
II Non-recorded changes 
III Numerical errors 
IV Incomplete information 

c. Cor rec tion of er rors 
I Suspense accounts 
II Journal entries 

5. Reconciliation with the Trial Balance 

a. Ac cru als and pre pay ments 
b. De pre ci a tion 
c. Dis put able and Doubt ful Re ceiv ables 
d. Clos ing the In ven tory Ac counts (and In ven tory Es ti ma tion) 
d. The Ex tended Trial Bal ance 
f. Pro vi sions 

6. The Closing Accounts 

a. In com plete Re cords 
b. Ac counts of In de pend ent En tre pre neurs 

I Profit and Loss Account 
II Balance Sheet 

c. Ac counts of Part ner ships 
I Profit and Loss Account 
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II Profit participation 
III Balance Sheet 
IV Capital and current accounts of the partners 

1.4. COST ACCOUNTING 

PURPOSE 

To gain knowledge and understanding of methods used by organizations for re cord -
ing, analysing and reporting on data related to current and future costs, and for internal
usage. 
OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this exam, candidates should be able to: 
• Explain the role of management accounting within organization and management

requests for information 
• Describe costs by types and behaviour 
• Identify respective material, labour and overhead costs 
• Understand and apply principles of calculating the marginal and absorption costs 
• Understand and calculate production costs and cost of services 
• Understand and apply methods of costs and income estimation. 

CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Information for Management 

a. Na ture and Pur pose of In ter nal Re port ing 
I Financial and non-financial information for managers 
II Cost, profit, and investment centres and their influence on data for ma na -

gement assessments 
b. Man age ment Re quests for In for ma tion 

I Definition and importance of good information 
II Presenting the information 
III Role of accounting technicians and accounting information 
IV Role of Information Technology (IT) 

c. Main tain ing the Ad e quate Cost Ac count ing Sys tem 
I Cost units and responsibility centres 
II Sources of relevant data 
III Methods of recording, processing and keeping the relevant data 
IV Analysis and dissemination of data on operating result 

2. Classification and Behaviour of Costs 

a. Clas si fi ca tion of Costs 
I Classifications used in the purpose-based cost accounting 

b. Be hav iour of Costs 
I Models of costs’ behaviour 
II Identification of fixed, variable and semi-variable costs 
III Usage of fixed, variable and semi-variable costs in cost analysis 
IV Analysis of influence of different levels of activity on cost units 
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3. Elements of Cost 

a. Ma te rial 
I Direct and indirect material costs 
II Methods of inventory control and valuation, including FIFO, LIFO and method

of weighted average costs 
III Relationship between material costing system and inventory control system 

b. La bour 
I Direct and indirect labour costs 
II Methods of wages and salaries calculation and payment 
III Relationship between labour costing system and accounting system for wages

and salaries calculation 
c. Over head 

I Direct and indirect costs 
II Procedures and documents related to costs 
III Relationship between accounting system and costing system 

4. Calculation of Marginal and Absorption Costs 

a. Cal cu la tion of Mar ginal Costs 
b. Cal cu la tion of Ab sorp tion Costs 

I Basis of indirect costs (overhead costs) allocation and distribution on res -
ponsibility centres 

II Basis of absorption 
III Over and under absorption of overhead costs 

c. Cal cu la tion of Mar ginal Costs ver sus Cal cu la tion of Ab sorp tion Costs for the Pur -
poses of Cost ing and Reporting 

5. Production Costs and Cost of Services 

a. Costs of Work and Batch 
I Characteristics 
II Direct and indirect costs 

b. Costs of Pro duc tion Pro cess 
I Characteristics 
II Ordinary and extraordinary losses and gains 
III Accounting for scrap 
IV Closing the work-in-progress and equivalent units 
V Complex products and by-products 

c. Cal cu la tion of Cost of Ser vices 
I Characteristics 
II Cost units 

6. Estimates of Costs and Income 

a. Anal y sis of Cost, Vol ume and Profit (CVP Anal y sis) 
I Analysis of breakeven point 
II Margin-of-safety 
III Targeted profit 
IV Ratio contribution/sales 
V Simple breakeven chart and profit-volume chart 
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b. De ci sion-mak ing 
I Concept of relevant costs 
II Short-run decisions 
III Optimal production plan under conditions of scarce resources 

c. Tech niques of Dis counted Cash Flows 
I Simple and compound interest 
II Nominal and real interest 
III Discounted cash flows 
IV Annuities 
V Payback period 

1.5. PERFORMING THE AUDIT PROCEDURES 

PURPOSE 

To develop knowledge and understanding of the audit process, from planning phase to
reporting phase, and of techniques used during internal and external audit. 
OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this exam, candidates should be able to: 
• Explain the rules of professional conduct in regard to ethical understanding of

integrity, objectivity, independence and confidentiality, and implement audit pro ce -
dures in accordance with it 

• Identify control objectives and weaknesses of accounting system that is being
examined 

• Assess audit risk, prepare the audit plan, and devise respective audit procedures 
• Implement respective audit procedures in accordance with the audit plan and based 

on properly selected sample 
• Draw correct conclusions based on the results of audit test 
• Prepare draft report on audit engagement 

CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Business Environment 

a. Na ture of Ac count ing Notes, Au dit ing, and Au dit Re port 
b. Re quire ments for au dit 
c. Au di tor’s Du ties 
d. Au di tor’s Re spon si bil i ties 
e. Fraud and Er ror 

I Obligation to clients 
II Obligation to third parties 

2. Framework for Auditing 

a. Ex ter nal and In ter nal Au dit ing 
b. Reg u la tory Frame work for Au dit ing 

I Standards on auditing 
II Requirements of professional bodies 
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c. Au dit En gage ment Pro cess 

3. Audit Personnel 

a. Au dit Team 

b. Re la tions with Cli ent’s Staff 

c. Re la tions with Third Par ties 
I Expert 
II Internal Auditing 

4. Audit Planning 

a. Na ture of Au dit Plan and Au dit Pro gram 

b. Knowl edge of the Busi ness 

c. Risk 

d. Ma te ri al ity 

e. Doc u men ta tion 

f. Meet ing re lated to Au dit Plan ning 

5. Accounting Systems and Controls 

a. Na ture of Ac count ing Sys tems 

b. Gen eral Prin ci ples of Con trol 

c. Tech niques for Ac count ing Sys tems Re cord ing 
I Illustrations and Notes 
II Walkthroughs 

d. Tech niques for Ac count ing Sys tems Val u a tion 
I Inquiries of internal controls 
II Valuation of inquiries of internal controls 
III Control lists 

e. Ma jor Con trol Cy cles (man ual and com put er ised) 
I Income (sales) 
II Expenses (purchase/inventory/fixed assets/wages and sala ries/costs) 
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f. Con trol test ing 
g. Re ports on Con trol Weak nesses 

6. Audit Evidence and Sampling 

a. Ver i fi ca tion of Fi nan cial State ments 
b. Au dit Ev i dence and Pro ce dures 
c. Ver i fi ca tion Tech niques – Phys i cal In spec tion, Re-per for mance, Con fir ma tions

from Third Par ties, Tes ti fy ing and An a lyt i cal Re view 
d. Au dit Sam pling 
e. Types of Tests – Tests of Con trols and Sub stan tive Tests 
f. Com puter-As sisted Au dit Tech niques 
g. Au dit of Bal ance Sheet Items – Ex is tence, Com plete ness, Ow n er ship, Val u a tion, and

Dis clo sure 
7. Performing the Audit 

a. Au di tor’s Ex am i na tion 
I Events after the balance sheet date 
II Going concern concept 
III Opening and comparative balances 

b. An a lyt i cal Pro ce dures 
c. Re cord ing the Rel e vant and Ma te rial Er rors 
d. Re view by Se nior Mem bers of Au dit Per son nel 
e. Re port on Au dit Con clu sions (Re port to a Part ner) 
f. Rep re sen ta tion Let ter 

8. Auditor’s Report 

a. Stan dard Au di tor’s Re port 
b. Qual i fi ca tions in Au di tor’s Re port 

1.6. TAX SYSTEM 

PURPOSE 

To develop skills in preparing the calculations of tax liabilities of physical persons and
entities – residents and non-residents – for the pur po ses of calculation of income tax,
corporation tax, capital gains tax, and value-added tax. In addition, to improve knowledge
and un der stan ding of the methods of dealing with Tax Administration and Customs Office, 
including knowledge of legally prescribed timetables for filing the tax returns and tax
payments, as well as the acquaintance of the maturity dates of tax liabilities. 
OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this exam, candidates should be able to: 
• Explain how national tax system functions 
• Prepare calculation of gain/loss as a result of business relations 
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• Calculate income 
• Prepare calculation of property and investment income 
• Calculate income tax 
• Prepare calculation of capital gains tax as a result of sales of property
• Prepare calculation of tax and contributions for firms 
• Identify and calculate value-added tax 
• Identify dates of filing the tax returns and tax payments 
• Give advices to clients in connection with tax liabilities 
• Properly deal with Tax Administration and Customs Office, as well as with clients 

CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Personal Income Tax 

a. Gen eral Prin ci ples of Per sonal In come Tax 
b. Tax able Per sonal In come 
c. Tax a tion of Dif fer ent Types of Per sonal In come 
d. An nual Per sonal In come Tax 
e. Tax payer 
f. Res i dents and Non-res i dents 
g. Tax De duc tions 
h. Tax Credit 
i. Avoid ance of Dou ble Tax a tion 
j. Tax a tion of Cer tain Types of Per sonal In come 

I. Payroll tax 
II. Income tax on agriculture and forestry 
III. Income tax on independent activities 
IV. Income tax on copyright and industrial property rights 
V. Capital Yield Tax 
VI. Property Income Tax 
VII. Capital Gains Tax 
VIII. Tax on Other Income 

k. Tax As sess ment and Pay ment 
l. Pre sent ing the tax re turn 
m. As sess ing and Col lect ing the Taxes 
n. Forced Tax Col lec tion 
o. War ranty, Tax Re fund, and Ex pi ra tion 
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2. Contributions 

a. Health In sur ance Con tri bu tion 
b. Pen sion In sur ance Con tri bu tion 
c. Other Con tri bu tions 

3. Corporate Income Tax 

a. Cat e go ries of Tax pay ers 
b. Res i dents and Non-res i dents 
c. Tax Ba sis 

I. Taxable Income 
II. Reconciliation of Expenses 
III. Reconciliation of Income 
IV. Capital Gains and Losses 
V. Tax Treatment of Corporate Losses 

d. Tax Treat ment of Tax payer Liq ui da tion and Bank ruptcy 
e. Tax In te gra tion 
f. Tax Rate 
g. Tax In cen tives 

I. Accelerated depreciation 
II. Tax exemptions 
III. Tax credits 

h. Elim i na tion of Dou ble Tax a tion of In come Re al ized Abroad 
I. Inter-companies dividends 

i. Group Tax a tion and Trans fer Prices 
I. Tax consolidation 
II. Avoidance of double taxation of dividends earned by participation in other

taxpayer’s capital 
III. Transfer prices 
IV. Interest “out of arm’s length” and preventing the thinning capitalization 

j. As sess ment and Col lec tion of Cor po rate In come Tax 
I. Filing the tax return 
II. Tax assessment 
III. Tax after deduction 
IV. Complaint 
V. Basis of the procedure 
VI. Tax collection 
VII. Forced tax collection 

4. Property Tax 

a. Prop erty Tax 
I. The object of taxation 
II. Taxpayer 
III. Tax base 
IV. Occurrence of tax liability 
V. Tax rates 
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VI. Tax exemptions 
VII. Tax credits 

b. In her i tance and Gift Tax 
I. The object of taxation 
II. Taxpayer 
III. Tax base 
IV. Occurrence of tax liability 
V. Tax rates 
VI. Tax exemptions 
VII. Tax credit 

c. Tax on Ab so lute Rights Trans fer 
I. The object of taxation 
II. Taxpayer 
III. Tax base 
IV. Occurrence of tax liability 
V. Tax rates 
VI. Tax exemptions 

d. As sess ment and Col lec tion of Prop erty Tax 
I. Tax assessment 
II. Warranty 

5. Excise Tax 

a. The Ob ject of Tax a tion 
b. Oc cur rence of Ex cise Tax Li a bil ity 

I. Putting into circulation and import 
II. Other cases 

c. Payer of Ex cise Tax 
I. Producer and importer 
II Buyer, legal entity, and entrepreneur 

d. Ex cise Tax Base 
e. Amounts and Rates of Ex cise Tax 

I. Oil derivates 
II. Tobacco products 
III. Alcoholic beverages 
IV. Non-alcoholic beverages 
V. Coffee, table salt, and luxury goods 
VI. Indexation 
VII. Banderols (excise-paid stamps) 

f. Fa cil i ties for Pay ment 
I. Exemptions and reductions of charged excise 
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g. As sess ment and Col lec tion of Ex cise Tax 
h. Pre sent ing and Re cord ing the Ex cise Tax and De liv ery of Data and Doc u men ta tion 
i. Ex pi ra tion 
j. Con trol of Ex cise Tax Cal cu la tion and Pay ment 
k. Re fund ing and Re im burse ment of Ex cise Tax 

6. Turnover Tax 

a. El e ments of Turn over Tax 
I. Turnover tax on goods 

• The object of taxation 
• Tax exemption 
• Tax rate 
• Relieves from taxation 

II. Turnover tax on services 
• The object of taxation 
• Taxpayer 
• Tax base 
• Tax rate 
• Tax exemptions 

b. As sess ment and Col lec tion of Turn over Tax 
I. Occurrence of tax liability 
II. Calculation of turnover tax 
III. Payment of turnover tax 
IV. Advance payment 
V. Advances on Ѕ month 
VI. Special treatment of turnover tax payment 
VII. Quarterly calculation and quarterly advances 
VIII. Annual calculation and final payment of turnover tax 
IX. Assessment of turnover tax during the control procedure 
X. Interest 
XI. Forced tax collection 
XII. Place of turnover tax payment 

c. Pre sent ing and Re cord ing the Turn over Tax and De liv ery of Data and Doc u men ta -
tion 
I. Tax accounting of legal entities 
II. Tax accounting of entrepreneurs 
III. Issuing the invoice 
IV. Inventory counting in the cases of tax rate changes 
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d. Ex pi ra tion 
e. Con trol of Cal cu la tion and Pay ment of Turn over Tax 
f. Re fund ing and Re frac tion of Turn over Tax 
g. Turn over Tax Pay ment by the Lump or by the Sur charge Stamp 

7. Value-added Tax 

a. The Ob ject of Tax a tion 
I. Turnover of goods 
II. Turnover of services 
III. Imports 
IV. Turnover of goods and services in free zones 
V. Status changes, liquidation and bankruptcy 

b. Time and Place of Tax Li a bil ity Oc cur rence 
c. Tax payer and Other Tax Debt ors 
d. Oc cur rence of the Tax Li a bil ity 
e. Tax Base 

I. Tax base on turnover of goods, services, and imported goods 
f. Tax Rates 
g. Tax Ex emp tions 

I. Tax exemptions on turnover of goods and services with a right to tax
deduction 

II. Tax exemptions on turnover of goods and services without a right to tax
deduction 

III. Tax exemptions on imports 
h. Tax De duc tion 

I. Notion of tax deduction and proportionate tax deduction 
i. Spe cial Tax a tion Re gimes 
j. As sess ment and Col lec tion of Value-added Tax 

I. Liabilities of taxpayer and other tax debtors 
II. Registration or filling in a registration form on performance or activities of

taxpayer 
III. Issuing an invoice 
IV. Keeping the tax records 
V. Filing the tax return, calculation and payment of tax liability 
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k. Re fund ing of Paid Tax in Pas sen ger Trans port 
l. Con trol of Cal cu la tion and Pay ment of Tax Li a bil ity 
m. Le gal Rem e dies 
n. Re sum ing the Pro ce dure 
o. Se cu rity for Pay ment 
p. Forced Tax Col lec tion 
r. De fault In ter est 
s. Ex pi ra tion 

8. Administrative Fees 

1.7. HUMAN RESOURCE AND SYSTEMS MANAGEMENT 

PURPOSE

Improving the knowledge and understanding of the role of managers in an effective,
efficient, safe and secure accounting environment. This implies coordination of business
activities, maintaining the effective accounting system, human resource management,
personal success ful ness, and issues of health and security at workplace. 
OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this exam, candidates should be able to: 
• Have insights into entire organization of operations and its key external

relationships as well as identify key external regulations and relations influencing
on the accounting and the environment. 

• Understand how organization structure and entire system of management
information influence on accounting systems 

• Describe methods of resource planning and work coordination 
• Explain the purpose, structure and organization of the accounting function and its

relations with other organizational functions 
• Identify systems and procedures of effective functional manage ment 
• Describe the principles of leadership, delegating, motivation and communication 
• Explain the principles of successful working relations and team work 
• Understand the need for effective estimation of successfulness, development and

training for the purpose of personal and organizational effectiveness 
• Understand the importance of safe and secure working envi ro nment 

CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Business and Accounting Environment 

a. En vi ron men tal In flu ences on Or ga ni za tion 
I Political, economic, social, technological 
II External regulations influencing on accounting and business practice 
III External relationships (stakeholder interests) 

b. Or ga ni za tion 
I Structure of business functions 
II Sources of management information 
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III Nature of policies, systems and procedures 
IV Types of business transactions 
V Methods of planning and control 

• Operational planning and control 
• Information management and control 
• Planning and control of human resources 

c. Ac count ing Func tion 
I Purpose 
II Structure 
III Position within the organization 
IV Types of accounting systems 

• Manual 
• Computerized 

2. Effective Management of Business and Accounting Systems 

a. Mon i tor ing of Busi ness and Ac count ing Sys tems 
I Role of internal auditors 
II Role of external auditors 
III Role of management 

b. Ac knowl edge ment of Po ten tial Weak nesses in the Ac count ing Sys tems 
I Weaknesses in controls 
II Potential areas for errors and frauds 

c. Fraud 
I Usual types of fraud 
II Consequences of fraud 
III Detection of fraud in the accounting system 
IV Prevention of fraud 

d. In ter nal Con trols 
I Importance of internal controls 
II Control mechanisms in the accounting system 

e. Man age ment In for ma tion and Re port ing Sys tems 
I Characteristics of management information systems 
II Information flows within the accounting system 
III Processing and maintaining the data and transactions 

3. Management Theory, Principles and Techniques 

a. Hu man Re source Man age ment for the Rea son of Cre at ing Ef fec tive 
La bour Re la tion ships 
I Principles of leadership, supervision and delegation of auth o rity, including

consideration of: 
• Communication 
• Problems and confusions resolving 

II Principles of authority 
• By differentiating the management styles 
• By taking corrective actions 

b. In di vid ual and Group Be hav iour 
I Organizational culture 
II Individual and group contributions to organizational success 
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c. Team Man age ment 
I Forming a team 
II Developing a team 
III Evaluating and rewarding of team performance 

d. Mo ti va tion 
I Key theories in motivation 
II Function of sanctions and rewards in motivation 

4. Individual Efficiency at Work 

a. Plan ning and Or ga niz ing the Per sonal Work 
I Understanding the role and responsibility 

• Methods and practices of effective work in organization 
• Reporting procedures 

II Planning the work and help with planning (journal, schedules, plans of
activities) 

III Setting the priorities and time management, including unforeseen situations 
b. Con struc tive Re la tion ships 

I Methods of communication 
II Influence, negotiations and coordination 
III Procedures for disagreement and conflict resolution as a re sult of: 

• Personality 
• Method of work 
• Status 
• Job requirements 

c. Im prove ment of Per sonal Per for mance 
I Personal performance and evaluation 

• Setting the goals 
• Evaluation of progress 

II Identifying the areas of personal improvement 
5. Health, Safety and Security in Working Environment 

a. Im por tance of Health and Safety 
I Health and safety in working environment 

• Legislation 
• Regulations 
• Keeping the notes 
• Updating in accordance with requirements 

II Common risks and methods for dealing with them 
III Usage of equipment and secure behaviour at work 
IV Emergency procedures 

• Illness 
• Accidents 
• Fires 
• Security breaches

V Suggestions for improvement of health and safety 
b. Dis cov er ing the Se cu rity Risk 

I Jeopardizing the physical security 
• Unauthorized physical access 
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• Security of hardware and equipment 
• Security of data and software 

II ethods of reducing or avoiding the security risk 
1.8. PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PURPOSE

To understand and apply techniques for preparation of the closing financial
statements of partnerships and companies in accordance with International Accounting
Standards (IASs), as well as to interpret the financial statements and relations between
the elements by ratio analyses. 
OBJECTIVES

On completion of this exam, candidates should be able to: 
• Draft the financial statements of partnerships and companies based on relevant

information and in accordance with IASs 
• Correctly identify and perform adjustments, and identify unusual items and

proceed these items and all other unreconciled differences to authorized person 
• Understand the importance of organizational procedures and policies, including

confidentiality procedures 
• Prepare and interpret cash flow statement 
• Understand general purpose of the financial statements 
• Recognize the elements of financial statements and relations between them 
• Interpret relations between the elements of financial statement by applying ratio

analyses; draw correct conclusions and present interpretations and conclusions to
relevant persons. 

CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. General Framework 

a. Pur pose of the Fi nan cial State ments, Us ers and their Needs 
b. Fi nan cial State ments and In ter re la tion 

I Profit and Loss Account 
II Balance Sheet 
III Interaction between Profit and Loss Account and Balance Sheet 

c. El e ments of the Fi nan cial State ments and their In ter ac tion 
I Assets 
II Liabilities 
III Capital and contributions from owners 
IV Income 
V Expense 

d. Con cep tual Frame work 
I Framework for preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
II Accounting principles and policies 

e. Reg u la tory Frame work 
I Process of setting the standards 
II Relevant International Accounting Standards 
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III Form of the accounts and disclosure requirements 
f. Notes to the Financial Statements 

Only following notes to the financial statements are subject to the exam: 
• Fixed assets 
• Events after balance sheet date 
• Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
• Reports on changes in capital 

e. Busi ness Or ga ni za tion 
I Structure 
II Procedures and policies 

2. Preparation of the Financial Statements 

a. Prep a ra tion of the Fi nan cial State ments of Part ner ships and Com pa nies based on
the Trial Bal ance, in clud ing Nec es sary Cor rec tions of: 
I Occurrence of events and advance payments 
II Income tax 
III Dividends 
IV Depreciation 
V Disputable and doubtful receivables 
VI Closing inventory counts 
VII Shareholders’ equity 
VIII Revaluation of fixed assets 
IX Provisions 
X Admission and withdrawal of partners 

b. Tax a tion 
I Presentation of income tax 

c. Fixed As sets 
I Difference between capital and current expenditures 
II Accounting of assets purchase and sales 
III Depreciation – definition, justification and methods 
IV Research and development 
V Basic treatment of goodwill 

d. Work ing Cap i tal 
I Inventory 
II Accounts receivable, including disputable and doubtful re ce i va bles 
III Cash 

e. Cur rent Li a bil i ties and Li a bil i ties Based on Oc cur rence of Events 
f. Share hold ers’ Eq uity 
g. Events af ter the Bal ance Sheet Date 
h. Con tin gent As sets and Li a bil i ties 

I Presentation of the financial statements 
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3. Cash Flow Statement 

a. Prep a ra tion of Cash Flow State ment of a sin gle Firm 
b. Notes to the Cash Flow State ment 
c. In ter pre ta tion of Cash Flow State ment 

4. Interpretation of the Financial Statements 

a. Ra tio Anal y sis 
I Profitability 
II Liquidity 

III Ef fec tive uti li za tion of re sources 
IV In ves tors 
V Fi nan cial po si tion 

b. Identification of Unusual Events or Trends 
c. Presentation of the Financial Statements to Intended Users and Drawing the

Relevant Conclusions 
5. Consolidated Accounts 

a. Groups – Prep a ra tion of Ba sic Con sol i dated Fi nan cial State ments for Sim ple Group -
ings 
I Consolidated balance sheet 
II Consolidated profit and loss account 

b. In sight into Dif fer ences be tween Sub sid iar ies and As so ci ates 

1.9. PLANNING, CONTROL AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

PURPOSE 

To gain knowledge and understanding of application of management accounting
techniques as support to the management and planning, decision-making, control and
performance measurement processes. 

OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this exam, candidates should be able to: 
• Identify valid and relevant data from internal and external sources 
• Present information on costs by using relevant methods 
• Anticipate income and expense 
• Follow and analyse actual costs compared to estimations and trends 
• Compare actual with standard costs and analyse and explain any variance 
• Prepare budget proposal 
• Prepare and present the statements comparing actual vs. planned output for

company of responsibility centres and analyse any variance for the purpose of
management control 

• Prepare and monitor relevant measures of performance, interpret results, and
recommend the methods of cost reduction and performance improvement 

• Make short-run decisions for the purpose of improvement of business performance 
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CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Principles of Cost Accounting 

a. Ab sorp tion Costs 
b. Mar ginal Costs 
c. Ac tiv ity-Based Costs 

2. Collecting the Information 

a. In ter nal In for ma tion 
I Accounting information 
II Information on wages, salaries and compensations 
III Strategic plans 

b. Ex ter nal In for ma tion 
I On costs, prices, demand and resource availability (from suppliers, service

providers, competitors, customers, mar ket), market research 
II Statistical data from Government, trade associations, financial publications 
III Uses and limitations of published statistical data 
IV Influence of general economic environment/general eco no mic information 

c. Sam pling Meth ods 
I Random, systematic, stratified, multiplied, etc. 
II Selection of appropriate method, advantages and dis a d van ta ges 

3. Information Analysis 

a. Meth ods of In for ma tion Pre sen ta tion 
I Written reports 
II Graphs 
III Charts 
IV Tables 

b. In dexes that Take into Con sid er ation the Changes in Prices and Out put 
4. Forecasting 

a. Cost fore cast ing 
I High/low method 
II Linear regression analysis 

b. Time Se ries Anal y sis 
I Moving average for the purpose of identifying the trend 
II Linear regression analysis for the purpose of identifying the trend 
III Season variations for additional and multiplied models 

c. Ad van tages and Dis ad van tages of Fore cast ing Meth ods 
d.  In flu ence of Life Cy cle of Prod ucts 
e. Ad van tages of Soft ware Pack ages and Fore cast ing 

5. Variance Analysis 

a. Stan dard Cost ing Sys tem 
b. Cal cu la tion of Vari ance 

I Price and Consumption of material 
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II Labour costs and efficiency 
III Variable overhead expenses and efficiency 
IV Fixed overhead expenses, volume, capacity and efficiency 
V Marginal sales volume and sales prices variations 

c. Rec on cil i a tion of Bud geted, Stan dard and Ac tual Costs and In come 
I Absorption costing system 
II Marginal costing system 

d. Vari ance Anal y sis 
I Subdivision of variances 
II Factors that should be taken into consideration in exa minations 
III Signifying and identifying the possible causes of variations 
IV Recommended control actions 

6. Budget Planning 

a. Dif fer ent Types of Bud get 
I Sales volume budget 
II Income budget 
III Resource utilization budget (material, labour and overhead costs) 
IV Resource utilization costs budget 
V Capital budget 

b. Func tions of Bud get Plan ning and Con trol Sys tems 
c. Bud get De vel op ment and Pro cesses Re view 

I Relationship between planning cycles, budget and esti mations 
II Main factors influencing the budget (demand, capacity, resources) 
III Sequence of budget preparation 
IV Contraction of sub-budgets 
V Revising the limiting factors 

d. Al ter na tive Ap proaches to Bud get ing 
I Incremental (additional) 
II Zero-based budgeting 
III Activity-based budgeting 

e. Ap pli ca tion of Soft ware Pack ages in Bud get ing 
7. Budgetary Control 

a. Re spon si bil ity Ac count ing 
I Relationship between design, follow of assembling the costs, reporting and

controls of organizational structure 
II Controllable/ non-controllable costs 
III Cost, income, profit and investment centres 

b. Flex i ble Bud gets 
I Fixed versus flexible budgets 
II Preparation of flexible budgets 
III Influence of capacity variations 
IV Calculation and analysis of variations 
V Presentation of management reports on budgetary control 
VI Recommendation of appropriate control action 
VII Application of appropriate software packages 

c. Bud gets and Be hav iour of Man ag ers and Other Em ploy ees 
I Motivation factors 

47



48

II Participation in budget adopting process 
III Harmonization of aims and dysfunctional decision-making 

8. Performance Measurement 

a. Ap pli ca tion of Per for mance In di ca tors in Mea sure ments of: 
I Balanced scorecard 
II Economy, effectiveness, and efficiency 
III Unit costs 
IV Level of resource utilization 
V Profitability 
VI Quality of services 

b. Con trol Ra tios of: 
I Effectiveness 
II Capacity 
III Activities 

c. Plan Sce nario (“what-if” anal y sis) 
d. Cost Re duc tion and Rec om men da tions for Im prove ment of: 

I Effectiveness 
II Working processes modification 
III Benchmarking 

9. Decision-making 

a. Cost Be hav iour and Cost-Vol ume-Profit Anal y sis 
b. Break-even Charts 
c. “Buy ing/mak ing” De ci sions 
d. Op por tu nity Costs and Rel e vant Costs 
e. Pric ing Pol i cies and Pro ce dures 

10.Cost Management a. Calculation of Life Cycle Costs 

b. Tar get Cost (In clud ing Value En gi neer ing) 
c. Cal cu la tion of Ac tiv ity-Based Costs 
d. To tal Qual ity Man age ment 

I Basic principles 
II Quality-related costs 



TRAINING PROGRAM FOR ACQUIRING 
THE PROFESSIONAL TITLE OF A 

“CERTIFIED ACCOUNTANT”

2.1. PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PURPOSE

To improve knowledge and gain better understanding of techniques used in preparation of
the financial statements, including necessary underlying records, as well as the interpretation of
financial statements for incorporated enterprises, partnerships and sole traders. 
OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this part of exam candidates should be able to: 
• Describe the role and function of external financial reports and identify their users 
• Explain the accounting concepts and conventions present in generally accepted

accounting principles 
• Record and summarise accounting data 
• Record acquisition and disposal of fixed assets 
• Prepare basic financial statements for sole traders, partnerships, incorporated

enterprises and simple groups 
• Evaluate financial performance and position of organisation by calculating and

reviewing basic ratios. 
CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. General Framework 

a. Types of Busi ness En tity – Lim ited Com pa nies, Part ner ships and Sole Trad ers 
b. Cap i tal Forms and Cap i tal Struc tures in Lim ited Com pa nies 
c. The Role of In ter na tional Ac count ing Stan dards Board (IASB) 
d. Ap pli ca tion of In ter na tional Ac count ing Stan dards (IASs) and In ter na tional Fi nan -

cial Re port ing Stan dards (IFRSs) in Prep a ra tion and Pre sen ta tion of the Financial
Statements 

e. IASB’s Reg u la tory Frame work for Prep a ra tion and Pre sen ta tion of Fi nan cial State -
ments (Para graphs 1-46) 

2. Accounting Concepts and Principles 

a. Ba sic Ac count ing Con cepts and Prin ci ples as Stated in the IASC’s  (In ter na tional Ac -
count ing Stan dard Com mit tee) Frame work for Prep a ra tion and Pre sen ta tion of the 
Fi nan cial State ments and in IAS 1 – Pre sen ta tion of the Financial Statements. 

b. Other Ac count ing Con cepts: 
I. Cost of purchase (historical cost) 
II. Money value 
III. Entity 
IV. Dual aspect 
V. Time interval 

49



3. Double Entry Bookkeeping and Accounting Systems 

a. Dou ble En try Book keep ing and Ac count ing Sys tems: 
I. The form and content of accounting records (manual and computerised) 
II. Books of original entry, including journals 
III. Accounts receivable and accounts payable ledgers
IV. Cash book 
V. The general ledger 
VI. Opening Trial Balance 
VII. Accruals, prepayments and adjustments 
VIII. Asset registers 
IX. Petty cash 

b. Con firm ing and Cor rect ing Mech a nisms 
I. Control accounts 
II. Bank reconciliations 
III. Suspense accounts and the correction of errors 

c. Gen eral prin ci ples of sales tax 
d. Com put er ised ac count ing sys tems 

4. Accounting Procedures 

a. Non-cur rent As sets, Tan gi ble and In tan gi ble: 
I. Difference between capital and current expenditures 
II. Accounting for acquisitions and disposals 
III. Amortization 
IV. Research and development 
V. Basic treatment of goodwill 

b. Cur rent As sets: 
I. Inventory 
II. Accounts receivable, including accounting for bad and doubtful debts 
III. Cash 

c. Cur rent Li a bil i ties and Ac cru als 
d. Share hold ers’ Eq uity 
e. Events af ter the Bal ance Sheet Date 
f. Con tin gent As sets and Li a bil i ties 

5. Financial Statements 

a. Pur pose of the Fi nan cial State ments 
b. Us ers and their in for ma tion needs 
c. Key Fea tures of Fi nan cial State ments: 

I. Balance Sheet 
II. Income statement 
III. Cash Flow Statement 
IV. Notes to the Financial Statements (examined to a limited extent; see d III

bellow) 
d. Prep a ra tion of Fi nan cial State ments for: 

I. Sole traders, including incomplete records techniques; 
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II. Partnerships 
III. Limited liability companies, including income statements and balance sheets

for internal purposes and for external purposes in accordance with IAS 1 –
Presentation of the Financial Statements, as well as preparation of elementary
cash flows statements in accordance with IAS 7 for limited liability companies
(excluding group cash flow statements). 
The following additional statements and notes to the financial statements are
subject to exam: 
• Statement of changes in shareholders’ capital 
• Non-current assets 
• Unusual and extraordinary items 
• Events after balance sheet date 
• Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
• Research and development expenses 
• IV.

Groups of companies – preparation of basic consolidated balance sheet for
a company with one subsidiary. 

6. Interpretation 

a. Ra tio anal y sis of Ac count ing In for ma tion and Ba sic In ter pre ta tion. 

2.2. FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR MANAGEMENT 

PURPOSE

To improve knowledge and understanding of the application of ma na ge ment accounting
techniques to support management processes related to planning, control and decision-making. 
OBJECTIVES

On completion of this part of the exam candidates should be able to: 
• Explain the role of management accounting within the organisation and the

requirements for management information 
• Describe costs classified by the purpose 
• Identify appropriate material, labour and overhead costs 
• Understand the principles of costing and apply them in appropriate situations 
• Understand and demonstrate the cost factors affecting production and pricing

decisions 
• Understand the basic principles of performance management 
• Understand the financing principles and apply them in concrete situations. 

CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Accounting for Management Purposes 

a. The Na ture, Pur pose, Scope and In ter re la tions of Func tions Per formed by
Management in Relation to Resources,Costs, Op er a t ions, Performance: 
I. Setting the objectives (long-term and short-term, strategic and operational,

common and personal) 
II. Planning to meet objectives 
III. Implementation of objectives 
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IV. Monitoring and controlling against objectives and plans 
V. Objective-based and plan-based performance evaluation 

b. Na ture of In ter nal Re port ing: 
I. Financial and non-financial information for managers 
II. Cost centres, revenue centres, profit centres and investment centres and the

impact of these on management information and appraisal
c. Man age ment In for ma tion Re quire ments: 

I. Importance and definition of good information 
II. Presentation of information 
III. Role of accountants and accounting information 
IV. Role of information technology (IT) 

d. Main tain ing and Im prov ing an Ap pro pri ate Sys tem: 
I. Cost units 
II. Cost/profit/responsibility centres 
III. Methods of recording relevant information 
IV. Sources of information and recording/processing 
V. Computer based information, storage and processing 
VI. Analysis of output information and its dissemination to relevant in di vi -

duals/departments 
2. Cost Accounting 

a. Cost Ac count ing ver sus Man age ment Ac count ing 
I. Purposes of cost accounting,management accounting and financial accounting 
II. Role of cost accounting in management information system 
III Non-financial information 

b. Na ture and Pur pose of Cost Clas si fi ca tion/Def i ni tions 
3. Elements of Cost 

a. Ma te ri als 
I. Standard and actual costs for materials including the use of FIFO, LIFO

methods and the weighted average method for valuation of material costs and
pricing 

II. Optimal purchase quantities to include discounts 
III. Optimal quantity of a batch 
IV. Reordering periods 
V. Material losses 

b. La bour 
I. Direct and indirect labour 
II. Different methods of remuneration 
III. Labour efficiency 
IV. Labour turnover 

c. Over head Costs 
I. Direct and indirect costs 
II. Principles and procedures of overhead cost analysis 
III. Allocation and apportionment of overhead costs, including reciprocal service

centre situations 
IV. Absorption rates 
V. Under- and over -absorption 
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VI. Fixed overhead expenditure and volume variances 
VII. Efficiency variances and capacity variances 
VIII. Changes in cost structure of a firm over time 

4. Costing Systems

a. Job, Batch and Con tract Cost ing 
I. Characteristics 
II. Direct and indirect costs (including treatment of waste, scrap and rectification

costs) 
III. Profit from partially fulfilled contacts 

b. Pro cess Cost ing 
I. Characteristics 
II. Appropriate cost units 
III. Valuation of process transfers and work-in-progress using equivalent units of

production and based on FIFO and weighted average methods 
IV. Normal and unusual losses and gains 
V. Joint and by-products 

c. Op er a tion/Ser vice Cost ing: 
I. Scope of operation/service costs 
II. Appropriate cost units 
III. Collection, classification and ascertainment of costs 

5. Costing Methods and Techniques 

a. Stan dard Cost ing: 
I. Establishing the standard costs 
II. Variance analysis 
III. Impact on management 
IV. Operating statements 

b. Mar ginal and Ab sorp tion Cost ing:
I. Marginal and absorption costs in profit and loss accounts 
II. Reconciliation of the profit under the two methods 
III. Differentiating the absorption and marginal costs 
IV. Activity-based costing (in general) 

6. Decision-making Process 

a. Cost Be hav iour 
I. Fixed, variable and semi-variable costs 
II. Presentation of cost behaviour by using an appropriate graph 
III. High-low method 
IV. Regression analysis 

b. Time Se ries Anal y sis 
c. Break-Even Point Anal y sis 

I. Break-even point and income 
II. Margin-of-safety 
III. Target profit 
IV. Profit/volume ratio 
V. Break-even point chart and profit/volume graph 

d. Lim it ing Fac tors 
I. Optimal production plan given scarce resources 
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II. Linear programming techniques 
III. Other methods for more than two variable problems 

e. Prep a ra tion of Cost Es ti ma tions for De ci sion-mak ing Pro cess: 
I. Relevant costing techniques to include opportunity/sunk, fixed/variable costs 

applied to situations such as make/buy, shutdown/continuation of ope ra ti -
ons, and one-off contracts 

f. De ci sion-mak ing un der Un cer tainty 
I. Expected value concept 
II. “Decision-making tree” analysis 

g. Pric ing of goods and ser vices 
I. Relationship between price and demand 
II. Full cost 
III. Marginal costs 

h. Price Skim ming, Pen e tra tion Pric ing, Pre mium Pric ing and Price Dis crim i na tion 
I. Techniques of discounted cash flows 
II. Simple and compound interest 
III. Net present value 
IV. Annuity 
V. Internal rate of return 
VI. Future value 
VII. Nominal share 

7. Performance Measurement 

a. Mea sure ment of Pro duc tiv ity, Ac tiv ity, Prof it abil ity and Qual ity of Ser vice 
b. Re la tion ship of Mea sure to Type of En tity 
c. Range of Mea sures (Mon e tary and Non-mon e tary) 
d. Pro ce dures Re lated to Prices and Per for mance Changes over Time 
e. Iden ti fy ing the Key Fac tors based on In for ma tion Pro duced 
f. Dif fer ence be tween Busi ness Per for mance and Man age ment Per for mance 
g. Es tab lish ment of Start ing Point (“Benchmarking” Anal y sis) 

8. Financing 

a. Prep a ra tion of Bud get, in clud ing Fixed and Flex i ble Bud gets 
b. Re port ing on re sults com pared to planned bud get 

2.3. MANAGING PEOPLE 

PURPOSE

To improve knowledge and understanding of the techniques, processes and
procedures which are required to ensure the efficient and effective use and deployment of
human resources, and later on their use to the greatest possible benefit of the
organisation. 
OBJECTIVES

On completion of this part of the exam candidates should be able to: 
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• Identify, understand and explain the complex interpersonal relationships within an
organisation 

• Understand the relationship between theory and practice 
• Understand the nature, processes and procedures of human resource management 
• Explain the principles of successful team work and the need to plan, monitor and

evaluate team-based work activities 
• Investigate future personnel requirements and describe recruitment and selection

procedures 
• Understand and describe the principles of motivation 
• Understand and describe the role and process of employee development 
• Understand the need for clear and precise communication 
• Explain the principles of effective counselling 
• Describe the elements of disciplinary and grievance procedures. 

CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Management and Team Development 

a. The Or gani sa tion of Work: 
I. The need for formal organisations 
II. Organisational types and differences 

b. The Role of Man age ment: 
I. Modern management writers 
II. Classical theories of management 

c. The Role of the Man ager: 
I. The role of the manager in the organisation of work 
II. Manager’s responsibilities 

d. In di vid ual and Group Be hav iour 
I. Organisational culture 
II. Groups and teams 
III. Perception and role theory 

e. Team Man age ment 
I. The need for teams 
II. Team structure 
III. Team and group differences 

f. Set ting the Ob jec tives 
I. The need for objectives 
II. Profit and other objectives 

g. Au thor ity, Re spon si bil ity and Del e ga tion 
I. Organisational structure 
II. Classical and modern approaches to structure 
III. Authority, responsibility and delegation 

h. Stan dard Set ting and Per for mance Man age ment 
I. Work standards and indicators 
II. Performance related pay 
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2. Recruitment and Selection 

a. The Re cruit ment and Se lec tion Pro cess 
I. Process, roles and responsibilities 
II. Assessment criteria 

b. Suc cess ful Re cruit ment 
I. Recruitment and selection plan 
II. Recruitment process 
III. Media support 

c. Job De scrip tion and Per son nel Spec i fi ca tion 
I. Job description 
II. Personnel specification 

d. Job Anal y sis 
I. Purpose of analysis 
II. Methods of analysis 

e. Se lec tion Meth ods 
I. Appropriate methods 
II. Usefulness of methods 

f. Se lec tion In ter view 
I. Purpose 
II. Skills involved 
III. Importance of selection process 

g. Equal Op por tu ni ties and the Man age ment of Di ver sity 
I. Equal opportunity issues 
II. Managing diversity 

3. Training and Development 

a. Learn ing Pro cess 
I Learning process 
II. The role of management 

b. Re ten tion, Train ing and De vel op ment 
I. Duties of the training manager 
II. Methods for individual development 

c. Ef fec tive Train ing and De vel op ment 
I. Benefits of training 
II. Training needs analysis 
III. Staff evaluation methods 
IV. Management development 
V. In-house and external training 

d. Com pe tence Eval u a tion 
I. Process and limitations 
II. Appraisal of personnel 
III. Measures of effectiveness 

e. Con duct ing the Ap praisal In ter view 
I. Necessary management skills 
II. Key communication skills 

f. In di vid ual Skills and De vel op ment 
I. Appraisal process and employee development 
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II. The role of management 
III. Skills development programme 
IV. The support of mentors 

g. The Man age ment of Health and Safety 
I. Awareness on health and safety 
II. The obligation of management 

4. Motivation and Leadership 

a. Mo ti va tion, Con cepts, Mod els and Prac tices 
I. The Key theories of motivation 
II. lassical theories 
III. Modern theories 
IV. Reward schemes 

b. Ef fec tive Lead er ship 
I. The nature and importance of leadership 
II. Classical theories 
III  Modern theories 

5. Effective Communication Practices 

a. Work ing with Peo ple – In ter per sonal Skills 
I. Communication skills 
II. Effective management practice 
III. Verbal and non-verbal communication 

b. Com mu ni ca tion 
I. Need for communication 
II. Communication forms 

c. The Role of Coun sel ling 
I. The role of management 
II. Skills of effective counselling 

d. Con trol ling Con flict, Griev ance and Dis ci pline 
I. Causes of conflict 
II. Managing conflict 
III. Appropriate procedures 
IV. Understanding the process 
V. The role of management 
VI. Appeals 

2.4. INFORMATION SYSTEMS 

PURPOSE

To improve knowledge and understanding of development and application of
information systems as required to take an active role in information systems solutions. 

OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this part of the exam candidates should be able to: 
• Explain methods of effective use of information systems and information systems

resources in an organisation 
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• Identify and apply methods of organising and accounting treatment for information
systems usage and projects 

• Explain the initiating, planning and controlling information systems 
• Participate in definition and specification of user and system requirements 
• Describe how an appropriate solution can be designed to fulfil the specified user

requirements 
• Participate in implementation, monitoring and maintenance of an information

systems solution 
• Participate in the quality assurance of information systems project 
• Identify how computer software can assist effective information systems

management, development and quality assurance. 
CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Managing Information Systems (IS) 

a. Busi ness Strat egy and IS/IT 
b. Pro cur ing In for ma tion Sys tems – Or gani sa tional Ar range ments 
c. De liv er ing In for ma tion Sys tems – Ac count ing Is sues 
d. Or gan is ing In for ma tion Sys tems – Struc tural Is sues 
e. Fea si bil ity Study 
f. Pro ject Ini ti a tion 
g. Pro ject Plan ning 
h. Pro ject Mon i tor ing and Con trol 
i. Soft ware sup port for pro ject man age ment 

2. Designing Information Systems 

a. In for ma tion Sys tems De vel op ment Pro cess 
b. In ves ti gat ing and Re cord ing User Re quire ments 
c. Doc u ment ing and Mod el ling User Re quire ments – Pro cesses 
d. Doc u ment ing and Mod el ling User Re quire ments – Static Struc tures 
e. Doc u ment ing and Mod el ling User Re quire ments – Events 
f. Ex ter nal De sign 
g. De vel op ing the So lu tions to Ful fil Re quire ments 
h. Se lec tion of Soft ware Pack age 
i. Soft ware Sup port for Sys tems De vel op ment Pro cess 

3. Evaluating Information Systems 

a. Tech ni cal Re quire ments of In for ma tion Sys tems 
b. Le gal Com pli ance in In for ma tion Sys tems 
c. Im ple ment ing Se cu rity and Le gal Re quire ments 

58



d. Qual ity As sur ance of the Man age ment and De vel op ment Pro cess 
e. Test ing of Sys tems and User Ac cep tance 
f. Im ple men ta tion Is sues and Meth ods 
g. Post-im ple men ta tion Is sues 
h. Change Con trol in De vel op ment and Main te nance Sys tems 
i. Re la tion ship of Man age ment, De vel op ment Pro cess and Qual ity 

2.5. CORPORATE AND BUSINESS LAW 

PURPOSE

To improve knowledge and understanding of general legal framework within which the
accountants perform their activities. To develop awareness and possibilities to understand
both custom and constitutional law in relation to specialized legal areas essential to business. 

OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this part of the exam, candidate should be able to: 
• Analyse and assess the situations from legal point of view 
• Identify essential elements of national legal system, including basic sources of the

law, and explain how it functions 
• Explain and demonstrate an ability to use the essential principles that are related to

the formation, content and remedies for the breach of contracts and agreements
• Explain and demonstrate capability to compare essential principles related to sole

traders, partnerships and companies 
• Describe different types of companies and explain the rules related to their

financing, management, administration and regulation 
• Explain the employment law, and particularly the issues of dismissal, redundancies

and discrimination. 

CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Legal system and sources

a. Law and by laws
b. Cus toms

2. Legal institutes significant for business law

a. Le gal en tity
b. Prop erty
c. Ob li ga tions
d. Con tracts
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3. The basic principle of obligation law

This part deals with the basic elements of concluding contracts, their content
and execution, and will facilitate the understanding of the basic nature of
contractual agreements.

a. Au ton omy of will
b. Prin ci ple of prop erty sanc tion
c. Prin ci ple of equiv a lent ob li ga tions (equal value of mu tual pay ments)
d. Trans fer abil ity of rights and ob li ga tions

4. Business operations contracts

a. Of fer and ac cep tance
b. Con clud ing the con tract

I Form of the contract
II Elements of the contract

c. Ef fects of the con tract
I Meeting contractual obligations
II Consequences of the breach of contract

d. Forms of busi ness agree ments
I Contract on the sales of goods 
II Contract on road transportation
III Contract on the storing of goods
IV Contract on commission sales
V Contract on commercial representation
VI Contract on intermediation
VII Contract on transportation – delivery
VIII Contract on services in freight traffic
IX Contract on construction
X Contract on allotment
XI Contract on licensing

5 The com pany form
This sec tion deals with the na ture of com pa nies and the le gal re quire ments con trol -
ling the set ting up of a company.

a. Forms of in cor po ra tion of com pa nies
I Company

• incorporation of capital (public (share capital) company, limited liability
company)

• incorporation of persons (partnership, limited part ner ship)
b. Found ing of a com pany

I Founding act
II Founding capital
III Activity
IV Registration

c. Dis con tinu a tion of com pany
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6. Legal system and organization of legislature 

a. Prin ci ples
b. Or ga ni za tion and au thor ity of courts

7. Administrative procedures and administrative dispute

8. Labour Law

This sec tion fo cuses on the reg u la tions which gov ern em ploy ment is sues.
a. Con tracts of ser vice and con tracts for ser vices.
b. Un fair and wrong ful dis missal.
c. Re dun dancy.
d. Dis crim i na tion.

2.6. TAX SYSTEM

PURPOSE

To develop skills in preparing the calculations of tax liabilities of physical persons and
entities – residents and non-residents – for the purposes of calculation of income tax,
corporation tax, capital gains tax, and value-added tax. In addition, to improve knowledge
and understanding of methods of dealing with Tax Administration and Customs Office,
including knowledge of legally prescribed timetables for filing the tax returns and tax
payments, as well as maturity dates of tax liabilities. 

OBJECTIVES

On completion of this part of the exam candidates should be able to: 
• Explain how the national tax system functions 
• Prepare calculation of profit/loss as a result of business relations 
• Calculate individual incomes
• Prepare calculation of property and investment income 
• Calculate income tax 
• Prepare calculation of capital gains tax as a resut of sales of pro perty 
• Prepare calculation of tax and contributions for companies 
• Identify and calculate value-added tax 
• Identify dates of filing the tax returns and tax payments 
• Give advice to clients in connection with tax liabilities 
• Properly deal with Tax Administration and Customs Office, as well as with clients 
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CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Personal Income Tax 

a. Gen eral Prin ci ples of Per sonal In come Tax 
b. Tax able Per sonal In come 
c. Tax a tion of Dif fer ent Types of Per sonal In come 
d. An nual Per sonal In come Tax 
e. Tax payer 
f. Res i dents and Non-res i dents 
g. Tax De duc tions 
h. Tax Credit 
i. Avoid ance of Dou ble Tax a tion 
j. Tax a tion of Cer tain Types of Per sonal In come 

I. Payroll tax 
II. Income tax on agriculture and forestry 
III. Income tax on independent activities 
IV. Income tax on copyright and industrial property rights 
V. Capital Yield Tax 
VI. Property Income Tax 
VII. Capital Gains Tax 
VIII. Tax on Other Income 

k. Tax As sess ment and Pay ment 
l. Fil ing the Tax Re turn 
m. As sess ing and Col lect ing the Taxes 
n. Forced Tax Col lec tion 
o. War ranty, Tax Re fund ing, and Ex pi ra tion 

2. Contributions 
a. Health In sur ance Con tri bu tion 
b. Pen sion In sur ance Con tri bu tion 
c. Other Con tri bu tions 

3. Corporate Income Tax 
a. Cat e go ries of Tax pay ers 
b. Res i dents and Non-res i dents 
c. Tax Base 

I. Taxable Income 
II. Reconciliation of Expenses 
III. Reconciliation of Income 
IV. Capital Gains and Losses 
V. Tax Treatment of Corporate Losses 
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d. Tax Treat ment of Tax payer Liq ui da tion and Bank ruptcy 
e. Tax In te gra tion 
f. Tax Rate 
g. Tax In cen tives 

I. Accelerated depreciation 
II. Tax exemptions 
III. Tax credits 

h. Elim i na tion of Dou ble Tax a tion of In come Re al ized Abroad 
I. Inter-companies dividends 

i. Group Tax a tion and Trans fer Prices 
I. Tax consolidation 
II. Avoidance of double taxation of dividends earned by participation in other

taxpayer’s capital 
III. Transfer prices 
IV. Interest “out of arm’s length” and preventing the thinning capitalization 

j. As sess ment and Col lec tion of Cor po rate In come Tax 
I. Filing the tax return 
II. Tax assessment 
III.  Tax after deduction 
IV. Complaint 
V. Basis of the procedure 
VI. Tax collection 
VII. Forced tax collection 

4. Property Tax 

a. Prop erty Tax 
I. The object of taxation 
II. Taxpayer 
III. Tax base 
IV. Occurrence of tax liability 
V. Tax rates 
VI. Tax exemptions 
VII. Tax credits 

b. In her i tance and Gift Tax 
I. The object of taxation 
II. Taxpayer 
III. Tax base 
IV. Occurrence of tax liability 
V. Tax rates 
VI. Tax exemptions 
VII. Tax credit 

c. Tax on Ab so lute Rights Trans fer 
I. The object of taxation 
II. Taxpayer 
III. Tax base 
IV. Occurrence of tax liability 
V. Tax rates 
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VI. Tax exemptions 
d. As sess ment and Col lec tion of Prop erty Tax 

I. Tax assessment 
II. Warranty 

5. Excise Tax 

a. The Ob ject of Tax a tion 
b. Oc cur rence of Ex cise Tax Li a bil ity 

I. Putting into circulation and import 
II. Other cases 

c. Payer of Ex cise Tax 
I. Producer and importer 
II. Buyer, legal entity, and entrepreneur 

d. Ex cise Tax Base 
e. Amounts and Rates of Ex cise Tax 

I. Oil derivates 
II. Tobacco products 
III. Alcoholic beverages 
IV. Non-alcoholic beverages 
V. Coffee, table salt, and luxury goods 
VI. Indexation 
VII. Banderols (excise-paid stamps) 

f. Tax pay ment re lief 
I. Exemptions and reductions of charged excise 

g. As sess ment and Col lec tion of Ex cise Tax 
h. Pre sent ing and Re cord ing the Ex cise Tax and De liv ery of Data and Doc u men ta tion 
i. Ex pi ra tion 
j. Con trol of Ex cise Tax Cal cu la tion and Pay ment 
k. Re fund ing and Refaction of Ex cise Tax 

6. Value-added Tax 

a. The Ob ject of Tax a tion 
I. Turnover of goods 
II. Turnover of services 
III. Imports 
IV. Turnover of goods and services in free zones 
V. Status changes, liquidation and bankruptcy 

b. Time and Place of Tax Li a bil ity Oc cur rence 
c. Tax payer and Other Tax Debt ors 
d. Oc cur rence of the Tax Li a bil ity 
e. Tax Base 

I. Tax base on turnover of goods, services, and imported goods 
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f. Tax Rates 
g. Tax Ex emp tions 

I. Tax exemptions on turnover of goods and services with a right to tax
deduction 

II. Tax exemptions on turnover of goods and services without a right to tax
deduction 

III. Tax exemptions on imports 
h. Tax De duc tion 

I. Notion of tax deduction and proportionate tax deduction 
i. Spe cial Tax a tion Re gimes 
j. As sess ment and Col lec tion of Value-added Tax 

I. Liabilities of taxpayer and other tax debtors 
II. Registration or filling in a registration form on performance or activities of

taxpayer 
III. Issuing an invoice 
IV. Keeping the tax records 
V. Filing the tax return, calculation and payment of tax liability 

k. Re fund ing of Paid Tax in Pas sen ger Trans port 
l. Con trol of Cal cu la tion and Pay ment of Tax Li a bil ity 
m. Le gal Rem e dies 
n. Re sum ing the Pro ce dure 
o. Se cu rity for Pay ment 
p. Forced Tax Col lec tion 
r. De fault In ter est 
s. Ex pi ra tion 

7. Administrative Fees 

2.7. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL 

PURPOSE

To improve knowledge and understanding of financial management methods for
analysing the benefits of various sources of finance and capital investment opportunities,
as well as understanding of application of management accounting techniques for
planning and control. 

OBJECTIVES

On completion of this part of the exam candidates should be able to: 
• Explain the role and purpose of financial management 
• Evaluate the overall management of working capital 
• Evaluate appropriate sources of finance for particular situations 
• Appraise capital investment by using the appropriate methods 
• Identify and implement appropriate costing systems and techniques 
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• Prepare budgets and use them in control and evaluation of organizational
performance 

• Critically assess the tools and techniques of financial management and control. 
CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Objectives of Financial Management 

a. Na ture, Pur pose and Scope of Fi nan cial Man age ment 
b. Re la tion ship be tween Fi nan cial Man age ment, Man age ment Ac count ing and Fi nan -

cial Accounting 
c. Re la tion ship of Fi nan cial Ob jec tives and Or ga ni za tional Strategy
d. Prob lems of Mul ti ple Stake holders in Fi nan cial Man age ment and Con se quent Mul -

ti ple Ob jec tives 
e. Fi nan cial and Other Ob jec tives of Not-for-Profit Or gani sa tions 

2. Environment of Financial Management 

a. Fi nan cial In ter me di a tion and Cred it ing 
b. Money and Cap i tal Mar kets 

I. Domestic and international 
II. Stock markets (both major markets and small firm markets) 

c. The Ef fi cient Mar kets Hy poth e sis 
d. In ter est Rates and Yield Curves 
e. The In flu ence of Fis cal and Mon e tary Pol icy on Busi ness 
f. Busi ness Reg u la tion (e.g.,Price Re stric tions, Eco log i cal Pol i cies and Cor po rate Gov -

er nance) 
3. Management of Working Capital 

a. The Na ture and Scope of Work ing Cap i tal Man age ment 
b. Fund ing Re quire ments for Work ing Cap i tal 
c. Work ing Cap i tal Needs of Dif fer ent Types of Firms 
d. The Re la tion ship of Work ing Cap i tal Man age ment to Busi ness Sol vency 
e. Man age ment of Stock, Debt ors, Short-Term Funds, Cash, Over drafts and Cred i tors 
f. Tech niques of Work ing Cap i tal Man age ment (In clud ing Ra tio Anal y sis, Eco nomic

Or der Quan tity (EOQ), Just-in-Time (JIT), Credit worthi ness Eval u a tion, Terms of
Credit, Cash Dis counts, Fac tor ing and In voice Dis count, Debt ors Cy cles, Ef fi cient
Short-Term In vest ment, Cash Flow Fore cast ing and Bud gets, Miller-Orr Model, Ba -
sic For eign Ex change Meth ods, Prob a bil ity and Risk As sess ment, Terms of Trade
with Creditors) 

4. Sources of Financing 

a. Sources and rel a tive costs (in clud ing is sue costs) of var i ous types of fi nance and
their suit abil ity to dif fer ent cir cum stances and or gani sa tions (large and small,
listed and un listed) including: 
I. Access to funds and the nature of business risk 
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II. The nature and importance of internally generated funds 
III. Capital markets (types of share capital, new issues, rights issues, loan capital,

convertibles, warranties) 
IV. The effect of dividend policy on financing needs 
V. Bank finance (short, medium and long term, including leasing) 
VI. Trade credit 
VII. Government sources: grants, regional and national aid schemes and tax

incentives. 
VIII. Problems of small company financing (collateral, maturity, funding gap, risk) 
IX. Problems of companies with low initial earnings (R&D, Internet, and other

high-technology businesses) 
X. Venture capital and financial sources particularly suited to the small company 
XI. International money and capital markets, including an introduction to

international banking and the finance of foreign trade. 
b. Re quire ments of fi nance (for what pur pose, how much and for how long) in re la -

tion to busi ness op er a tional and stra te gic ob jec tives. 
c. The im por tance of the choice of cap i tal struc ture: eq uity ver sus debt and ba sic anal -

y sis of the term pro file of funds. 
d. Fi nan cial gear ing in dex and other key fi nan cial ra tios and anal y sis of their sig nif i -

cance for the or gani sa tion. 
e. Ap pro pri ate sources of fi nance, tak ing into ac count: 

I. Cost of finance 
II. Timing of cash payments 
III. Business risk and financial risk 
VI. Effect on gearing and other ratios 
V. Effect on company’s existing investors. 

5. Capital Expenditures and Investments 

a.  Ap praisal of do mes tic cap i tal in vest ment opportunities for profit mak ing and
not-for-profit or gani sa tions through the use of ap pro pri ate meth ods and techniques 
I. The risk / return relationship 
II. Return on capital employed 
III. Payback 
IV. Internal rate of return 
V. Net present value 
VI. Single and multi-period capital rationing 
VII. Lease or buy decisions equivalent annual cost 
VIII. Asset replacement, including (in categories I.-VIII the effects of taxation,

inflation, risk and uncertainty (probabilities, sensitivity analysis, simulation). 
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6. Costing Systems 

a. The pur pose of cost ing as an aid to plan ning, mon i tor ing and con trol of busi ness ac -
tiv ity 

b. In for ma tion re quire ments of dif fer ent ap proaches.
c. Cost ing in for ma tion re quire ments and lim i ta tions in not-for-pro fit or gani sa tions 
d. Be hav ioural im pli ca tions of dif fer ent cost ing ap proaches in clud ing per for mance

evaluation 
e. Im pli ca tions of cost ing ap proaches for profit re port ing, the pric ing of prod ucts and

in ter nal ac tiv i ties/ services. 
f. The role of cost ing sys tems in per for mance eval u a tion and de ci sion making.

7. Costing Techniques 

a. Cost al lo ca tion/ap por tion ing through use of ap pro pri ate tech niques 
I. Absorption approach to accumulation of marginal and opportunity costs in

accordance with specific orders (work, package, contract) or operations
(process, service) 

II. Activity-based costing; use of cost drivers and activities
III. Life cycle costing
IV. Target costing 

8. Standard Costing and Variance Analysis 

a. Stan dard cost ing 
I. Setting the standards 
II. Identification and calculation of sales variances (including quantity and mix),

cost variances (including mix and yield); absorption and marginal approaches 
III. Significance and relevance of variances 
IV. Operating statements 
V. Interpretation and relevance of variance calculations to business performance 

b. Plan ning and op er a tional vari ances 
c. Be hav ioural im pli ca tions of stan dard cost ing and vari ance re port ing. 

9. Budgeting and Budgetary Control 

a. Ob jec tives of bud get ary plan ning and con trol sys tems in clud ing as pects of be hav -
ioural im pli ca tions 

b. Eval u a tion of bud get ary sys tems such as fixed and flex i ble, zero based and in cre -
men tal, pe ri odic, con tin u ous and ac tiv ity based 

c. De vel op ment, im ple men ta tion and co or di na tion of bud get ing sys tems: func tional,
sub sid iary and mas ter/prin ci pal bud gets (in clud ing cash bud get ing); bud get
review 

d. Cal cu la tion and cause of vari ances as aids to con trol ling per for mance 
e. Quan ti ta tive aids to bud get ing and the con cepts of cor re la tion, ba sic time se ries

anal y sis (sea son al ity) and fore cast ing; use of com puter-based mod els 
f. Im pli ca tions of cost ing sys tems on profit re port ing. 
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g. Be hav ioural im pli ca tions of bud get ing and bud get ary con trol. 

2.8. FINANCIAL REPORTING 

PURPOSE

To build on the basic techniques in Part 1.1 - Preparing Financial Statements and to
develop knowledge and understanding of more advanced financial accounting concepts
and principles. Candidates will be required to apply this understanding by preparing and
interpreting financial reports in a practical context. 
OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this part of exam candidate should be able to: 
• Appraise and apply specified accounting concepts and theories to practical work

place situations 
• Appraise and apply the International regulatory framework of financial reporting 
• Prepare financial statements for different entities to comply with specified 
• International Accounting Standards, International Financial Reporting 
• Standards and other related pronouncements 
• Prepare group financial statements (excluding group cash flow statements) to

include a single subsidiary. An associated company or joint venture may also be
included 

• Analyse, interpret and report on financial statements (including cash flow
statements) and related information to a variety of user groups 

• Discuss and apply the requirements of other specified Inter na tional 
• Accounting Standards / International Financial Reporting Stan dards 

CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Accounting principles, concepts and theory 

a. The IASB’s Frame work for the Prep a ra tion and Pre sen ta tion of Fi nan cial State -
ments. 

b. Agency the ory. 
c. Price level changes, cap i tal main te nance. 

2. Regulatory Framework 

a. The struc ture of the In ter na tional Ac count ing Stan dards Board (IASB). 
b. The stan dard set ting pro cess. 
c. The role of the In ter na tional Fi nan cial Re port ing In ter pre ta tions Com mit tee

(IFRIC). 
d. The IASB’s re la tion ship with the In ter na tional Or gani sa tion of Se cu rity Com mis -

sion (IOSCO). 
3. Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements for Companies with

Limited Liability and Other Business Entities 

a. Ac count ing for share cap i tal and re serves 
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I. Issue and redemption of shares 
II. The principle of maintenance of capital 
III. The principle of distributable profits. 

b. Tan gi ble and in tan gi ble non-cur rent as sets. 
c. Net cur rent as sets. 
d. Earn ings per share. 
e. Tax in com pany ac counts in clud ing: 

I. Current tax 
II. Deferred tax. 

f. IASs, IFRSs and SIC / IFRIC pro nounce ments as spec i fied in the examinable doc u -
ments. 

4. Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements 

a. Def i ni tion of sub sid iary com pa nies. 
b. Ex clu sions from con sol i da tions. 
c. Prep a ra tion of con sol i dated in come state ments and bal ance sheets in clud ing: 

I. Elimination of intra-group transactions 
II. Fair value adjustments. 

d. As so ci ated com pa nies, joint ven tures. 
e. Sub stance of, and ac count ing for unit ing of in ter ests.

5. Analysis and Interpretation of Financial Statements and Related Information 

a. Anal y sis of cor po rate in for ma tion. 
b. Prep a ra tion of re ports on fi nan cial per for mance for var i ous user groups. 
c. Prep a ra tion and anal y sis of cash flow state ments of a sin gle com pany. 
d. Re lated party trans ac tions. 
e. Seg men tal in for ma tion. 

2.9. AUDIT AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

PURPOSE

To improve knowledge and understanding of the audit process and its application in
the context of the external regulatory framework and for business control and
development. 

OBJECTIVES

On completion of this part of exam candidate should be able to: 
• Understand the nature, purpose and scope of auditing and internal review,

including the role of external audit and its regulatory framework, and the role of
internal audit in providing assurance on risk management and on the control
framework of an organisation 
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• Identify risks, describe the procedures undertaken in the planning process, plan
work to meet the objectives of the audit or review assignment and draft the content
of plans 

• Describe and evaluate accounting and internal control systems and identify and
communicate control risks, potential consequences and recommendations 

• Explain and evaluate sources of evidence, describe the nature, timing and extent of
tests on transactions and account balances (including sampling and analytical
procedures) and design programs for audit and review assignments 

• Evaluate findings, investigate inconsistencies, modify the work program as
necessary, review subsequent events, and justify and prepare appropriate reports
for users within and external to the organisation, including recommendations to
enhance business performance 

• Discuss and apply the requirements of relevant International Standards on Auditing. 
CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Audit Framework 
a. The de vel op ment and chang ing na ture of au dit, the so cial role of au dit. 
b. Stat u tory au dits, ac count abil ity, stew ard ship and agency. 
c. Pro fes sional eth ics and codes of con duct, their ap pli ca tion to ex ter nal au dit and in -

ter nal au dit, re spon si bil ity for fraud and er ror 
2. Internal Audit and Controls 

a. The role of in ter nal au dit and in ter nal re view and their re la tion ship with: 
I. Corporate governance 
II. Risk management 
III. Organisational control 
IV. Corporate objectives 

b. Scope and func tions of in ter nal au dit, the na ture and ex tent of in ter nal au dit as sign ments. 
c. Outsourced in ter nal au dit func tions. 
d. The na ture and ex tent of in ter nal re view as sign ments in clud ing op er a tional, sys -

tems, value for money and fi nan cial re views. 
3. Regulation 

a. In ter na tional Stan dards on Au dit ing 
I. Their development and role 
II. Their relationship with national standards. 

b. Au di tors 
I Regulation and supervision 
II Their relationship with governments 
III The role of IFAC. 

4. Planning and Risk 
a. Ob jec tives of au dit and re view as sign ments, the rel e vance of stake holder di a logue. 
b. Com mu ni cat ing the ob jec tives of au dit and re view as sign ments. 
c. An a lyt i cal pro ce dures. 
d. Risk as sess ment. 
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e. Ma te ri al ity, tol er a ble er ror, and sam ple sizes. 
f. De sign and doc u men ta tion of the plan and work pro gram. 
g. Co-or di na tion of the work of oth ers. 
h. In for ma tion tech nol ogy in plan ning and risk as sess ment. 

5. Internal Control 

a. Ob jec tives of In ter nal Con trol Sys tems 
b. In her ent Weak nesses in In ter nal Con trol Sys tems 
c. The Use of In ter nal Con trol Sys tems by Au di tors 
d. Trans ac tion Cy cles (Rev e nue, Pur chases, Pay roll, In ven tory, Cap i tal Ex pen di ture) 
e. The Eval u a tion of In ter nal Con trol Sys tems by Au di tors in clud ing Internal Con trol

Check lists and Tests of Con trol 
f. Com mu ni ca tion with Man age ment

6. Other Audit and Internal Review Evidence 

a. Fi nan cial State ment As ser tions: As sets, Li a bil i ties, In come and Ex penses, in clud ing
Ac count ing Es ti ma tions 

b. Re ports on As ser tions and Opin ions as a Re sult of the Re view 
c. An a lyt i cal Pro ce dures as Sub stan tive Ev i dence 
d. Bal ance and Trans ac tion Test ing 
e. Com puter-As sisted Au dit Tech niques, Their Uses and Lim i ta tions 
f. Man age ment Rep re sen ta tions 
g. Au dit Sam pling and other Se lec tive Test ing Pro ce dures 
h. Sub se quent Events Re views 
i. Go ing Con cern Re views 
j. The Over all re view of Ev i dence Ob tained 
k. Mod i fi ca tions to the Plan and Work Pro gram in the Light of New Find ings 

7. Reporting 

a. For mat and Con tent of Un mod i fied and Mod i fied Ex ter nal Au dit Re ports on Fi nan -
cial State ments 

b. For mat and Con tent of Re view Re ports and other Re ports on As sign ment Ob jec -
tives 

c. Rec om men da tions for Busi ness Per for mance Im prove ment 
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TRAINING PROGRAM FOR ACQUIRING
THE PROFESSIONAL TITLE OF A

“CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT"

3.1. AUDIT AND ASSURANCE SERVICES 

PURPOSE 

To provide the candidates with knowledge to estimate and apply the technique in
analysis of the issues related to providing audit services and assurance, and to be able to
evaluate and comment current practice and development. 
OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this part of the exam candidates should be able to: 
• Work within the professional and ethical framework 
• Understand current subject matters and development related to auditing and

providing audit and assurance services 
• Explain and evaluate the position of the auditor in connection with accepting and

retaining the professional engagements 
• Appraise and recommend a policy and quality control procedures 
• Identify and describe the work necessary for fulfilling the audit and non-audit

assignments 
• Apply and evaluate the requirements of appropriate International Standards on

Auditing (ISAs) 
• Evaluate the findings and results of performed work and draft relevant reports on

assignments 
CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Professional and Ethical Requirements 

a. The Rules of Pro fes sional Con duct 
I Integrity, objectivity and independence 
II Professional duty of confidentiality 
III Changes of professional standings 
IV Books, documents and papers 
V Corporative financial advising 
VI Conflict of interest 

b. Pro fes sional Re spon si bil ity and Li a bil ity 
I Fraud and error 
II Professional liability (including negligence) 
III Improper conduct 
IV Different expectations 
V Professional insurance indemnity 
VI Internal agreements 

c. Reg u la tory Frame work 
I. Corporate governance 
II. Code of best practice 
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III. Audit committees 
IV. Effectiveness of internal financial control 
V. Laws and regulations on the financial statements auditing 

2. Practice Management 

a. Qual ity Con trol Prac tice and Pro ce dures 
b. Ad ver tis ing, Pub lic ity and Car ry ing out the Pro fes sional Work 
c. Roy al ties and fees 
d. Ten ders 
e. Con di tions of the Agree ment 

3. Audit Process 

a. Au dit Strat egy, in clud ing: 
I. Risk-based auditing 
II. Audit of systems 
III. Balance sheet approach
IV. Income, expenditure and other cycles 
V. Directed testing 
VI. Analytical procedures 

b. Plan ning, in clud ing: 
I. Materiality 
II. Assessment of Risk 

c. Re cords, in clud ing: 
I. Documents 
II. Related parties 
III. Management representations 
IV. Using the work of other persons 

d. As sess ment and Re view, in clud ing: 
I. Opening account balances and comparable information 
II. Other information 
III. Subsequent events 
IV. Going concern 

4. Assignments 

a. Au dit of Fi nan cial State ments 
b. Au dit of Group 
c. Au dit-Re lated Ser vices 

I. Reviews 
II. Agreed procedures 
III. Compilations 

d. As sur ance Ser vice, in clud ing: 
I. Risk assessment 
II. Performance measurement 
III. System reliability 
IV. E-business 

e. Ex pected Fi nan cial In for ma tion 
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f. In ter nal Au dit 
g. Ex ter nal Fi nan cial and Ac count ing Func tions 
h. En vi ron men tal Mat ters in the Au dit. 

5. Reporting 

a.  Auditor’s Re ports 
b. Draw ing Con clu sions and Re port ing on Agreed Pro ce dures and As sur ance Ser vices 
c. Re ports to Man age ment 

6. Current Issues and Development 

a. Pro fes sional Eth i cal Stan dards 
b. Cor po rate Gov er nance 
c. Fraud 
d. En vi ron ment Pro tec tion Is sues 
e. In for ma tion Tech nol ogy 
f. In ter na tional Ac count ing Firms 
g. Small and Me dium En ter prises and Ex emp tions from the Au dit 

3.2. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

PURPOSE

To improve knowledge and understanding of application of ma na ge ment accounting
techniques for the purpose of support to management processes related to planning,
control and dec is ion-ma king. 

OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this part of the exam candidates should be able to: 
• Understand goals of preparing management information and the need to adapt the

techniques in a changing economic environment 
• Identify the need for management information and contribute to development of

appropriate systems 
• Appraise strategic performance of operations and recommend appropriate

measures for performance improvement 
• Understand the importance of the relationship between financial and non-financial

measures of performance 
• Apply techniques to evaluate management decisions related to costing, pricing,

product range and marketing strategy. 
• Identify and apply relevant budgeting techniques to enable the management to

control the operations. 
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CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Framework of Management Accounting 

a. Goals of Man age ment Ac count ing In for ma tion in con nec tion with: 
I. Short-term and strategic planning 
II. Control and decision-making process 
III. Efficient use of management accounting techniques 

b. Trend and De vel op ment of Man age ment Ac count ing Tech niques 
I. Appraisal and improvement of used techniques and methods 
II. Assessment of the effect of technology and product changes on management

accounting 
III. Current issues in management accounting principles and their importance

and application 
c. In flu ence of Changes in Busi ness Struc ture 

I. Assessment of continued use of management accounting techniques (e.g.
standard costing) 

II. Impact of changes in business structure and management techniques on
management accounting 

III. Changes in business structure and management accounting 
2. Designing the Management Accounting System 

a. Goals of the Sys tem and Us ing the In for ma tion in Re la tion to: 
I. Short-term and strategic planning 
II. Control and decision-making process 
III. Efficient application of management accounting techniques 

b. Sources of In for ma tion 
I. From within the organization 
II. From suppliers and customers 
III. By comparison with competitors 
IV. from the Government and other statistical sources 

c. Re cord ing and Pro cess ing Meth ods 
I. Gathering and recording the information that can and/or cannot be expressed

in monetary units 
II. Setting out the requirements for different purposes 
III. Influence of management accounting principles and techniques 
IV. Influence of information technology systems 

d. Ef fects of Dif fer ent Types of En ti ties 
e. Forms of Re ports 

I. Analyses and dissemination to relevant individuals/groups 
II. Effects of management structure and style 
III. Frequency, timeliness, and degree of accuracy 
IV. Tendencies, materiality and issues related to controllability 

3. Performance Measurement 

a. Im por tance of Per for mance 
I. Defining the mission and fulfilling the objectives 
II Corporate planning and realization of strategic targets 
III. Realization of operative plans 
IV. Attaining the specific goals of different parts of the entity 
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b. Scope of Per for mance Mea sure ment 
I. Financial performance – profitability, liquidity, activities, debt/equity ratio) 
II. Non-financial performance measures 
III. Performance measurement for not-for-profit organizations 
IV. Performance measurement for public sector services 
V. Long-term and short-term performance 
VI. Performance measurement models such as balanced scorecard (for the

purpose of improving the range and relations between performance
measures) and performance pyramid (in connection with strategy and
activities) 

c. Con sid er ation of Ex ter nal Cir cum stances 
I. Economic/market conditions 
II. Regulations of governmental agencies in connection with finance,

environment, and quality of services 
d. Man age ment Im pact on Per for mance Mea sure ment 

I. Accountability issues 
II. Benefits and weaknesses of performance measurement 
III. Reward models and performance measurement 
IV. Management style and performance measurement 

4. Planning and Control 

a. Stra te gic Man age ment Ac count ing 
I. Corporative operative strategy 
II. Life cycle issue 
III. Analysis of strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats (SWOT analysis) 
IV. Benchmarking 
V. Consideration of risk and uncertainty 

b. Bud get ing and Bud get Con trol 
I Assessment of Alternative Approaches toBudgeting 
II. Budgeting as an instrument of planning and control 
III. Quantitative aids and risk analysis 
IV. Behavioural aspects 
V. Current development of the budgeting 

5. Decision-making Process 

a. Pric ing Strat e gies and As sess ment of De ci sions thereof 
I. Relation price/demand 
II. Relevant costs and pricing decisions 
III. Pricing and life cycle of products 
IV. Targeted costing and pricing 
V. Transfer prices and decision-making process 

b. In for ma tion for De ci sion-mak ing 
I. Analysis of relevant costs 
II. CVP analysis and profit maximisation (CVP – Cost-Vo lu me-Profit) 
III. Product profitability and analysis of limiting factors 
IV. Customer profitability analysis 
V. Theory of constraints and throughput accounting 
VI. Considering the uncertainty 
VII. Discounted cash flow techniques (DCF techniques) 
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3.3 STRATEGIC BUSINESS PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

PURPOSE
To ensure that candidates can exercise judgement and in strategic business planning

to enable them to contribute to the formulation of business strategy, the development of
products and services and the maintenance of quality throughout the organisation. 

OBJECTIVES 
On completion of this part of the exam candidates should be able to: 
• Identify and apply principal concepts and ideas in theory and practice of strategic

management 
• Understand the internal and external factors affecting an organization and apply

this knowledge to evaluate its strategic position 
• Identify appropriate strategies based the evaluation of objectives and position of

the organization 
• Identify appropriate methods of implementing chosen strategies and evaluate their

impact on organizational structures and activities 
• Understand the impact of globalisation influence on strategic business planning 
• Successfully integrate their knowledge and use it creatively in applying concepts

and techniques 
• Analyse, interpret and apply data and information and present thoughtful conclusions 
• Successfully communicate analyses and conclusions, bearing in mind different

purposes and audiences with due emphasis on social expectations 
CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 
1. Models of Strategic Management 

a. What is Stra te gic Man age ment? 
I. Corporative strategy 
II. Business strategy 

b. Why is Stra te gic Man age ment Im por tant? 
c. Pro ce dure, Con tent and Con text of Stra te gic Man age ment? 
d. Strat egy De vel op ment Pro cess 

I. Deliberate or prescriptive strategies 
II. Emergent and incremental strategies 

e. Con tent of Strat egy 
I. Strategic analysis 
II. Strategic choice 
III. Implementation of a strategy 

f. Stra te gic Man age ment in Dif fer ent Con texts 
I. Structure 
II. Culture 

2. External Environment Scanning 

a. Anal y sis of Gen eral En vi ron ment 
I. Analysis of social, legal, economic, personal and technological factors (SLEPT

analysis) 
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II. “Porter’s diamond” 
III. Forecasting and scenarios 

b. Cus tomer and Mar ket Anal y ses – Mar ket ing Re search 
c. Anal y sis of the Com pet i tive En vi ron ment 

I. Five forces model 
II. Competition and collaboration 
III Competitor intelligence for business advantage 
IV. Sustainable competitive advantage and critical success factors 

3. Internal Assessment 
a. Re source Au dit 
b. Anal y sis of Ca pa bil i ties and Core Com pe tences 
c. Add ing Com pet i tive Value – Value Chain and Value Sys tem 
d. Anal y sis of Hu man Re sources 
e. Anal y sis of Fi nan cial Re sources 
f. Anal y sis of Op er a tions Re sources 

4. The Nature of Strategy Analysis and Choice 

a.  The Pur pose of the Or gani sa tion 
I. Stakeholders’ expectations 
II. Cultural context 
III. Mission, objectives and strategic intent 

b. De vel op ing the Strat egy 
I. Alternative directions for strategy development 

• Resource-based 
• Market-based 
• Finance-based 

II. Methods of strategy development 
• Internal development 
• Strategic alliances 
• Mergers and acquisitions 

c. Strat egy Eval u a tion and Se lec tion 
I. Analysis of suitability, feasibility and acceptability 
II. Selection of corporate/business strategy 

5. The Nature of Strategy Implementation 

a. Mar ket ing Is sues 
I. Segmentation, targeting and setting the position (positioning) 
II. Strategies for market leaders, followers, challengers and specialized par ti ci -

pants (nichers) 
III. Development and application of marketing mix strategies 

b. Fi nance Is sues 
I. Performance evaluation 
II. Funding the implementation and the resource allocation 

c. Re search and De vel op ment Is sues 
I. Management of innovation 
II. Management and control of quality. 
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d. In for ma tion Sys tems/In for ma tion Tech nol ogy (IS/IT) Is sues 
I. IT/ IS as a strategic resource 
II Management of information systems development 

e. Hu man Re source Is sues 
I. Recruitment and selection 
II Motivation and discipline 
III. Appraisal and performance evaluation 
IV. Training and development of the staff 

f. Pro ject Man age ment Is sues 
I. Project life cycle 
II. Goals of project management 
III. Estimation of resource requirements 
IV. Tools and techniques of project management 

g. Man age ment of Change Is sues 
I. Understanding the types of strategic changes and their causes
II. Development of strategic change program 

• Power influence 
• Culture influence 

III. Roles of management in the strategy change process 
IV. Managing the strategic change process 

6. Matching Structures with Strategy 

a. Types of Or gani sa tion Struc tures 
I. Simple 
II. Functional 
III. Divisional 
IV. Matrix 
V. Multinational 
VI. Global 
VII. Strategic business units (SBUs) 

b. Cen trali sa tion ver sus De cen trali sa tion 
c. Or ga ni za tional Con fig u ra tions 

7. The Nature of Global Competition 

a. The Role of Tra di tional In ter na tional Mar ket ing 
b. De vel op ment of the Global Busi ness 

I. Market convergence 
II. Cost advantages 
III. Government pressures 
IV. Currency volatility and trade barriers 
V. Emergence of global competition 

c. Global Strat e gies 
I. Standardisation versus customisation 
II. Product positioning 
III. Channel management 
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d. De vel op ment of Global Brands 
e. Man ag ing a Global Com pany 

I. Ethnocentric, polycentric or geocentric orientation 
II. International management and leadership 

f. Reach ing Global Cus tom ers 
I. International marketing research 
II. International market segmentation 

8. Outcomes of the Strategic Management Process 

a. Cor po rate ver sus Busi ness Per for mance 
b. Sus tain able Com pet i tive Ad van tage 
c. A learn ing or gani sa tion 
d. Al ter na tive Per for mance Mea sures: 

I. Financial 
II. Non-financial 
III. Strategic 

9. Ethical Considerations 

a. The im por tance of So cial Re spon si bil ity 
b. Cor po rate gov er nance 
c. The at ti tude to wards eth ics on na tional and global level 

3.4. ADVANCED CORPORATE REPORTING 

PURPOSE

To ensure that candidates can exercise judgement and technique in corporate
reporting matters encountered by accountants and can react to current developments or
some new practice. 

OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this part of the exam candidates should be able to: 
• Explain and evaluate the influence of an accounting standard or proposed

accounting standard on the content of published financial information 
• Explain and evaluate the impact of business decisions on the financial statements 
• Explain the legitimacy and acceptability of an accounting practice proposed by a

company 
• Prepare financial statements for complex business situations 
• Analyse financial statements and prepare a report suitable for presentation to

different users 
• Evaluate current practice in the context of users’ needs and goals of financial

reporting 
• Evaluate current developments in corporate reporting in the context of their

practical application, implications for corporate reporting, and the underlying
conceptual issues. 
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CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Regulatory Framework of the International Accounting Stan dard Board (IASB) 

a. In ter na tional Fi nan cial Re port ing Stan dards, In ter na tional Ac count ing Stan dards,
Ex po sure Drafts, Dis cus sion Pa pers, Stan dard In ter pre ta tions Com mit tee and In -
ter na tional Fi nan cial Re port ing In ter pre ta tions Com mit tee Pro nounce ments, in -
clud ing Ac count ing for Eq uity and Li a bil i ties, As sets, Pro vi sions and Con tin gen cies, 
Seg ments, Re lated Par ties, Fi nan cial Instruments, Taxes, Leases, Pension Costs 

b. The Con tent of the IASB’s Reg u la tory Frame work in a given Range of Prac ti cal Sit u -
a tions 

c. The Prob lems As so ci ated with the IASB’s Reg u la tory Frame work in clud ing Mea -
sure ment and Rec og ni tion Is sues 

d. The im pact of Cur rent and Pro posed Reg u la tions on the Fi nan cial State ments of the
En tity 

e. The Ef fect of Busi ness De ci sions and Pro posed Changes in Ac count ing Prac tice by
the En tity on the Fi nan cial State ments 

f. The Le git i macy of Cur rent Ac count ing Prac tice and its Rel e vance to Us ers of Cor po -
rate Fi nan cial State ments 

2. Preparation of the Financial Statements of Complex Business Entities 

a. The Fi nan cial State ments of Com plex Groups in clud ing Ver ti cal and Mixed Groups 
b. Group Cash Flow State ments 
c. Ac count ing for Group Re or ga ni za tions and Re struc tur ing in clud ing Demergers,

Take overs and Group schemes 
d. Ac count ing for For eign Cur rency Trans ac tions and En ti ties 

3. Preparation of Reports for External and Internal Users 

a. Ap praisal of Fi nan cial and Re lated In for ma tion, the Pur chase of a Busi ness En tity,
the Val u a tion of Shares and the Re or gani sa tion of an En tity 

b. Ap praisal of the Im pact of Changes in Ac count ing Pol i cies and the Reg u la tory
Frame work on Share holder Value 

c. Ap praisal of the busi ness per for mance of the en tity in clud ing quan ti ta tive and
qual i ta tive mea sures of per for mance and the po ten tial for cor po rate failure 

d. As sess ment of the Im pact of Price Level Changes and Avail able Meth ods of Val u a -
tion on Busi ness De ci sions and Per for mance 

e. The Ef fec tive ness of Cor po rate Gov er nance within the En tity 
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4. Current Issues and Developments 

a. The Ac count ing Im pact of En vi ron men tal, Cul tural and So cial Fac tors on the Entity 
b. The Im pact of the Con tent of Fi nan cial State ments on Us ers in clud ing Changes in

De sign and Con tent of In terim and Year-end Fi nan cial State ments and Al ter na tive
Ways of Com mu ni cat ing Results to Users 

c. Pro posed Changes in the Struc ture of Na tional and In ter na tional Reg u la tion and
the Im pact on Global Har mo ni sa tion and Stand ardi sa tion 

d. Ap pli ca bil ity of the IASB’s Reg u la tory Frame work to Small and Me dium Sized En -
ter prises 

e. Cur rent De vel op ments in Cor po rate Re port ing 
5. Ethical Considerations 

a. Eth ics and Busi ness Con duct 

3.5. STRATEGIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

PURPOSE

To ensure that candidate can evaluate and apply the techniques to make economic
value added decisions in strategic financial management and are able to adapt to factors
affecting those decisions. 

OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this part of the exam candidates should be able to: 
• Prepare reports for management explaining and evaluating the financial

consequences of strategic decisions 
• Identify and evaluate appropriate sources of finance, their risks and costs 
• Assess potential investment decisions and strategies 
• Understand the impact of the global business environment on national and

multinational organizations 
• Explain, demonstrate and recommend suitable risk management techniques 
• understand the significance of cash management and the treasury function in the

commercial environment 
• Select the techniques most appropriate to optimise the employment of financial

resources and critically evaluate such techniques 
• Analyse and evaluate financial information relating to past and future business

performance 
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CONTENT OF SYLLABUS 

1. Objectives and Corporate Governance 

a. The Aims and Ob jec tives of an Or gani sa tion and their Im pact on Busi ness Plan ning 
b. Key Stake holders of an Or gani sa tion: Share hold ers, Lend ers, Di rec tors, Em ploy ees, 

Cus tom ers, Sup pli ers and the Government 
c. En vi ron men tal Is sues and their Im pact on Cor po rate Ob jec tives and Gov er nance 
d. The Con cept of Goal Con gru ence and the Method of its Achieve ment 
e. Key As pects of Gov er nance in the Coun try and Abroad 
f.  The Im pli ca tions of Cor po rate Gov er nance for Or gani sa tions 

2. Strategy Formulation 

a. The Stra te gic Plan ning Pro cess and its Re la tions with In vest ment De ci sions 
I. Development and analysis of financial plans to meet agreed objectives 
II. Gathering, clarifying and confirming information (e.g. on the current or past

business position through ratios orother forms of analysis) relevant to the
achievement of business objectives 

III. Advising clients on the strategies that a company might use to expand or
maintain its current market position, as well as on exit strategies 

IV. Long-term financial planning including measures of value, profit, optimisation 
and utility theory 

V. Use of free cash flow in financial planning 
VI. Techniques for valuing individual shares and other securities and for valuing a

business, including value added (EVA) and strategic value added (SVA) 
b. Stra te gic Plan ning for Mul ti na tional Com pa nies 

I. Entry and exit barriers 
II. Competitive advantage 

3. Risk Analysis 

a. Cost of Cap i tal 
I. The cost of equity (CAPM – capital asset pricing model, and dividend growth

model) 
II. The cost of debt 
III. Weighted average cost of capital (WACC) 
IV. The impact of varying capital structures on the cost of capital 

b. In ter est Rate and For eign Ex change Risk 
I. Identification of interest rateand foreign exchange exposure 
II. Yield curves and their significance to financial managers 
III. Hedging risk using forwards, futures, options, swaps, future rate agreements

(FRAs) and other products 
IV. Scope and benefit of financial engineering 

4. Investment Decisions 

a. De ci sion-mak ing Tech niques 
I. Detailed knowledge of discounted cash flow (net present value) 
II. Adjusted net present value - NPV (APV – added present value)
III. Portfolio theory and capital asset pricing model (CAPM) and their importance

to managers 
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IV. Options embedded in investments (basic knowledge only) 
b. Ex pan sion Strat e gies 

I. Organic growth, mergers and acquisitions 
II. Valuation for mergers and acquisitions 
III. Takeover and defence strategies 
IV. Planning for post-merger success and audit 

c. Cor po rate Re or gani sa tion 
I. Divestments 
II. Buy-outs and buy-ins 
III. Corporate restructuring 
IV. Privatization 
V. Share repurchase 

5. Treasury Management and Financial Forecasting 

a. Meth ods of Fi nanc ing Short-Term and Long-Term In vest ment, in clud ing Merg ers
and Ac qui si tions 

b. The Role of Cash Flow Fore cast ing in Busi ness Plan ning 
I. Development and Analysis of Short-Term Financial Plans 

c. Role of Trea sury Func tion 
I. Activities of treasury managers 
II. Centralised versus decentralised treasury functions 

d. Div i dend pol icy 
I. Influences on dividend policy 
II. Effect of dividends on company value 

6. Global Economic Environment 

a. In ter na tional Fac tors Af fect ing Busi ness De vel op ment 
I. Trends in global competition 
II. The role of multinational companies in the world economy 
III. Free trade, protectionism, trade agreements, common markets 
IV. The role of World Bank and International Monetary Fund (IMF) and other

international organisations 
V. Economic relations between developed and developing countries including

problems of debt and development 
VI. Introduction of a single currency 

b. De ter mi na tion of Ex change Rate 
I. Influences on exchange rates 
II. Models of exchange rate determination 
III. Different forms of exchange rate system 

7. Global Financial Management 

a. Ap praisal of For eign In vest ment De ci sions 
I. Alternative forms of foreign investment 
II. The impact and effects of taxation abroad (basic principles only)
III. Foreign cost of capital and capital structure 
IV. Forecasting future exchange rates 
V. Political risk 
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b. Rais ing Cap i tal Abroad 
I. International capital markets including the Euromarkets 
II. Foreign domestic capital markets 
III. International banking 

c. Man ag ing Fi nan cial Re sources within a Mul ti na tional Group: 
I. Financial control within a group of companies 
II. International cash management 
III. International transfer pricing 
IV. Performance measurement and evaluation 

d.  Man age ment of In ter na tional Trade 
I. Management of the risks of international trade 
II. Finance of international trade 

8. Ethical Considerations 

a. Eth ics and busi ness con duct, in clud ing in ter na tional eth i cal norms



EDUCATION PROGRAMS FOR ACQUIRING SPECIALIZED
PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS

TRAINING PROGRAM FOR ACQUIRING
THE SPECIALIST TITLE OF 

“PUBLIC SECTOR ACCOUNTANT”

1. Public finances 

1.1Le gal frame work
– Law on Budget System (Public Financing)
– Law on Public Property 
– Law on Local Government Finance
– Law on Local Self-Government
– Law on Public Debt
– Law on Public Procurement
– Law on Civil Servants
– Law on State Audit Institution
– Law on employees in autonomous provinces and local self-government units
– Law on the public sector employees payroll system 
– Law on contributions for compulsory social security
– Law on Capital Market

1.2.Knowl edge and skills
– the management team’s techniques of assessment in relation to determining

costs and expenditures, the structure of the costs of public and other services,
as well as goods, and strategies for implementing the mission of users of public
funds;

– budgeting techniques for the needs of the management team with the purpose
of controlling the operations of users of public funds;

– the functioning of the securities market and the possibilities for borrowing and
providing of guarantees;

– the preparation and adoption, i.e. execution of the public financing of the
Republic and local authorities and financial plans of the organizations of
compulsory social security;

– the method of introducing and determining the level of public revenues (taxes,
contributions, fees, duties, self-financing) and the types of public costs and
expenditures, i.e. the manner of financing the institutions of the republic, local
authorities and organizations of compulsory social security;

– the preparation and adoption of the financial plan and public procurement plan 
for users of public funds;

– the organization of budgetary accounting and financial reporting of users of
public funds;
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– the organization of financial management and control and internal audit in the
public sector;

– the organization and coordination of cooperation with competent budgetary
inspections, external audit of the public sector and independent regulatory
bodies;

2. Public sector financial reporting 

2.1 Le gal frame work
– Law on Budget System (Public Financing)
– Law on State Audit Institution
– Enactment on budgetary accounting
– Enactment on implementation of International public sector accounting

standards
– Rulebook on the system of the implementation of the budget of Republic of

Serbia (public financing management)
– Enactment on the public property records
– Rulebook on the contents of the report on the structure and value of

non-financial assets of the Republic of Serbia
– Rulebook on the standard classification framework and chart of accounts for

the budget system
– Rulebook on the manner of preparing, drawing up and submitting financial

statements of users of public funds, users of funds of mandatory social
insurance organizations and budget funds

2.2 Knowledge and skills
– financial reports based on international standards;
– the preparation and analysis of information for the ma na gement team;
– the practice of budgetary accounting and periodic and annual financial

reporting to competent state authorities and local government bodies, or
independent regulatory bodies;

– the balancing of public revenues and income, and costs and expenditures;
– conducting business operations through a consolidated treasury account;
– the management of assumed obligations and maintenance of planned liquidity

of the budget of the republic and local authorities, and the financial plans of
organizations of compulsory social security;

– the preparation and archiving of credible accounting documents for relevant
budget inspections and external audit of the public sector;

– providing other forms of services in public practice.
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TRAINING PROGRAM FOR ACQUIRING 
THE SPECIALIST TITLE OF: 

“MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTANT”

1. Management Accounting
1.1 Introduction into Management Accounting 
1.2 Cost identification and behavior 
1.3 Internal Planning of Organizations 
1.4 Control Systems in Accounting 
1.5 Decision-making process 

2. Financial Accounting
2.1 Conceptual and Regulatory Framework
2.2 Accounting Systems 
2.3 Financial Reporting for Individual Entities 
2.4 Control of Accounting Systems 

3. Mathematical Economics
3.1 Introduction into Mathematical economics
3.2 Probability
3.3 Data Summarizing and Analysis 
3.4 Relationships between Variables 
3.5 Forecasting
3.6 Financial Mathematics
3.7 Charts

4. Business Economics
4.1 Macroeconomic Environment of Organizations 
4.2 Objectives and Decision-making in Organizations 
4.3 Market System and Competition 
4.4 Financial System 

5. Ethics, Corporate Governance and Commercial Law 
5.1 Ethics and Business 
5.2 Ethical Conflict
5.3 Corporate Governance 
5.4 Comparison of National Legal System with Other Legal Systems
5.5 Law of Obligations 
5.6 Labour LAw 
5.7 Corporate Administration and Finance 
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TRAINING PROGRAM FOR ACQUIRING 
THE SPECIALIST TITLE OF 

“FORENSIC ACCOUNTANT”

1. Financial fraud

1.1 Accounting concepts
1.2 Responsibility of management, auditor and forensic accountant
1.3 Financial reporting related fraud
1.4 Asset fraud: Cash
1.5 Asset fraud: Suppliers
1.6 Asset fraud: Inventories and other assets
1.7 Bribe and Corruption
1.8 Intelectual property
1.9 Financial institutions fraud
1.10 Checks and credit card fraud
1.11 Insurance fraud
1.12 Health insurance fraud
1.13 Insolvency fraud
1.14 Tax fraud
1.15 Securities fraud
1.16 Money Laundering
1.17 Consumer fraud
1.18 Computer or Internet Fraud Interneta
1.19 Public sector fraud
1.20 Procurement fraud

2. Law
2.1 Legal system 
2.2 Fraud related laws
2.3 Rights of individuals in investigative process
2.4 Fraud related criminal persecution
2.5 Civil justice system
2.6 Basic principles related to evidence
2.7 Providing evidence as expert witness

3. Investigation
3.1 Analysis of documents

90



91

3.2 Interrogation theory and practice
3.3 Covert investigation
3.4 Sources of information
3.5 Accessing information online
3.6 Analysis and reporting tools
3.7 Computer forensics
3.8 Tracing illegal transactions
3.9 Reporting standards
3.10 Fraud investigation chesklists
3.11 Example report
3.12 Forms
3.13 Engagement contracts and letters of opinion

4. Criminology and Ethics
1.1 Introduction to Criminology / Understanding human behavior
1.2 Theory of the causes of crime
1.3 White collar crime
1.4 Organizational crime
1.5 Occupational crime
1.6 Fraud prevention programs 
1.7 Punishment and criminal justice system
1.8 Forensic accountant ethics
1.9 Code of Ethics 
1.10 Professional Standards



TRAINING PROGRAM FOR ACQUIRING 
THE SPECIALIST TITLE OF 
“INTERNAL AUDITOR”

Training program for acquiring the specialized title title of Internal Auditor is based on
IFAC International Education Standards for Professional Accountants (IES 1-8). The
training program was created in accordance with the program for acquiring professional
titles of the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA).
PURPOSE

To improve knowledge and understanding of the process of internal audit and its
application in the context of legal framework and professional standards in order to
control and improve business operations and development. 
OBJECTIVES 

On completion of this exam candidates should be able: 
• to understand the nature, purpose and scope of internal audit and internal control,

as well as the role of internal audit in the provision of risk management and control
framework in the organizations in the public, private and non-profit sector

• to determine the risks, define risk based engagement plans and apply appropriate
tools and techniques for the implementation of engagement that will meet the
objectives of the internal audit engagement

• to establish necessary phases of internal audit engagements, the nature, timing and
extent of research and testing, and design plans for the internal audit and control
tasks

• to assess the risks of fraud and define appropriate activities and controls in
response to the assessed risks 

• based on the results of the engagement, to prepare appropriate reports to users
inside and outside the organization, including recommendations for business
performance improvement

• to understand the structure, business processes, information technology and
business environment in which the organization operates, and to acquire the
knowledge of ethical requirements and regulations relevant to the engagements in
the public, private and non-profit sector.

1. Standards and guidelines

1.1 Definition of internal audit
1.2 International standards of internal audit ре ви зи је
1.3 Code of Ethics

2. Internal Control and Risk

2.1 Types of controls
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2.2 Management Control Techniques
2.3 Internal Control and Alternative Control Frameworks
2.4 Risk Vocabulary and Concepts
2.5 Fraud Risk Awareness

3. Conducting Internal Audit Engagements 

3.1 Data-Gathering Tools and Tech
3.2 Data Analysis and Interpretation
3.3 Process Mapping
3.4 Audit and Legal Evidence 

4. Managing the Internal Audit Function

4.1 Strategic Role of Internal Audit
4.2 Operational Role of Internal Audit
4.3 Risk-Based Internal Audit Plan

5. Managing Individual Engagements

5.1 Plan Engagements
5.2 Supervise Engagements
5.3 Communicate Engagement Results
5.4 Monitor Engagement Outcomes

6. Fraud Risks and Controls

6.1 Types of Fraud
6.2 Controls to Prevent or Detect Fraud
6.3 Audit Tests to Detect Fraud
6.4 Integrating Analytical Relationships to Detect Fraud
6.5 Interrogation or Investigative Techniques
6.6 Forensic Auditing 
6.7 Use of Computers in Analyzing Data for Fraud and Crime

7. Governance and business ethics

7.1 Corporate/Organizational Governance Principles
7.2 Business ethics
7.3 Corporate Social Responsibility

8. Risk Management
8.1 Corporate Risk Management
8.2 Risk Management Methodology
8.3 Various Types of Risks
8.4 Risk Management Tools
8.5 Managing Corporate Risks
8.6 Enterprise Risk Management

93



9. Organizational Structure, Business Processes, and Risks

9.1 Risk/Control Implications of Different Organizational Structures
9.2 Types of Organizational Structures
9.3 Schemes in Various Business Cycles
9.4 Business Process Analysis
9.5 Inventory Management Techniques and Concepts
9.6 Electronic Data Systems
9.7 Business Development Life Cycles
9.8 International Organization for Standardization Framework
9.9 Outsourcing Business Processes

10. Communication

10.1 Com mu ni ca tion Skills
10.2 Stakeholder Relationships

11. Management and Leadership Principles

11.1 Stra te gic Man age ment
11.2 Organizational Behavior
11.3 Management Skills
11.4 Conflict Management
11.5 Project Management and Change Management

12. Information Technology and Business Continuity

12.1 Se cu rity
12.2 Application Development
12.3 System Infrastructure
12.4 Business Continuity

13. Financial Management

13.1 Fi nan cial Ac count ing and Fi nance
13.2 Man a ge rial Ac count ing

14. Global Business Environment 

14.1 Economic/Financial Environments
14.2 Cul tural/Po lit i cal En vi ron ments
14.3 Legal and Economic Concepts
14.4 Government Legislation and Regulation
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TRAINING PROGRAM FOR ACQUIRING 
THE SPECIALIST TITLE OF: 

“CERTIFIED EVALUATOR”

1. Legal Framework of Evaluation 

1.1 Laws
1.2 Bylaws
1.3 Professional Regulations

- Evaluation Standards
- Evaluation Principles
- Professional Code 

2.  Financial Statements and Solvency Evaluation 

2.1. Financial Reporting Under the IFRSs and IASs
2.2. Solvency Evaluation

- Income Analysis 
- Analysis of the Financial Result Structure 
- Analysis of the realization of the financial result and the
  bottom point of profitability
- Analysis of Financial Strength 
- Profitability Analysis
- Analysis of Short-term and Long-term Financial Equilibrium 
- Debt Analysis
- Balance power analysis
- Other Analyses

3. Evaluation of Balance Sheet Positions 

3.1 Evaluation Intangible Assets 
3.2 Evaluation of Fixed Assets
3.3 Evaluation of Financial Investments
3.4 Evaluation of Inventories
3.5 Evaluation of Receivables
3.6 Evaluation of Payables

4. Methods of Evaluation

4.1. Methods of Substance Evaluation
- Carrying Value of the Substance
- Adjusted Carrying Value of the Substance 
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- Substance reproductive value
4.2. Yield methods

- Cost of capital
- Static yield method
- Dynamic yield method

4.3 Other methods
- Mean value method
- Stutgard method
- Extra profit method
- Multiplication method

5. Evaluation report 

5.1 Content of the evaluation report
5.2 The recommendations of professional associations
5.3 The structure and content of the evaluation report

6. IT support

6.1 IT support and organization of evaluation activities 
- Documentation basis of evaluation
- Organization of evaluation work

6.2 Impact of IT on evaluation process
- IT system complexity
- Process of evaluation in IT environment
- Computer-aided methods of evaluation
- Computer-aided drafting the evaluation report
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TRAINING PROGRAM FOR ACQUIRING THE 
SPECIALIST TITLE OF 

“TAX ADVISER”

1. Tax system and tax policy

1.1 Budget and the relationship between budget and fiscal policy
1.2 Authority of the Tax Administration
1.3 Organization of the Tax Administration
1.4 Rules of tax procedure
1.5 First instance tax procedure: determination, collection, control

2. Personal income tax (tax on total income, tax on income from self-employment,
agriculture, copyright, intellectual property, etc.)

3. Property tax: static and dynamic
4. Value Added Tax
5. Excise tax
6. Fiscal cash registers
7. Accounting – preparation of financial statements
8. Tax on income of legal entities
9. Avoidance of double taxation
10. Tax information system

10.1 A consolidated tax return
11. Tax violations and tax crimes



Pursuant to the Ar ti cle 32, para graph 1, line 8), of the Stat ute of Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac -
coun tants and Au di tors (No. 26 dated Jan u ary 29, 2010, cer ti fied and reg is tered with the Reg -
is ter of As so ci a tions un der No. 0 000064 305370, con sol i dated text No. 107 of 23.06.2017,
ver i fied and en tered in the Reg is ter of As so ci a tions un der No. 0000264205814) and the Na -
tional Ac count ing and Ed u ca tional Stan dard ROS 31 - Pro fes sional Ed u ca tion and Train ing of
Ac coun tants, the Ex ec u tive Board of Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors, at the
ses sion held on De cem ber 18, 2020, reached a De ci sion on the amend ments to the Rulebook
on Tak ing Ex am i na tions for Ob tain ing Pro fes sional Qual i fi ca tions in Ac count ing Pro fes sion,
and the re vised text of the Rulebook, which in cludes the ba sic text from 27.01.2017 and the
amend ments from 18.12.2020, reads as fol lows1:

RULEBOOK ON TAK ING EX AM I NA TIONS 
FOR OB TAIN ING PRO FES SIONAL QUAL I FI CA TIONS 

IN AC COUNT ING PRO FES SION

I. GEN ERAL PRO VI SIONS

Ar ti cle 1
The Rulebook de fines the method of prep a ra tion for pro fes sional ex ams and tak ing the 

ex ams for the ac quir ing of pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions Ac coun tant, Cer ti fied Ac coun tant
and Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tant, and for spe cial ized pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions in specific
fields of expertise.

Ar ti cle 2
Pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions and gen eral con di tions for tak ing the pro fes sional ex am i -

na tions are de fined in ac cor dance with the Na tional Ac count ing Ed u ca tion Stan dard
ROS-31 and the Stat ute of Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors (hereinafter:
Association). 

Ar ti cle 3
Pro fes sional ex am i na tion shall de ter mine the level of knowl edge and skills, which the

can di dates pos sess and which are re quired for in de pend ent book keep ing and prep a ra -
tion of fi nan cial state ments, con duct ing in ter nal and ex ter nal au dit and con trol, and pro -
vid ing of pro fes sional services in public practice.

II. EXAM REG IS TRA TION

Ar ti cle 4
Can di date for ob tain ing ap pro pri ate pro fes sional- qual i fi ca tion and spe cial ized pro -

fes sional qual i fi ca tion shall reg is ter for the ex am i na tion by ful fill ing ap pli ca tion form,
which is the in te gral part of this Rulebook, which is pub lished on the of fi cial web page on
the Association.

Along with the ap pli ca tion, the can di date shall sub mit the proof of ed u ca tion and prac -
ti cal work in ac count ing or pro fes sional services.
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Proof in cludes:
 Ed u ca tion di ploma/cer tif i cate;
 Em ployer’s con fir ma tion of prac ti cal work in ac count ing. 
A can di date for the Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tant, who has pre vi ously ob tained other pro -

fes sional qual i fi ca tions, shall pro vide proof of that pro fes sional qualification.
Ar ti cle 5

Ap pli ca tion, with sup port ing doc u ments, shall be sub mit ted no less than 30 days be -
fore the exam. 

If a can di date fails to sub mit the re quired proof at tached to the ap pli ca tion, it shall be
con sid ered that he/she failed to reg is ter for the ex am i na tion.

In the sub se quent ex am i na tion terms, can di date sub mits only an ap pli ca tion.

III. OR GA NI ZA TION OF PRO FES SIONAL EX AM I NA TIONS

Ar ti cle 6
Ex am i na tions for pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions are held reg u larly twice a year. 

Ar ti cle 7
If nec es sary, ex traor di nary ex am i na tion terms for pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions (here in -

af ter re ferred to as “pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions”) can be determined.
Can di dates shall be in formed about the day, hour and venue of the exam at least 15 (fif -

teen) days in ad vance. 
In ad di tion to writ ten ex ams, cer tain ex ams can also be or ga nized on line.
Ex ams or ga nized on line can be or ga nized in four, or more, terms dur ing the year if nec -

es sary.

Ex am in ers

Ar ti cle 8
Ex am in ers are se lected from among mem bers of the As so ci a tion, who are ex perts in

the fields of ac count ing, au dit ing, fi nance, law, and if nec es sary other fields of expertise. 
The main cri te ria in se lect ing the ex am in ers are pro fes sional com pe tence, proper writ -

ten ex pres sion, knowl edge of the sub ject to which their ex am i na tion ques tions will re fer,
and the abil ity to de sign orig i nal examination questions. 

The Ex ec u tive Board may re quest from all au thors to sign a ver i fied state ment con -
firm ing the au then tic ity of the ex am i na tion questions.

The As so ci a tion re tains the right of own er ship over the ex am i na tion ques tions and an -
swer schemes. 

Ex am i na tion Com mis sions

Ar ti cle 9
Cen tral Ex am i na tion Com mis sion con ducts or ga ni za tion of the ex am i na tion. 

Ar ti cle 10
Cen tral Ex am i na tion Com mis sion shall be com posed of at least three mem bers and the

max i mum num ber of mem bers shall be the to tal num ber of sub jects rep re sented at the
examination. 



The ac tiv i ties of the Cen tral Ex am i na tion Com mis sion shall be man aged by the Chaired
of the Com mis sion. 

Ar ti cle 11
Cen tral Ex am i na tion Com mis sion or Sec re tary Gen eral shall de ter mine in di vid u als

who will mon i tor the ex am i na tion at the ex am i na tion cen tres, i.e. su per vi sors and persons 
on duty. 

Ex am i na tion Venue

Ar ti cle 12
The ex am i na tions for ob tain ing pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions shall be held at the ex am i -

na tion cen tres in Beograd, Novi Sad, and Nis, and if need be, in Kragujevac. 
Ex traor di narily, if more than 30 (thirty) can di dates in one town ap ply for an exam in

one ex am i na tion pe riod, Cen tral Ex am i na tion Com mis sion can de cide to hold the ex am i -
na tion in that town. 

If less than 30 (thirty) can di dates in one town ap ply for an exam in one ex am i na tion pe -
riod, the ex am i na tion shall be held in Bel grade or the ex am i na tion cen tre near est to that
town. 

Ex am i na tion method, con tent of the ex am i na tion, grad ing and grad ing re vi sions

Ar ti cle 13
Ex am i na tion in all sub jects in one ex am i na tion term that are taken in writ ten form

shall be held in all ex am i na tion cen tres on the same day and with the same sched ule, and
the as sign ments shall be iden ti cal for all can di dates at that term. 

If it is not pos si ble to hold the ex am i na tion on the same day, the Cen tral Ex am i na tion
Com mis sion will pro vide a spe cific ex am i na tion ques tions per sub ject for each day of ex -
am i na tion defined specifically. 

Tech ni cal in struc tions and rules of con duct dur ing the exam are pub lished on the of fi -
cial website of the As so ci a tion.

Ar ti cle 14
Can di date shall take a pro fes sional ex am i na tion for each sub ject sep a rately, ac cord ing

to the on go ing program. 
Ar ti cle 15

For se cu rity rea sons and in or der to pre vent pos si ble leak ing of in for ma tion re lated to
the exam ques tions, mem bers of the Ex am i na tion Com mis sions in each cen tre shall not
for ward the exam ques tions in ad vance to the ex am i na tion ven ues but they shall per son -
ally hold them and bring them directly to the examination. 

Ar ti cle 16
In or der to en sure reg u lar ity of the exam and pre vent all cir cum stances that may ad -

versely af fect the ex am i na tion pro ce dure, su per vi sors shall be en gaged as needed. 
Ar ti cle 17

Su per vi sors are re spon si ble for the reg u lar ity of the ex am i na tion and are ob li gated, in
case of the breach or vi o la tion of rules in the ex am i na tion cen ter, as de fined in Ar ti cle 41 of
this Rulebook, to re move the can di date from the exam, sub mit a re port, and in ex traor di -
nary sit u a tions, if the breach or vi o la tion of rules is of such mag ni tude that it in di cates a

100



threat to the se cu rity and reg u lar ity of the en tire test sys tem, cancel the one or all exams
for the day. 

Ar ti cle 18
Su per vi sors and per sons on duty ap pointed dur ing the ex am i na tion pe riod shall not be 

in a close fam ily re la tion ship with any can di date who takes exam at the same place. 
The ex is tence of any other el e ments that could be per ceived as po ten tial causes of con -

flict of in ter ests shall not be per mit ted.
Ar ti cle 19

The num ber of su per vi sors de pends on the pre mises where ex am i na tion is con ducted
and num ber of can di dates who take the exam.

Ar ti cle 20
The ob li ga tions of the su per vi sor and the per sons on duty are: 

– Iden ti fi ca tion, re cep tion and po si tion ing of can di dates; 
– Dis tri bu tion of the exam ma te rial; 
– Su per vi sion of can di dates dur ing the ex am i na tion; 
– Con trol of en try and exit from the pre mises; 
– Col lec tion, pro vi sion and re spon si bil ity for the en tire ex am i na tion ma te rial; 
– Ad dress ing the is sue of reg u lar ity and con tin gen cies. 

Ar ti cle 21
At ten dance check of can di dates shall be per formed 15 (fif teen) min utes be fore the of fi -

cial start of the exam, af ter which can di dates en ter the ex am i na tion room. 
Iden ti fi ca tion of the can di dates shall be per formed prior to the be gin ning of the exam. 
Iden ti fi ca tion of can di dates is based on the ID cards that the can di dates should put on

the desk in front of them selves af ter tak ing their place.  
Ar ti cle 22

Af ter the iden ti fi ca tion of can di dates, exam ma te rial and work books shall be dis trib -
uted. At a sig nal from the su per vi sor can di dates shall be gin with work. 

Ar ti cle 23
Leav ing the exam pre mises dur ing the ex am i na tion shall be per mit ted only with ex -

plicit ap proval of su per vi sors. The re moval of the exam ma te rial and work books from the
test room is strictly for bid den.

Ar ti cle 24
Only the use of writ ing uten sils and a cal cu la tor with ba sic math op er a tions shall be al -

lowed.
The an swers to the exam ques tions shall be writ ten to the pro vided work book.

Ar ti cle 25
Ex am i na tion ques tions for each sub ject shall be pre pared by a com pe tent per son from

the list of ex am in ers and he/she shall de ter mine the mark ing of an swers, in a man ner so
that the to tal num ber of points for one pa per is 100 (one hun dred).

Ar ti cle 26
Ex am in ers who pre pare the exam ques tions are re quired to sub mit a scheme of mark -

ing the an swers to the Cen tral Ex am i na tion Com mis sion.
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Ar ti cle 27
Check ing the com pli ance of the exam ques tions and the scheme of mark ing with the

syl la bus for ap pro pri ate pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions shall be per formed by the Cen tral Ex -
am i na tion Com mis sion.

Ar ti cle 28
A can di date who gets more than 50 (fifty) points is con sid ered to have passed the ex -

am i na tion.
Ex am i na tion for pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions shall be con sid ered passed when the can -

di date has scored more than 50 (fifty) points in all ap pro pri ate sub jects.
Ar ti cle 29

Ex ams are taken in writ ten form be fore the Cen tral Ex am i na tion Com mis sion in a pe -
riod of be tween 45 min utes and 4 (four) hours per sub ject.

Ar ti cle 30
Min utes of the exam shall in clude the fol low ing in for ma tion:
1. Name and sur name of the can di date;
2. Qual i fi ca tion for which the can di date is tak ing the exam;
3. Date and place of ex am i na tion;
4. Name of the exam sub ject;
5. Sig na ture of the can di date who at tended the exam;
6. Re port of the com mis sion, if need be, on breaches of dis ci pline and ex traor di nary

events
7. Sig na tures of the su per vi sors.

Ar ti cle 31
In case of changes in cur ric u lum and syl la bus of the sub ject, a can di date takes the ex -

am i na tion un der pre vi ous cur ric u lum and syl la bus within six months af ter the changes
were made, i.e. af ter that time can di date takes the ex am i na tion un der the on go ing cur ric u -
lum and syl la bus.

Ar ti cle 32
In or der to be come el i gi ble to take the Draft ing Fi nan cial State ments exam, the can di -

date for the pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion Ac coun tant must pass the fol low ing ex ams: Re cord -
ing Fi nan cial Trans ac tions and Prep a ra tion of Fi nan cial State ments.

In or der to be come el i gi ble to take the Plan ning, Con trol and Per for mance Man age -
ment exam, the can di date for the pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion Cer ti fied Ac coun tant must
pass the fol low ing ex ams: In for ma tion for Man age ment Con trol and Cost Ac count ing.

In or der to be come el i gi ble to take the Fi nan cial Man age ment and Con trol exam, the
can di date for the qual i fi ca tion Cer ti fied Ac coun tant must pass the fol low ing exam: Fi nan -
cial In for ma tion for Man age ment.

In or der to be come el i gi ble to take the Fi nan cial Re port ing exam, the can di date for the
pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion Cer ti fied Ac coun tant must pass the exam: Prep a ra tion of Fi nan -
cial State ments.
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Ar ti cle 33
For ex ams or ga nized on line, tech ni cal in struc tions and rules of con duct dur ing the

exam are pub lished on the As so ci a tion’s website.
An exam taken on line in a spe cific sub ject in one exam term is taken by all can di dates

on the same day and at the same time, sched uled for tak ing that exam.
Ar ti cle 34

If the ex am i na tion pa per of a can di date was graded neg a tively, but can di date be lieves
that the fi nal grade is un jus ti fied, he/she may sub mit a com plaint to the Ex am i na tion Com -
mis sion within 15 days of pub li ca tion of the re sults.

The Ex am i na tion Com mis sion may de cide to re-eval u ate the exam pa per of the can di -
date, af ter which the can di date is in formed of the ex is tence or lack of a ba sis for chang ing
the grade of the exam pa per.

Ar ti cle 35
The Ex am i na tion Com mis sion shall pub lish fi nal ex am i na tion re sults no later than

forty days from the date of the ex am i na tion.
A can di date who has passed an exam will be, on re quest, is sued ap pro pri ate con fir ma -

tion by the As so ci a tion.
Ar ti cle 36

Ex am i na tion ma te rial and exam pa pers of the can di dates are the prop erty of the As so -
ci a tion and shall be  re tained for the pe riod des ig nated by the List of cat e go ries of reg is try
ma te rial with retention periods.

Ar ti cle 37
The As so ci a tion, through its pub li ca tions and web page, may pub lish some ques tions

and sug ges tions for an swers from pre vi ous ex am i na tions.

IV. CAN DI DATES WITH DIS ABIL I TIES

Ar ti cle 38
Can di dates with dis abil i ties have an equal right to take the exam, to be graded on the

base of dem on strated re sults and to ob tain the proper con fir ma tion.
The pro ce dure of as sess ing knowl edge for can di dates with dis abil i ties shall be iden ti -

cal as for other can di dates, and mitigations shall be re flected in the or ga ni za tional and
tech ni cal ad just ments.

Ar ti cle 39
In or der to pro vide or ga ni za tional and tech ni cal mitigations for dis abled ap pli cants, it

is nec es sary to write down in the ap pli ca tion form the fol low ing: type of dis abil ity with a
re quest for ad just ment, sup ported by ap pro pri ate med i cal doc u men ta tion.

V. UN FORE SEEN CIR CUM STANCES AND EMER GEN CIES

Ar ti cle 40
Un fore seen cir cum stances and emer gen cies in clude: nat u ral di sas ters, fire, ex tended

power fail ure, bomb and sim i lar threats, heated dis cus sions, vi o la tion of pro tec tion of in -
for ma tion and de fi ciency of tests.

In the case of nat u ral di sas ters, fire, ex tended power fail ure, bomb or sim i lar threats,
heated dis cus sions and de fi ciency of tests, the exam will not be held, ex cept if these cir -
cum stances can be cor rected within a rea son able pe riod of time (up to one hour).
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If the be gin ning of the ex am i na tion is de layed for more than an hour, the exam will be
held at an other date, the term for which shall be sched uled as soon as pos si ble, out side of
reg u lar ex am i na tion term.

If there was an un author ised dis clo sure of in for ma tion re gard ing the con tent of exam
ques tions, the ex am i na tion in that ex am i na tion cen tre shall be an nulled in its entirety.

VI. BREACH OF DIS CI PLINE

Ar ti cle 41
Breach of dis ci pline in terms of this Rulebook shall in clude:

– Com mu ni ca tion with other per sons;
– Il le gal use of any ma te rial and de vices other than those listed in Ar ti cle 24 of

this Rulebook;
– Be hav ior that dis turbs other can di dates.

Ar ti cle 42
When an Ex am i na tion Com mis sion mem ber or a su per vi sor, dur ing the pro fes sional

ex am i na tion, es tab lishes that can di date has breached dis ci pline, he/she shall sus pend the
can di date from the ex am i na tion.

The ob served and found vi o la tions of dis ci pline shall be stated in a spe cific re port
within the ex am i na tion min utes.

The exam pa per of a can di date who is re moved from the exam is re corded with zero
points and marked as “FAILED”.

Ar ti cle 43
Cen tral Ex am i na tion Com mis sion, for se ri ous vi o la tions of dis ci pline (shout ing, phys i -

cal as sault, be ing in tox i cated, tak ing out or re pro duc ing exam ma te rial in any way, etc.)
may im pose the fol low ing disciplinary measures:

– Tem po rary ban from sit ting ex am i na tions
– Per ma nent ban from sit ting ex am i na tions

Ar ti cle 44
A can di date may ap peal to the Dis ci plin ary Com mit tee re gard ing the de ci sion of the

Cen tral Ex am i na tion Com mis sion con cern ing dis ci plin ary mea sure within 15 days of the
reach ing of de ci sion. The de ci sion of the Dis ci plin ary Com mit tee is fi nal.

VII. RIGHTS OF PRO FES SIONAL AC COUN TANTS 
ARIS ING FROM PRO FES SIONAL DOC U MENTS

Ar ti cle 45
Can di date, who has passed a pro fes sional exam and ob tained pro fes sional qual i fi ca -

tion, shall be is sued a cer tif i cate, pro fes sional mem ber ship card and the first an nual li -
cense on pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions. 

Ar ti cle 46
A per son who has passed all the ex ams for the cor re spond ing pro fes sional qual i fi ca -

tion is is sued the an nual pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion li cense ev ery year, pro vided that he or
she achieves the re quired num ber of points in ac cor dance with the Rulebook on
Continuing Education.

A pro fes sional ti tle is valid only if a valid an nual pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion li cense has
been issued.
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Mem ber - holder of pro fes sional qual i fi ca tion has all the rights and ob li ga tions de fined
by the Stat ute and other acts of the In sti tute pro vided that he/she: 

- Con sis tently ap plies the le gal and pro fes sional reg u la tions, pol i cies, stan dards, the
IFAC Code of Pro fes sional Ac coun tants and the Stat ute of the Association; 

- Con tin u ously in no vates his/her pro fes sional skills, in clud ing fol low ing the in struc -
tive and the o ret i cal lit er a ture, at tend ing con fer ences, sem i nars, courses and sym po sia in
the field of ac count ing, au dit ing, fi nan cial op er a tions, payment operations, and others. 

Ar ti cle 47
The hold ers of the doc u ments of the As so ci a tion - hold ers of pro fes sional qual i fi ca -

tions, ex er cise the above stated rights and ob li ga tions in Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun -
tants and Au di tors, for which spe cific reg is try is kept. 

VIII. AP PRO PRI ATE IM PLE MEN TA TION OF THE RULEBOOK

Ar ti cle 48
The pro vi sions of this Rulebook shall be ap plied ap pro pri ately to can di dates who take

the pro fes sional exam for ob tain ing spe cial ized li censes and cer tif i cates in spe cific fields
of ex per tise. 

IX. TRAN SI TIONAL AND CLOS ING PRO VI SIONS

Ar ti cle 49
On the day of com ing into force of this Rulebook, the Rulebook on tak ing ex am i na tions

for ob tain ing pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions in the ac count ing pro fes sion pub lished in “Glas
raиunovoрa“ No. 14, on Jan u ary 30, 2009, is no lon ger in force.

Ar ti cle 50
This Rulebook shall come into force the day af ter its pub li ca tion in the Voice of Ac coun -

tants. 
CHAIR MAN OF THE EX EC U TIVE BOARD 

Sne àna Cico
Cer ti fied Ac coun tant



Pur su ant to Ar ti cle 32, para graph 1, item 11 of the Stat ute of Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac -
coun tants and Au di tors (No. 26, dated Jan u ary 29, 2010, cer ti fied and reg is tered in the
Reg is ter of As so ci a tions un der No. 000064 305370 with amend ments – the re vised text
No. 107, dated June 23, 2017, cer ti fied and reg is tered in the Reg is try of the As so ci a tion un -
der no. 000264205814), In ter na tional Ed u ca tion Stan dards (IES) IFAC Guide lines and
IESBA Code of Eth ics for Pro fes sional Ac coun tants, as well as the Na tional Ac count ing Ed -
u ca tion Stan dard ROS 31-Pro fes sional Ed u ca tion and Train ing of Ac coun tants, and in ac -
cor dance with the reg is tered ac tiv ity of the As so ci a tion, the Ex ec u tive Com mit tee of Ser -
bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors, at the ses sion held on No vem ber 18, 2022
adopted the De ci sion on the Amend ments of the Rulebook on Con tin u ing Ed u ca tion and
Train ing of pro fes sional ac coun tants, and the con sol i dated text con tain ing the ba sic text
of Jan u ary 27, 2017 and the amend ments of July 26, 2017, December 7, 2018, December
13, 2019, October 22, 2021 and November 18, 2022, is as follows:

RULEBOOK ON CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION 
AND TRAINING OF PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS

Article 1.
This Rulebook reg u lates the is sues re lated to the man da tory con tin u ous ed u ca tion and 

de vel op ment of pro fes sional ac coun tants - mem bers of Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun -
tants and Au di tors (here in af ter: mem bers), the goal of which is the re newal, ex pan sion, in -
no va tion and im prove ment of professional knowledge of the members. 

Article 2.
In keep ing with the by laws of Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors (here -

in af ter: the As so ci a tion), In ter na tional Ed u ca tion Stan dard for pro fes sional ac coun tants
IES 7, Ar ti cles 31.41 and 31.42 of the Na tional Ac count ing Ed u ca tion Stan dard ROS 31 –
Pro fes sional Ed u ca tion and Train ing of Ac coun tants and the IESBA Code of Eth ics for Pro -
fes sional Ac coun tants, the mem ber is re quired to un dergo pro fes sional ed u ca tion and de -
vel op ment, ac cord ing to the pro gram adopted by the As so ci a tion, on the ba sis of which he
or she is given the an nual li cense for accountancy practice and professional provision of
services.

Article 3.
Con tin u ous pro fes sional ed u ca tion and train ing is achieved by way of the per sonal en -

gage ment of mem bers through the reg u lar read ing of pro fes sional lit er a ture and at tend -
ing con fer ences, sym po sia, sem i nars and other forms of professional training.

106



Article 4.
Con tin u ing ed u ca tion is quan ti fied by eval u at ing in di vid ual forms of con tin u ing ed u ca -

tion in which the mem ber par tic i pated, or ga nized by the As so ci a tion or an other en tity un -
der the authority of the Association.

Article 5.
In or der to be is sued the an nual li cense for pro fes sional prac tice, it is nec es sary to meet 

the an nual re quire ment of 40 points.
A mem ber who, for jus ti fied rea sons, has not met the an nual re quire ment of 40 points,

in any case, has the ob li ga tion to col lect 120 points in the pe riod of three con sec u tive
years.

A mem ber who does not col lect 120 points for a pe riod of three con sec u tive years shall
be sub ject to the ob li ga tion spec i fied in para graph 31.42 of the Na tional Ac count ing Stan -
dard ROS 31 - Pro fes sional ed u ca tion and train ing of ac coun tants.

Article 6.
 The de ci sion of the Ex ec u tive Board of the As so ci a tion de ter mines the an nual sched -

ule, with ap pro pri ate top ics and num ber of points, of man da tory con tin u ing ed u ca tion
and train ing of pro fes sional ac coun tants who are members of the Association.

Article 7.
Ac cord ing to his/her pref er ences, a mem ber can also, through reg u lar forms of the o -

ret i cal and in struc tive ed u ca tion and train ing, ob tain the nec es sary points for ac quir ing
the right to the pro fes sional practice license:

Al ter na tive forms of the o ret i cal 
and in struc tive ed u ca tion

Number
of points Points are awarded to

1
Use of instructive professional-expert
publications, in everyday practice
(subscription to the publication
Accounting Practice)

28
Members, subscribers to the 
publication Accounting
Practice (Raиunovodstvena
Praksa)

2. Seminar for annual financial report –
Instructive education 12 Members for personal

attendance

3. Attendance at the Symposium and autumn
seminar – professional-expert education 22 Members for personal

attendance

4. Seminar – current issues 6 Members for personal
attendance

 The is su ance of an an nual li cense on pro fes sional com pe tency ex tends the va lid ity of
the cer tif i cate and other pro fes sional doc u ments is sued to a mem ber of the Association.

Article 8.
The As so ci a tion main tains the Di rec tory of Pro fes sional Ac coun tants, which in cludes

the re cords of com pleted con tin u ing ed u ca tion and train ing and ac quired stat u tory rights
and ob li ga tions of mem bers, as well as re cords on the com pli ance of their prac tice with the 
Stat ute of the As so ci a tion, In ter na tional Stan dards of Ed u ca tion (IES) and the IESBA Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants.
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Article 9.
Against a mem ber who fails to per form a mem ber ship ob li ga tion or ex er cises a prac -

tice con trary to the signed of fi cial as sev er a tion, the com pe tent au thor ity of the As so ci a -
tion shall ini ti ate pro ceed ings in ac cor dance with the Rules on Dis ci plin ary Re spon si bil ity
of Members of the Association.

Article 10.
On the day this Rulebook co mes into force, the Rulebook on Con tin u ing Ed u ca tion of

Mem bers of 02.12.2003 shall cease to ap ply, in clud ing the amend ments of 23.12.2005 and
30.01.2007 (“Voice of Ac coun tants” No. 3/03 ... 26/16).

Article 11.
This Rulebook shall come into ef fect on the day fol low ing its pub li ca tion on the bul le tin

board at the Head Of fice of the As so ci a tion, and shall also be pub lished in the “Voice of Ac -
coun tants” edi tion, as nec es sary, and in other pub li ca tions of the Association. “*.

CHAIR OF THE EX EC U TIVE BOARD
Sne`ana Cico, PhD

Cer ti fied Ac coun tant

108

The bod ies of the As so ci a tion es tab lish an an nual pro gram of con tin u ing ed -
u ca tion (see page 18 of this pub li ca tion or pages 17-18 of the Plan ner of Pro -
fes sional Ac coun tants for 2025) and train ing (Ar ti cles 6 and 7 of the
Rulebook). Ev ery li censed pro fes sional ac coun tant - mem ber of the As so ci a -
tion who is en gaged in pro fes sional prac tice is obliged to achieve at least 40
points of con tin u ing ed u ca tion an nu ally or, ex cep tion ally for jus ti fied rea -
sons (health or of fi cial ab sence) 120 within three years. Oth er wise, the
mem ber is not is sued a Li cense and is de leted from the Di rec tory of Pro fes -
sional Li censed Ac coun tants. 

On the first page of the Plan ner of Pro fes sional Ac coun tants, each mem ber of the
As so ci a tion has the op por tu nity to mon i tor and re cord the achieve ment of his/her
con tin u ing ed u ca tion and train ing.

*
Pub lished on 18.11.2022.



Ex tract from the Stat ute of 
Ser bian Association of 

Ac coun tants and Au di tors

GOALS OF THE AS SO CI A TION

Ar ti cle 7
The goals of the As so ci a tion are:
1. to de velop and pro mote the ac coun tancy pro fes sion,
2. en cour age, co or di nate and di rect ac tiv i ties of pro fes sional ac coun tants and their

or ga ni za tions as to im prove ac count ing and fi nan cial sys tems;
3. to ed u cate, spe cial ize and con tin u ally im prove pro fes sional ac coun tants;
4. to pro tect the pro fes sional in ter ests of mem bers and as sist them in car ry ing out

pro fes sional ac tiv i ties;
5. to mon i tor the pro fes sional con duct of mem bers in the im ple men ta tion of le gal and

pro fes sional reg u la tions, in ac cor dance with IESBA Code of Eth ics for Pro fes sional
Ac coun tants and other pro fes sional reg u la tions (here in af ter the Code);

6. As a full mem ber of IFAC, to trans late, pub lish and work to wards com pli ance with
the In ter na tional Ac count ing Stan dards / In ter na tional Fi nan cial Re port ing Stan -
dards (IAS / IFRS) In ter na tional Fi nan cial Re port ing Stan dards for small and me -
dium-sized en ti ties (IFRS for SME), the In ter na tional Stan dards on Au dit ing (ISA);
In ter na tional Pub lic Sec tor Ac count ing Stan dards (IPSAS); In ter na tional Stan dards 
on Qual ity Con trol (ICQC) In ter na tional stan dards of ed u ca tion (ISE) and other pro -
fes sional reg u la tions;

7. to adopt and up date the na tional pro fes sional ac count ing and eth i cal stan dards and 
other pro fes sional reg u la tions;

8. in ac cor dance with the needs of the pro fes sion, to adopt and pro mote ac count ing,
tech ni cal and eth i cal stan dards, or ga nize their im ple men ta tion, and on go ing pro -
fes sional de vel op ment and up dat ing the knowl edge of its mem bers;

9. to co op er ate with uni ver si ties, pro fes sional, sci en tific and pro fes sional or ga ni za -
tions and in sti tu tions at home and abroad, as well as with gov ern ment agen cies, or -
ga ni za tions and in sti tu tions to pro mote and de velop the ac count ing pro fes sion;

10. to ac tively par tic i pate in the ac tiv i ties of in ter na tional pro fes sional or ga ni za tions
of ac coun tants (in ter na tional reg u la tors);

The As so ci a tion, in the in ter est of its mem ber ship, may dis charge pub lic au thor i ties if
they are in ac cor dance with the goals of the As so ci a tion and if they are en trusted to it by
law.
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Ar ti cle 8.

In or der to achieve its goals, the As so ci a tion shall in par tic u lar:
– train fu ture mem bers – can di dates for ac quir ing pro fes sional qual -i fi ca tions and as -

sess their pro fes sional com pe tence for full mem ber ship and the qual i fi ca tion of pro -
fes sional ac coun tant;

– pro vide con tin u ous pro fes sional de vel op ment for mem bers of the As so ci a tion – pro -
fes sional ac coun tants and is sue pro fes sional doc u ments prov ing the ac quired pro -
fes sional qual i fi ca tion, spe cial iza tion and con tin u ous de vel op ment;

– or ga nize con tin u ous ed u ca tion through sym po siums, sem i nars, courses, fo rums and 
other pro fes sional and sci en tific con fer ences with the aim of per ma nent ed u ca tion
and im prove ment and in no va tion of the knowl edge of its mem ber ship, which shall
be re corded in the reg is try of the As so ci a tion;

– pub lish pro fes sional ed u ca tional mag a zines and pub li ca tions, in tended for in form -
ing and con tin u ous ed u ca tion of the mem ber ship, in the field of ac count ing, busi ness
fi nance and au dit ing, in ac cor dance with the law;

– main tain the Di rec tory of pro fes sional ac coun tants, mem bers of the As so ci a tion and
the reg is ter of le gal en ti ties and en tre pre neurs reg is tered for the pro vi sion of ac -
count ing and au dit ing ser vices, mem bers of the As so ci a tion.

Mem bership

Ar ti cle 15

Mem bers of the As so ci a tion must be loyal to the or ga ni za tion and act in the best in ter -
est of the mem ber ship and so that the ob jec tives of the As so ci a tion are achieved.

Ar ti cle 16

The rights of mem bers are:
– to par tic i pate ac tively in the re al iza tion of the pro gram and ob jec tives of the As so ci a -

tion;
– to elect and be elected to the bod ies of the As so ci a tion;
– to use the pro fes sional lit er a ture and the ser vices of the As so ci a tion in con tin u ous

pro fes sional ed u ca tion and train ing while ex er cis ing pro fes sional prac tice and other 
forms of train ing;

– to use pro fes sional doc u ments in pub lic;
– to ob tain the pro tec tion of the As so ci a tion, in the ex er cise of the pro fes sion in ac cor -

dance with the law and the Code;
– to be in formed about, and par tic i pate in the ac tiv i ties of the As so ci a tion;
– to par tic i pate in sem i nars, courses and sym po sia;
– to ex er cise other rights in con nec tion with the per for mance of their pro fes sional ac -

tiv i ties.
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Ob li ga tions of the mem bers are:
– to par tic i pate ac tively in the re al iza tion of the pro gram and ob jec tives of the As so ci a -

tion;
– to ad here in their pro fes sional work to the law, the Stat ute of the As so ci a tion and the

Pro fes sional Code, and other reg u la tions;
– to use the pro fes sional doc u ments in ac cor dance with the reg u la tions of the As so ci a -

tion;
– to use ac tively the pub li ca tions and ser vices of the As so ci a tion;
– to ac cept and ful fill the ob li ga tions of con tin u ous im prove ment;
– to ful fill prop erly their fi nan cial ob li ga tions to the As so ci a tion;
– to per form other du ties re lated to the per for mance of their pro fes sional ac tiv i ties

and their mem ber ship in the As so ci a tion.
As so ci a tion mem bers are li a ble for not meet ing their mem ber ship ob li ga tions in ac cor -

dance with the Code and the stat ute.

REG IS TERED AC TIV I TIES OF THE AS SO CI A TION

Ar ti cle 56
In or der to achieve the goals set out in this Stat ute, to the ex tent nec es sary to achieve

the es tab lished goals, the As so ci a tion car ries out a reg is tered busi ness ac tiv ity.
The As so ci a tion’s main ac tiv ity is reg is tered un der 8560 – Aux il iary ed u ca tional ac tiv i -

ties.
The main reg is tered ac tiv ity, re ferred to in para graph 2 of this Ar ti cle, car ried out by

the As so ci a tion, in cludes: or ga niz ing ex am i na tions for the ac qui si tion of the pro fes sional
qual i fi ca tions of ac coun tant, in de pend ent ac coun tant, cer ti fied ac coun tant, cer ti fied pub -
lic ac coun tant-cer ti fied au di tor, cer ti fied pub lic sec tor ac coun tant, man age ment ac coun -
tant, fo ren sic ac coun tant, in ter nal au di tor, pro fes sional ap praiser and tax ad vi sor; or ga ni -
za tion of con tin u ing ed u ca tion, con fer ences, sem i nars, sym po siums, con gresses, in ter na -
tional con gresses and other forms of sci en tific and pro fes sional train ing; pro fes sional ed -
u ca tion and train ing of ac coun tants, bal ance sheet ac coun tants, trea sur ers.

The As so ci a tion may also ob tain re sources from the per for mance of the fol low ing ac -
tiv i ties: re search and ex per i men tal de vel op ment in the so cial sci ences - de vel op ment and
pro mo tion of pro fes sional, ac count ing and eth i cal stan dards; pub lish ing books, bro -
chures, mag a zines and other pub li ca tions in tended for mem ber ship and for the pur poses
of train ing can di dates for ac quir ing pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions; ad ver tis ing and pro mo -
tional ser vices, me dia rep re sen ta tion, i.e. sale of terms and space for var i ous me dia ad ver -
tis ing, as well as other forms of re lated eco nomic ac tiv i ties car ried out by the As so ci a tion.

111



COMPARATIVE SURVEY

PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING QUALIFICATIONS ACQUIRED 
THROUGH THE MEMBER BODIES OF THE INTERNATIONAL 

FEDERATION OF ACCOUNTANTS - IFAC
In order to understand and get acquainted with world practice, all terms from the

foreign names of the associations of IFAC members such as the institute, chamber,
union, association, federation, have been translated to Serbian with a unique term of
association, since a literal translation of certain terms into Serbian would represent
another form of organization, that is, it would not coincide with its essential meaning.

No. Coun try Pro fes sional 
qual i fi ca tion

Na tional as so ci a tions 
that pro vide pro fes sional qual i fi ca tions 

in ac count ing

1. Azerbaijan Cer ti fied 
Au di tor

 The Cham ber of Au di tors of Azerbaijan Re pub lic

2. Al ba nia

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant 

 Al ba nian In sti tute of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants

Char tered 
Au di tor

 In sti tute of Au tho rized Char tered Au di tors of Al ba nia

3. Ar gen tina Pub lic
Ac coun tant

 Federacin Ar gen tina de Consejos Profesionales de
Ciencias Econуmicas (As so ci a tion of Pro fes sional Bod ies
of Eco nomic Sci ences of Ar gen tina)

4. Aus tra lia

Char tered 
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants in Aus tra lia

Cer ti fied 
Pub lic 

Ac coun tant

 In sti tute of Pub lic Ac coun tants

 CPA Cer ti fied Prac tis ing Ac coun tant Aus tra lia

5. Aus tria

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Kammer der Wirtschaftstreuhnder
(As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants – Au di tors)

Au di tor  Institut sterreichischer Wirtschaftsprfer
 (As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants of Aus tria)

6. Ban gla desh

Char tered
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants of Ban gla desh

Man age ment
Accountant

 The In sti tute of Cost and Man age ment Ac coun tants of
Ban gla desh

7. Bar ba dos Char tered
Ac coun tant

 (The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants of Bar ba dos)
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8. The Ba ha mas Char tered
Ac coun tant

 The Ba ha mas In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants

9. Bel gium

Cer ti fied
Ac coun tant
Ac coun tant

Tax 
Ac coun tant

Cer ti fied
Au di tor

Tax Adviser

 Institut des Ex perts-comptables et des Conseils Fiscaux – 
Instituut Van de Ac coun tants en de Belasting con -
sulenten (As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants and Tax
Advisers)

 Instituut van de Bedrijfsrev isoren - Institut des Rviseurs 
d’Entreprises  (As so ci a tion of Com pany Au di tors)

10. Bolivia
Cer ti fied

Ac coun tant
Au di tor 

 Colegio de Audi tores de Bolivia (As so ci a tion of Au di tors
of Bolivia)

11.
Bosnia and

Herzegovina
(Re pub lic of Srpska)

Ac coun tant
Cer ti fied Ac coun tant

Cer ti fied 
Au di tor

 As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors of Re pub lic of
Srpska

12

Bosnia and
Herzegovina

(Federaton of
Bosnia and

Herzegovina)

Cer ti fied Ac count ing
Tech ni cian

Cer ti fied Ac coun tant
Cer ti fied Au di tor

 As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants, Au di tors and Fi nan cial Work -
ers of the Fed er a tion of Bosnia and Herzegovina

13. Bot swana Char tered
Ac coun tant

 Bot swana In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants

14. Brasil

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Conselho Fed eral de Contabilidade 
(As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants)

Cer ti fied 
Pub lic 

Ac coun tant

 Instituto dos Auditores Independentes do Brasil
 (As so ci a tion of In de pend ent Au di tors of Brasil)

15. Bul garia Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants of Bul garia

16. Viet nam Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Viet nam Ac count ing As so ci a tion

17. Ghana Char tered
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants (Ghana)

18 Gua te mala Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Instituto Guatemalteco de Contadores Publicos y
Auditores (As so ci a tion of Pub lic Ac coun tants and Au di -
tors of Gua te mala)

19. Guy ana Char tered
Accountant

 The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants of Guy ana

20. Geor gia Cer ti fied Pro fes sional
Ac coun tant

 Geor gian Fed er a tion of Pro fes sional Ac coun tants and Au -
di tors
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21. Greece Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants of Greece (SOEL)

22. Den mark Au di tor  FSR - danske revisorer (Dan ish As so ci a tion of Au di tors)

23. Do min i can Re pub lic Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Instituto de Contadores Pblicos Autorizados de la
Repblica Dominicana (As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Pub lic
Ac coun tants of Do min i can Republic)

24. Egypt
Cer ti fied 

Ac coun tant
and Au di tor

 The Egyp tian So ci ety of Ac coun tants & Au di tors

25. Es to nia Cer ti fied Au di tor  Es to nian Au di tors’ As so ci a tion

26. Zam bia Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Zam bia In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants

27. Zim ba bwe Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants of Zim ba bwe

28. Is rael Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants in Is rael

29. In dia
Cer ti fied  Ac coun tant  The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants of In dia

Man age ment 
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Cost Ac coun tants of In dia

30. In do ne sia Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Ikatan Akuntan In do ne sia 
(As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants of In do ne sia)

31. Iraq
Cer ti fied 

Ac coun tant
Au di tor

 Iraqi Un ion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors

32. Iran 
(Is lamic Re pub lic of)

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 The Ira nian In sti tute of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants

Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Ira nian As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants

33. Ire land

Char tered
Ac coun tant

 Char tered Ac coun tants of Ire land

Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants in Ire land

34. Ice land Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Flag Lggiltra Endurskodenda 
(As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants of Ice land)

35. It aly
Cer ti fied

Ac coun tant
Ac coun tant

 Consiglio Nazionale dei Dottori Commercialisti e degli
Esperti Contabili (Na tional Coun cil of Certifiead Ac coun -
tants and accouning ex perts)

36. Ja maica Char tered
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants of Ja maica
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37. Ja pan Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 The Jap a nese In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants

38. Jor dan

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 The In ter na tional Arab So ci ety of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants

Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Jor da nian As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants

39. South Af rica

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 The South Af ri can In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants)

Pro fes sional 
Ac coun tant

 The South Af ri can In sti tute of Pro fes sional Ac coun tants

40 Kazakhstan Cer ti fied Au di tor  Cham ber of Au di tors of the Re pub lic of Kazakhstan

41. Cayman Is lands Pro fes sional 
Ac coun tant

 Cayman Is lands So ci ety of Pro fes sional Ac coun tants

42. Cam er oon Char tered
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants of Cam er oon

43. Can ada Char tered
Ac coun tant

 Char tered Pro fes sional Ac coun tants of Can ada

44. Kenya Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants of Kenya

45. China Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 The Chi nese In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants

46. Cy prus Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants of Cy prus

47. Co lom bia Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Instituto Nacional de Contadores P blicos de Co lom bia
(Na tional As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants of
Colombia)

48. Ko rea Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Ko rean In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants

49. Kosovo and
Metochia

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

Cer ti fied Au di tor 

 So ci ety of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants and Au di tors of Kosovo

50. Costa Rica Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Colegio de Contadores Pblicos de Costa Rica
 (As so ci a tion of Pub lic Ac coun tants of Costa Rica)

51. Ku wait
Cer ti fied 

Ac coun tant 
and Au di tor

 Ku wait As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors

52. Le sotho Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Le sotho In sti tute of Ac coun tants
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53. Lat via

Cer ti fied 
Au di tor 

 Lat vian As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Au di tors

Cer ti fied Accoountant  As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants of the Re pub lic of Latvia

54. Leb a non Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Leb a nese As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants

55. Li be ria Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 The Li be rian In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants

56 Lith u a nia Cer ti fied Au di tor  Lith u a nian Cham ber of Au di tors

57 Lux em bourg Cer ti fied Au di tor  Institut des Rviseurs d’Entreprises

58. Mad a gas car Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Ordre des Ex perts Comptables et Fi nan ciers de Mad a gas -
car (As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants of Madagascar)

59. Hun gary Cer ti fied Au di tor  Cham ber of Hun gar ian Au di tors

60. Ma lawi Char tered
Ac coun tant

 In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants in Ma lawi

61. Ma lay sia
Ac coun tant  Ma lay sian In sti tute of Ac coun tants

Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 The Ma lay sian In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants

62. Malta Ac coun tant  The Malta In sti tute of Ac coun tants

63. Mo rocco Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Ordre des Ex perts Comptables du Royaume du Maroc
(As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants of Morrocco)

64. Mau ri tius Ac coun tant Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Mau ri tius In sti tute of Pro fes sional Ac coun tants

65. Mex ico Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Instituto Mexicano de Contadores Pblicos, A.C.
 (As so ci a tion of Pub lic Ac coun tants of Mex ico)

66. Moldova
Cer ti fied 

Ac coun tant and Au di -
tor

 As so ci a tion of Pro fes sional Ac coun tants & Au di tors of the 
Re pub lic of Moldova

67. Mon go lia Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Mon go lian In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants

68. Namibia Char tered
Ac coun tant

 In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants of Namibia

69. Ger many Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant - Au di tor

 Institut der Wirtschaftsprfer 
(As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants)

 Wirtschaftsprferkammer (As so ci a tion of Au di tors)

70. Ne pal Char tered
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants of Ne pal
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71. Ni ge ria
Ac coun tant
Char tered

Ac coun tant

 As so ci a tion of Na tional Ac coun tants of Ni ge ria

 The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants of Ni ge ria

072. Nic a ra gua Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Colegio de Contadores Pblicos de Nic a ra gua
(As so ci a tion of Pub lic Ac coun tants of Nic a ra gua)

73. New Zea land Char tered
Ac coun tant

 New Zea land In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants

74. Nor way Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Den Norske Revisorforening (DnR) 
(As so ci a tion of Pub lic Ac coun tants of Nor way)

75. Ivory Coast Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Ordre des Ex perts Comptables et Comptables Agrs de
Cte d’Ivoire (As so ci a tion of Pro fes sional and Cer ti fied
Ac coun tants of Ivory Coast)

76. Pa ki stan

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants of Pa ki stan

Cost Ac coun tant  In sti tute of Cost and Man age ment Ac coun tants of Pa ki -
stan

77. Pan ama Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Colegio de Contadores Pblicos Autorizados de Pan ama
(As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants of Pan ama)

78. Pa pua New Guinea Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Cer ti fied Prac tis ing Ac coun tants Pa pua New Guinea

79. Par a guay Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Colegio de Contadores de Par a guay (As so ci a tion of Cer ti -
fied Ac coun tants in Par a guay)

80. Peru Ac coun tant Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Junta de Decanos de Colegios de Contadores Pblicos del 
Per (As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants in Pub lic Prac -
tice of Peru)

81. Po land

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Ac coun tants As so ci a tion in Po land

Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Na tional Cham ber of Stat u tory Au di tors

82 Por tu gal

Ac coun tant Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Ordem dos Contabilistas Certificados (As so ci a tion of Cer -
ti fied Ac coun tants)

Cer ti fied Au di tor  Ordem dos Revisores Oficiais de Contas (As so ci a tion of
Cer ti fied Au di tors)
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83. Ro ma nia

Li censed
Ac coun tant

 Corpul Expertilor Contabili si Contabililor Autorizati din
Ro ma nia (CECCAR)/The Body of Ex pert and Li censed Ac -
coun tants of Ro ma nia

Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac -
coun tant - Au di tor

 The Cham ber of Fi nan cial Au di tors of Ro ma nia

84. USA

Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Amer i can In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants

Man age ment 
Ac coun tant

 In sti tute of Man age ment Ac coun tants

85 Sal va dor Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Instituto Salvadoreсo de Contadores Pdblicos 
(As so ci a tion of Pub lic Ac coun tants)

86. Saudi Ara bia Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Saudi Or ga ni za tion for Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants

87. Swa zi land Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Swa zi land In sti tute of Ac coun tants

88. Re pub lic of North
Mac e do nia Cer ti fied Au di tor  In sti tute of Cer ti fied Au di tors of the Re pub lic of North

Mac e do nia

89. Sen e gal
Cer ti fied 

Ac coun tant 
and Au di tor

 Ordre Na tional des Ex perts Comptables et Comptables
Agrs du Sngal (Na tional As so ci a tion of Sertified
Ac coun tants and Cer ti fied Au di tors in Sen e gal)

90. Si erra Le one Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants of Si erra Le one,
(ICASL)

91. Sin ga pore Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 In sti tute of Sin ga pore Char tered Ac coun tants

92. Slovakia Cer ti fied 
Au di tor 

 Slovenska Komora Auditorov

93. Slovenia

Cer ti fied
Ac coun tant

Cer ti fied
IT Au di tor

Cer ti fied In ter nal
Au di tor

Cer ti fied Tax Ad viser

 The Slovenian In sti tute of Au di tors

94. Ser bia

Ac coun tant 
Cer ti fied 

Ac coun tant 
Cer ti fied Pub lic 

Ac coun tant

 Ser bian As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants and Au di tors

95. Tai wan Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Fed er a tion of CPA As so ci a tions of Chi nese Tai wan
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96. Thai land

Cer ti fied Pub lic
Ac coun tant

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Fed er a tion of Ac count ing Pro fes sions

97. Tan za nia

Cer ti fied
Ac coun tant

Cer ti fied 
Au di tor

 Na tional Board of Ac coun tants and Au di tors (NBAA))

98. Trin i dad & To bago Char tered
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants 
of Trin i dad & To bago

99. Tu ni sia Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Ordre des Ex perts Comptables de Tunisie (As so ci a tion of
Pro fes sional Ac coun tants of Tu ni sia)

100. Tur key Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Ex pert Ac coun tants’ As so ci a tion of Tur key

Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Un ion of Cham bers of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants of
Tur key (T RMOB)

101. Uganda Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants of Uganda

102. United King dom

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 The As so ci a tion of Char tered Cer ti fied Ac coun tants

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants in Eng land and
Wales

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants of Scot land

Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Fi nance

Ac coun tant 

 The Char tered In sti tute of Pub lic Fi nance 
and Ac coun t ancy

Man age ment 
Ac coun tant

 The Char tered In sti tute of Man age ment Ac coun tants
(CIMA)

Ac count ing Tech ni cian  As so ci a tion of Ac count ing Tech ni cians (AAT)

Fi nan cial Ac coun tant  In sti tute of Fi nan cial Ac coun tants

103. Ukraine

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant 

Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Ukrai nian Fed er a tion of Pro fes sional Ac coun tants and
Au di tors

104. Uru guay Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Colegio de Contadores, Economistas y Administra dores
del Uru guay (As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants, Econ o mists and 
Ad min is tra tive Work ers of Uruguay)
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105. Philipines Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

  Phil ip pine In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants

106. Fin land Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 KHT-yhdistys-Freningen CGR ry 
(As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants)

107. Fiji Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Fiji In sti tute of Ac coun tants

108. France

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Conseil Suprieur de l’Ordre des Ex perts-Comptables
(As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants)

Ac count ing 
State ment 
Con trol ler

 Compagnie Nationale des Commissaires aux Comptes
(Na tional As so ci a tion of Ac count ing 
State ment Con trol lers)

109. Haiti Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Ordre des Comptables Professionels Agrees d’Haiti 
(As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants of Haiti)

110. Hol land Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Nederlandse Beroepsorganisatie van Ac coun tants 
(As so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants of Holland)

111.

Hong Kong
(Spe cial Ad min is tra -

tive Re gion of
China)

Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Hong Kong In sti tute of Cer ti fied Pub lic Ac coun tants

112. Hon du ras Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

 Colegio de Peritos Mercantiles y Contadores Pblicos
(As so ci a tion of Pro fes sional and Pub lic Ac coun tants)

113. Montenegro

Ac coun tant
Char tered Ac coun tant
Cer ti fied Ac coun tant

 In sti tute of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants of Montenegro

114. The Czech Re pub lic

Cer ti fied
Ac coun tant

Cer ti fied 
Au di tor

 Un ion of Ac coun tants of the Czech Re pub lic

 Cham ber of Au di tors of the Czech Re pub lic

1154. Chile Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Colegio de Contadores de Chile 
(As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants of Chile)

116. Swit zer land
Cer ti fied 

Ac coun tant and Tax
Ad viser

 Treuhand-Kammer - Swiss In sti tute of Cer ti fied Ac coun -
tants and Tax Con sul tants

117. Swe den

Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

Cer ti fied Pub lic 
Ac coun tant

Pay roll Adviser
Tax Ad viser

 FAR (As so ci a tion of Ac coun tants, Au di tors and Ad vis ers)
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118. Spain Cer ti fied 
Ac coun tant

 Instituto de Censores Jurados de Cuentas de Espana (As -
so ci a tion of Cer ti fied Ac coun tants of Spain)

119. Sri Lanka

Char tered
Ac coun tant

 The In sti tute of Char tered Ac coun tants of Sri Lanka

Ac count ing Tech ni cian  As so ci a tion of Ac count ing Tech ni cians of Sri Lanka

Cer ti fied Man age ment 
Ac coun tant

 In sti tute of Cer ti fied Man age ment Ac coun tants of Sri
Lanka
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